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May 1, 1995 9:00 a.m.
PROCEUEUDTINGS

MR. EHMETT: Good morning. Let the
record reflect a hearing was called at 9:00 a.m.,
Monday, May 1, 1995, at the Division of 0il, Gas,
and Mining boardroom, Salt Lake City, Utah.

My name is Tom Ehmett and I'm the Acting
Field Office Director for the Albugquerque Field
Office for the Office of Surface Mining. Also with
me is Donna Griffen and she’s the Branch Chief of
Regulatory Programs in my office.

This hearing is being held in response
to requests for a public hearing offered by the
Office of Surface Mining in the April 6, 1995
Federal Register notice.

The notice explained that Congress in
the Energy Policy Acﬁ of 1992 amended the Surface
Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 to
mitigate the adverse impacts of underground coal
mining operations. It amended section 720 (a) of the
Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act that
requires that underground mining operations to
repair or compensate for subsidence-caused material
damage to noncommercial buildings and to occupied

dwellings and related structures. It also required

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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4
that underground mining operations replace drinking,
domestic, or residential water supplies from wells
or springs that have been affected by the
operation.

These provisions requiring repair or
compensation for damage to structures, and water
replacement went into effect upon the passage of the
Energy Policy Act on October 24, 1992. As a result,
underground coal mine permittees in the states with
OSM-approved regulatory programs, such as Utah, are
required to comply with these provisions for
operations conducted after October 24, 1992.

On March 31, 1995, OSM published in the

Federal Registexr final regulations to implement the

amended portions of the Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation Act. One of these regulations, the one
at 30 CFR 843.25, reqﬁires that by July 31, 1995,
OSM decide, 1in consultation with the state
regulatory authority, how enforcement of the new
requirements will be accomplished in the state. As
explained in the April 6, 1995, Federal Register
notice, the notice through which this hearing was
requested, enforcement in a state may be
accomplished through the 30 CFR Part 732 state

program amendment process, or by the state itself,

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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5
or by direct federal enforcement by OSM, or by joint
state and OSM enforcement of the requirements. The
purpose of this hearing is to obtain input and
comments on which of these enforcement alternatives
should be used in Utah.

For those persons present here today,
I‘'d like to make you aware of information on this
subject that the State of Utah Division of 0il, Gas
and Mining provided by letter dated January 20,
1995, in response to the Office of Surface Mining’s
request for information.

Utah stated that the number of
underground coal mines in operation after October
24, 1992, could be found in past and current grant
applications filed annually with the Office of
Surface Mining. From review of these grant
applications, OSM has determined that thefe are
approximately 21 underground mines that operated
after October 24, 1992.

As submitted to OSM on April 14, 1994,
and subsequently revised on December 14, 1994, Utah
proposed subsidence material damage provisions at
Utah Code Annotated 40-10-18 paragraph 4 that were
intended to be counterparts to the provisions of

section 720(a) (1) of the Surface Mining Control and

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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6
Reclamation Act. OSM has not yet published a final
rule Federal Register notice detailing its decision
on Utah'’s proposed provisions.

In its January 20, 1995, letterxr, Utah
indicated that it intends to promulgate by March
1996 water replacement statutory or rule provisions
that are counterparts to the provisions of section
720 (a) (2) of SMCRA.

If Utah wishes to add or clarify any of
the information already submitted, or if anyone else
wants to comment on it, they have the opportunity to
do so today.

As set forth in the April 6, 1995,

Federal Register notice, the written comment period

closes on May 8, 1995. Anyone wishing to submit
written comments in addition to testimony given here
today should submit them to me no later tHan 4 p.m.,
May 8, 1995, and our address is the Office of
Surface Mining Albuquerque Field Office, 505
Marquette Avenue, NW, Suite 1200, Albuquerque, New
Mexico 87102.

With this information in mind, I would
now like to discuss the ground rules for this
hearing. The purpose of the hearing is neither to

explain the Energy Policy Act of 1992 or OSM's

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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7
regulations to implement those changes nor is it to
present a preferred enforcement alternative by OSM
in Utah.

I will respond to procedural gquestions
that you have if I can. Also, 1if it’s necessary, I
may ask questions to clarify any testimony presented
here.

We have a court reporter and she will be
transcribing a verbatim record of the hearing. Any
written copies of your testimony that you could
provide to the court reporter today would make her
job easier and faster. So if you have written
comments, I encourage you to also submit them. OSM
will enter a copy of the transcript into the
administrative record which is available in the
Albugquerque Field Office and a copy will also be
available in the 0il, Gas, and Mining offices here.

The Utah Division of 0il, Gas, and
Mining has indicated that it wishes to read a
statement into the record. It will be the first
party to present testimony at the hearing, and
following the Division, I will call persons to
testify in the order listed on the sign-in sheet.
And if you haven’t signed in, 1if anyone else wishes

to testify, please do so over there. Then after all

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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8
that testimony, if there’s anyone else who wishes to
comment, I’1ll just open it up to people from the
audience to come up and give testimony. We have
this room reserved until 12:30, so hopefully we’ll
have ample opportunity for everybody to provide
comments.

When you come up to the table to
testify, for the benefit of everybody else at the
hearing and for the court reporter, I’1ll ask you to
please state your name and who you’re representing.
And if there aren’t any questions, I’'ll call on the
Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining to present its

testimony.

MR. CARTER: I've got extra copies of
our statement which I’1ll just park right here.

MR. LEAMASTER: Could I ask one
question? Will you accept written comments by fax
and if so, can we get your fax number?

MR. EHMETT: Sure. Let me see if I can
remember it. That'’'s area code 505-766-2609.

MR. CARTER: Thank you very much. My
name is Jim Carter. I‘m the director of the Utah
Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining. And as Mr. Ehmett
indicated, I have a prepared statement that I’'d like

to read into the record, which constitutes the

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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State’s recommendation for implementation of the
Energy Policy Act provisions. We’ll see how the
gquestioning goes, but I was just seeing that there
are two distinguished members of the Utah Water Bar
here. I may want to take a few minutes when they
finish their presentations to make some additional
comments. We’ll see how it goes.

The Division appreciates the opportunity
to address the Office of Surface Mining on
implementation of the subsidence and water
replacement provisions of the Energy Policy Act
through this public hearing process. As you know,
the Utah coal industry produced in excess of 24
million tons of coal last year, all by underground
mining methods. The two main areas of regulation
under the Act, subsidence control and the
réplacement of water supplies affected by
underground mining are significant features of the
Utah coal program and are important to the
underground mining industry and the residents of
coal mining areas.

During the 1994 Utah Legislative
session, the Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining was
successful in obtaining amendments to the Utah coal

regulatory program implementing most of the changes

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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to SMCRA brought about by the Energy Policy Act.
However, because of implications for Utah’s long-
settled water law, those portions dealing with
subsidence damage and water replacement were not
enacted as proposed. The Division, therefore, has
not yet formally adopted subsidence or water
replacement rules as OSM has recently done. The
Division has already committed to introduce new
legislation in the 1996 session, 1if necessary, which
will avoid the earlier water law concerns, and could
provide the basis for rulemaking by this time next
year. Notwithstanding the actions of the 1994
legislature, the Division and Board currently have
authority under existing enactments and rules to
adequately address subsidence and water replacement
issues as they arise.

- Since obtaining primacy in 1981 the
Division has been making well-based and informed
decisions on the hydrologic impacts of underground
mining through the use of advanced computer modeling
and investigatory techniques, combined with formal
and informal administrative processes. The Division
and Board have been examining water and related
subsidence issues for quite some time. In

cooperation with the Utah Division of Water Rights,

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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11
we have been addressing water supply and water
rights issues from the very beginning of the State’s
primacy program. We have also learned a great deal
about the western mining subsidence phenomenon
during the past 14 years of primacy, and we
routinely condition mining permits to avoid
subsidence-caused surface damage.

Enactment of new subsidence and water
replacement laws and regulations may enhance these
on going activities, but such regulations must be
carefully crafted within existing water rights
doctrine. In this area in particular, state primacy
in creating and administering the provisions of the
Energy Policy Act is critical. Without close
collaboration with the Division of Water Rights,
regulation of subsidence damage and water
replacement will be a iegal morass. The potential
for creating conflicts betweenithe legitimate
objectives of the prior appropriation doctrine and
the Energy Policy Act is high, and careful
definition of the interplay of the two is critical.

We are now in an interim regulatory
period while OSM analyzes the Utah program and the
provisions of our most recent program amendment

submittal, and compares them to its own recently

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12
promulgated rules. During this period it would make
no logical sense for OSM to gear up a separate
federal program to address only subsidence damage
and water replacement issues for three reasons: 1)
The Board and Division now have adegquate existing
authority to implement those provisions; 2) There
exlists significant legal and administrative
impediments to creation of a successful separate
federal program; 3) At the outside, the Division can
have new regulatory provisions in place, 1if
necessary, by March 1996. This would be in the case
legislation is reqguired. If only administrative
rules are required, these can be enacted in a matter
of weeks.

Given these circumstances,
implementation of the terms of the Energy Policy Act
by any other regulatory>authority than the State of
Utah at this time would be an inefficient and
wasteful use of our scarce budgetary resources. We
recommend that OSM continue with its review of
Utah’s recent program amendments and that the
Division pursue whatever legislative or
administrative modifications are deemed necessary.
We would strongly discourage the creation of a new,

temporary and limited-scope regulatory program;

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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I'd be glad to answer questions and as I
indicated I'd like the opportunity to address you
further depending on what specific issues are
addressed by others. If you’'ve got any questions,
I'd like to answer them now.

MR. EHMETT: I don’t think so. Thanks,
Jim.

MR. CARTER: Thank you.

MR. EHMETT: Okay. I‘'ll now start
calling people from the list here, but like I said,
after I get through the 1list, if anyone else wishes
to present testimony, there will be an opportunity
after the people who have signed up have spoken.

Number one on the list is Jeffrey Appel
or Appel?

MR. APPEL: Appel.

MR. EHMETT: And Daniel Leamaster.

MR. APPEL: Darrel.

MR. EHMETT: Darrel, I'm sorry.

MR. APPEL: You can come up if you want,
Darrel.

MR. EHMETT: Would you please state your
name and who you’re affiliated with for the court
reporter and provide testimony.

MR. APPEL: My name is Jeffrey W. Appel

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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and Darrel Leamaster representing Castle Valley
Special Service District today. I appreciate the
opportunity to testify at this hearing, Mr. Ehmett.
It’s a very important issue to my clients and the
customers of my clients.

By the way of background, we represent
the largest water server in a very arid portion of
Emery County and rely primarily on spring sources
since about 1920 which is one of the more
significant springs that has had its water rights,
which has been recognized by the state. There
really isn’t a whole bunch of extra water there that
hasn’t been tapped by the residents absent treatment
of surface waters which creates a whole plethora of
additional issues.

In summary, it’s an area with very, very
little water and lots of coal. Thus the future
holds and looks like increasing pressure between
water service and coal exploration -- development.
On that basis the Energy Policy Act of 1992 has been
received favorably by my client and its customers
and represents not only critical legislation, but
good sound policy in an area like ours.

We have a specific example which has

been on everyone’s mind, especially Castle Valley.

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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There’s a mine that’s owned by the Co-op Company.
It’s located immediately upgradient from one of our
major spring sources. In the past we’'ve experienced
a surge of contaminants and recently a very
significant 30 percent drop in the guantity of
water. The other mines in the area have by
comparison been cooperative. This one has not been
so cooperative. The attitude of them, if I can
characterize it that way, after bringing these sorts
of problems to their attention is, it must be
something else, it’s not our fault. Therefore, the
burden of proof and the involvement of a regulatory
authority could be very beneficial to my client.

Mr. Carter mentioned the tension between
western water law and these sorts of federal acts.
It’s brought into sharp focus in this particular
instance. The State Engineer manages the water in
this state. ©No question about that. However, in
recent meetings, perhaps not so recent now, it was
several months ago, Mr. Morgan indicated to us that
they don’'t deal with water within mines. This is a
regulatory gap. The Department of 0il, Gas, and
Mining has federal primacy to deal with hydrologic
balance and those sorts of hydrologic issues and

have additional regulatory authority. It appeérs

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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once the regulations are accepted and adopted under
the EPA of 1992. However, it’s difficult to get
them to deal with these water issues because they
perceive that it’s the State Engineer’s domain. So
my clients are left in a regulatory gap into which
they think they’ve fallen.

We’ve experienced some difficulty
getting relief. People are relatively cooperative
on a talking level, but we haven’t been able to get
any sort of enforcement at this point in time.

We’ve taken it to a rather high level and nothing

“really has been done yet. What I'm referring to is

a meeting between Mr. Carter, Mr. Morgan, myself and
others, and while I'm certain they’'re working on it
in good faith, nothing has occurred to this point in
time.

So the question that comes in my mind is
if we wait to see what the State is coming up with,
and we’d be happy to be involved with that, where do
we go if tomorrow we have a problem? The
legislation is in place. One aspect that’s not
clear to me is where we would go to find a meeting
of enforcement on this particular policy. I'm not
certain that has been answered yet.

In summary of our position the

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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replacement requirement is critical to the customers
of CVSSD. Strict enforcement of that is necessary
whether it’s federal or state. We can look to the
State for strict enforcement and they have the staff
to do it, and I think that’s fine. Again, we have
this gap as to know what their enforcement looks
like and whether they’re going to do it.

We have a problem now. We'’ve recently
had a significant 30 percent drop in the quantity of
one of our springs, and we need to check that.

We’'re not certain when we’ll be able to present the
evidence for that, but we need some place to go and
that’s critically important to us. Related to that
issue is the fact that the effective date must be
October 24, 1992 and no later. My reading of the
regulations indicates that that’s OSM’s position,
but séme states have been requesting a later
enforcement date.

I guess since we have three options to
pick, right now we would ask for either direct
enforcement of the feds or a joint state and federal
enforcement. It’s an issue primarily of
responsibility. Who do we go to tomorrow if we have
a problem? These are people that we’re talking

about that need their water. Replacement sources

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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are hard to come by and we won’t be able to wave a
magic wand and suddenly create them without
significant lead time.

That’s all -I have right now, and we will
be submitting some written comments once we’ve
reviewed the State’s position. Darrel, did you want
to say anything?

MR. LEAMASTER: No, I don’t think I have
any comment.

MR. EHMETT: Okay. Thank you very
much. I appreciate 1it. Okay, the next speaker is
Mr. Keith Zobell. Would you state your name and
spell it, please.

MR. ZOBELL: Here’s an extra copy.

MR. EHMETT: Thank you.

MR. ZOBELL: My name is Keith Zobell and
I work for and am representing Coastal States Energy
Company today who owns and operates the Skyline
Mines, Convulsion Canyon mine and the Soldier Creek
mine here in the state of Utah.

We are knowledgeable and aware of our
responsibilities under the Energy Policy Act and
have reviewed the final OSM rule in 30 CFR Parts
701, 784, 817 and 843 that were published in the

Federal Register, Friday, March 31, 1995.

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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There are currently 13 active
underground mines in the state of Utah. Compared to
many other coal mining states, this is a relatively
small number.

There are no non-commercial buildings or
occupied residential dwellings or structures related
thereto that could be damaged as a result of coal
mining caused subsidence at any of our Coastal
States Energy Company three mine locations in the
state of Utah. We are also not aware of any such
structures at any other active coal mines located
within the state.

Since the enactment of the Energy Policy
Act on October 24, 1992, we are aware of one
citizen’s complaint dealing with the loss of water
which dealt with livestock water. This complaint
was immediately investigatéd by the Utah Division of
0il, Gas, and Mining and was brought to a conclusion
in a prompt and orderly manner.

There are no drinking, domestic or
residential springs or wells within the angle of
draw impact area at any of our three mines in the
state of Utah. Based on the facts that: 1) There
is a relatively low number of active underground

coal mines in the state of Utah; 2) There have been

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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a relatively low number of citizen’s complaints
dealing with non-commercial buildings or occupied
residential dwellings or structures related thereto
or to drinking water, domestic or residential water
supplies in the state of Utah; 3) The Utah division
of 0il, Gas, and Mining has promptly taken remedial
action on all citizen’s complaints received; 4) The
Utah Division of 0il, Gas and Mining is keenly aware
of Utah State Water Law and 5) The Utah Division of
Oil, Gas, and Mining has the gualified personnel to
enforce the requirements of the Energy Policy Act.
Coastal States Energy Company recommends that the
state of Utah proceed with the promulgation of
regulatory provisions that are counterpart to 30 CFR
817.41(j) and 817.121(c) (2) and that the State of
Utah take over the immediate enforcement of these
regulations. Thank you.

MR. EHMETT: Thank you, Mr. Zobell.
Next on the list is Randy Gainer.

MR. GAINER: I would also like to invite
Ms. Denise Dragoo to come up with me and present the
other half.

MR. EHMETT: Sure. Okay. Could you

spell your name.

MR. GAINER: G-a-i-n-e-r. Mr. Ehmett,

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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today on behalf of the Utah Mining Asscociation we’re
presenting our concerns. We appreciate the
opportunity to present comments concerning the Utah
Division of 0il, Gasg, and Mining’s options for
enforcement of the water replacement provisions of
the Energy Policy Act.

As you are aware, the Division has
primacy to enforce its coal program in Utah and
should be the entity which enforces the Energy
Policy Act in thig state. It has been suggested
that the Utah program must be modified to be no less
effective than the Office of Surface Mining’s rules
adopted on Friday, March 31, 1995. However, the
protection afforded by OSM’s rules regarding water
replacement are currently in place under the Utah
Water Code. Without further amendment of Utah law,
enforcement of these regulations may be accomplished
through a Memorandum of Understanding between the
Division and the Utah State Engineer.

Section 717 (a) of the federal Surface
Mining Control and Reclamation Act requires
deference to State water law. Utah’s water law 1is
based on the doctrine of prior appropriation. The
right to use of unappropriated water in Utah is

acquired exclusively by an approved applicatioh to

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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appropriate issued by the State Engineer. Utah Code
Ann. 73-3-1. As a condition of approval of an
application to appropriate, the applicant must
demonstrate that the proposed use will not impair
existing rights or interfere with a more beneficial
use of the water. Utah Code Ann. 73-3-8.
Applications to appropriate are subject to public
notice and comment and those affected by a proposed
application may file a protest and request a hearing
before the State Engineer. Utah Code Ann. 73-3-13.

Under the Utah appropriation system, the
first in time is the first in right and the senior
appropriator. The Water Code currently addresses
conflicts between junior and senior appropriators
which may result in the replacement of water
rights. For example, under Utah Code Ann. 73-3-23,
the right of replacement is granted statutorily for
appropriations of underground water where the junior
appropriator may diminish the quantity or
injuriously affect the guality of appropriated
underground water in which the right to use thereof
has been established as provided by law. No
replacement may be made by the junior appropriator
until an application has been approved by the State

Engineer. Replacement is made at the sole cost and

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

23
expense of the applicant and the Water Code allows
the applicant to exercise the right of eminent
domain for the purpose of replacement. In addition,
the State Engineer sets conditions for replacement
of existing water wells.

The Utah Mining Association believes
that Utah’s appropriation system establishes vested
rights to drinking, domestic or residential water
supplies. In addition, the office of the Sta#e
Engineer has the expertise and training to make
determinations as to whether or not mining
activities may result in contamination, diminution
or interruption of these water supplies. The
Subcommittee suggests that OSM leave these
determinations to the Division and the State
Engineer through the mechanism of a Memorandum of
Understanding. In addition, if the changes to the
Utah program are deemed necessary, the Division must
consult the State Engineer to ensure that the
program does not conflict with established
procedures for appropriation and replacement of
water rights.

We appreciate your consideration of
these comments and Denise Dragoo will present the

Memorandum of Understanding as we have prepared it.
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MS. DRAGOO: This is clearly a
suggestion as to how the Division of 0il, Gas, and
Mining which is of course primarily the regulatory
authority and how the Utah State Engineer might
cooperate. Currently the Division of 0il, Gas, and
Mining and the State Engineer have a Memorandum of
Understanding which concerns dam’s safety and this
would be a separate Memorandum of Understanding to
which we just work out how the State could
coordinate water replacement and how Division of
0il, Gas, and Mining could coordinate water
repiacement issues with the State’s Engineer.

As Randy has indicated, the State
Engineer makes the determinations regarding
appropriation of water and who is entitled to use
and ownership of water. And under this MOU, what we
would propose is that when a petitioner citizen’'s
complaint comes in, that the Division would
cooperate with the State Engineer and sort of ask
the State Engineer to be a special master. The
Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining would ask that the
State Engineer determine whether the applicant, the
citizen, or the complainant has an established right
to use the water supply as provided by Utah law.

The State Engineer is the repository of

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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all records regarding water rights, and by statute
those water rights have to be filed with the State
Engineer and recorded there. So he’s able to make a
preliminary determination regarding an applicant’s
right to use or ownership interest.

So that Division would ask that State
Engineer to make that preliminary determination and
also make a finding preliminarily regarding whether
the underground mining activities could have
resulted in contamination, diminution or
interruption, as that term is defined by OSM.

Once the State Engineer’s finding as a
special master was made, then that would be
forwarded to the Division. The Division would then
issue the final decision regarding the petition and
that petition could be appealed through the
Division}s existing administrative appeal
mechanisms.

In addition, if there is a finding that
there is damage, the mining company would have to
coordinate with the State Engineer regarding water
replacement. As Randy indicated, there’s currently
a mechanism in place. An application has to be
filed with the State Engineer in order for a junior

appropriator to replace water and actually that
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junior appropriator is given a power that the Energy
Policy Act didn’t even imagine, and that’s the right
of eminent domain.

So if the proper application is made and
determination is made by the State Engineer, that
junior appropriator can actually exercise the rights
of eminent domain in order to acquire a water supply
to replace the damaged water supply.

So as you can see, we think Utah law may
even surpass the strength and authority of the
Energy Policy Act in addressing water replacement
issues, and we would urge that OSM defer to both the
Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining and to the State
Engineer in that regard. And in fact, we believe
that Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act
requires that deference under section 717 (a).

This Memorandum of Understanding is just
a suggestion by the way, and something I'm sure
that’s within the domain of Jim to negotiate. Thank
you.

MR. EHMETT: Could you just give me a
copy of the suggested MOU.

MR. GAINER: Now 1s that fdr your
signature?

MR. EHMETT: It doesn’t mean anything

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

27
after today anyway. My signature, that is.

MR. GAINER: Oh, okay.

MR. EHMETT: Okay. The next speaker --
is it Mark Page?

MR. PAGE: Yes, I have no comment at
this time.

MR. EHMETT: Okay. Thank you, Mr.

Page. The next speaker is Gaylor Atwood.

MR. ATWOOD: It’s Gaylon, G-a-y-l-o-n
Atwood. I represent Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation
Company. We are the suppliers of water to Castle
Valley Special Service District, North Emery Water
Users Association, and the communities in the Emery
County area. Our area of the state is impacted by
the coal mines and water issues more than any other
area in the state of Utah.

As a coal miner fér over 20 years, a
farmer involved with irrigation water issues, and of
having personal dealings in the coal industry with
Utah State Department of 0il, Gas, and Mining, I am
really quite delighted to see OSM come in and force
the State to do something about the water issues.

Huntington-Cleveland, in cooperation
with the Emery Water Conservancy District, has spent

a lot of money monitoring wells and springs because
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of the subsidence issue. We have certain mines that
are willing to work with us. Some do not. We have
a very limited working arrangement with the State
Water Engineer and through the Department of 0il,
Gas, and Mining to resolve issues that have carried
on for a number of years. And our preference would
be for OSHA -- or OSM to be in conjunction with the
Department of 0il, Gas, and Mining to administer

these rules.

From experience it seems to us that the
State, through the Water Rights Division and
Department of 0il, Gas, and Mining have not really
addressed the issues of ownership and replacement of
this water. And it would work a lot better for us
if we could have some type of oversight from OSM.

The parts of the regulation, or proposed

regulation, that deals -- I have a concern. It does
not deal with irrigation water. It is talking
strictly with the domestic or culinary water. Water

rights in our area belong to the irrigation company
and we administer water out to the different
entities or different culinary systems. The
proposal does not address that and because of this
lack of being addressed, we seem to have the same

problem when dealing with the coal companies. When
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you’'re talking somebody’s drinking water, it carries
a little bit of weight other than if you’re talking
with somebody’s irrigation water for their
livelihood, so it concerns us under that issue.
That’s all I have at this time.

MR. EHMETT: Okay. Thank you very
much. The next person on the list is Mr. J. Craig
Smith.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Ehmett. I'm
here today, I'm an attorney with the law firm of
Nielson & Senior. I'm here representing several
clients who are water entities in the Emery County
area. One being the Emery Water Conservancy
District. Its chairman, Mr. Eugene Johansen, is
here today as well, and I think the record should
reflect that he may have some of his own comments he
would like to make when his turn comes on the list.

That is the governmental entity that’s
charged with the responsibility of protecting and

preserving water in this entire area of Emery County

where their mining is taking place. Also, I'm
representing -- I'm the attorney for the
Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation Company. Mr. Gaylon
Atwood, one of the board members, has spoke. Also
its secretary, Mr. Varden Wilson is also here. And
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also here today, who I'm representing, is the North
Emery Water Users Association, which is a culinary
water provider for the unincorporated areas of
Northern Emery County.

As Mr. Atwood stated, the water rights,
at least in the Huntington Creek drainage, which is
one of the major drainages impacted by coal mining,
are principally owned by the Huntington-Cleveland
Irrigation Company. It has shareholders that
include the culinary providers that are here. The
North Emery Water Users Association being one, the
unincorporated areas and the Castle Valley Special
Services District, who have already been heard at
this hearing is another one who provide culinary
water. So it’s kind of a tiered approach to water
providing. So that’s understandable, I guess, it'’s
somewhat unigque.

So with that in mind, I‘d like to just
state that we’ve had a -- for the last several years
had a growing concern over the impacts of mining on
water sources in the Huntington Creek drainage. I
think that it’s just a matter of hydrology that the
mining where the strata where the coal is found is
also the same strata where the major aquifers are

found in that area. That’s really -- those
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drainages are really the only source of water for
the Emery -- northern part of Emery County, or I
think, probably all of Emery County. Because
underlying those stratas is a very thick layer of
mancos shell that also underlies most of the
flatlands not in the mountains.

So there is not water except for the
water that is available in these drainages. And our
concerns have focused both on quantity and on
guality. One of our quantity concerns 1is that just
by the very nature of where the mining operations
take place, there is a great ability for the mines
to cause -- and this is certainly nothing they do, I
think, through any intent -- but just through their
mining operations cause -~ can cause transbasin
diversions. The mines are obviously -- are in where
they’'re located, does that and there are many
different basins including the Price River Water
Basin, the Sanpete area, the drainages in Sanpete,
cause water moving which would naturally go from one
basin, say from the Huntington Creek drainage into
the Price River drainage, thereby depriving those

water right holders of this water.

Our quality concerns focus on, at least

from what our measurements show that there is higher
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levels of TDS in water that comes out of mines.
Also in reports that we’ve heard of materials being
left in worked out areas of mines that are
potentially hazardous to water gquality. And so we
have those concerns, as I think’s been previously
mentioned, and I want to emphasize during my
testimony, that we have to a large extent enjoyed
cooperation from the mining companies. We have a
relationship, obviously, with the mining companies.
They are a provider of jobs to the economy of our
area, and to a large extent, when we’ve had problems
with at least -- with water quantity and water
quality, that we’ve been able to reach friendly
resolutions to those problems.

And some of the people that we’ve worked
with are here and will probably speak today
representing those mining companies and so we want
to emphasize that we have had -- that has not
been -- as Mr. Appel said in his testimony, has not
uniformly been the case, and have not always had
that, but we have in large extent enjoyed that.

I'd also like to point out that we have
seen an evolution in the Division of 0il, Gas, and
Mining’s position on the Energy Policy Act

protection of water and it’s an evolution that we’re
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pleased to have seen. Because when we first began
at least our efforts to address some of our
concerns, we were told by members of the DOGM staff
that this was not part of the Utah program. And
that the Utah program did not include the protection
of drinking water that’s under the Energy Policy Act
that’s been referred to, and the reason why we are
here today.

We’ve seen an evolution in that position
and it’s been a positive one from our perspective.
An evolution to recognizing that this is a federal
law that must be implemented, and also an evolution
to the point where now that I was pleased to hear
the comments of Mr. Carter saying that the State now
believes that they have the legal authority to
implement that and to make that part of the State
program. Some of our other concerns -- SO we're
pleased about that development.

We have concerns about the manpower
resources to effectively enforce any water
protection requirements that may become part of
either a state or federal program. To date we've
been concerned that there has not been adequate
manpower or resources either available or marshalled

by the Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining to
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effectively address our concerns. The concerns can
be broken down into maybe several subparts.

One is that during the permitting
process, that there is effective staff and manpower
devoted by the regulatory body to effect and
critically review hydrologic analysis that’s
provided by the mines. It’s typically a situation
where the mining company seeking the permit provides
the information that'’'s reviewed. We'’ve been
concerned that there has not been the level of
critical review that needs to go into the review of
their hydrologic analysis that’s supposed to predict
what the effect of the intended mining will be on
the water resource.

Even more important than that, there has
been no review to my understanding, and if I'm wrong
I woﬁld like to be corrected at this hearing, of any
post permitting activities of the mine companies.
For example, if a mine is able to receive a permit,
there’s no effort to then review its actions and
then also the impacts it has on aquifers during the
actual mining. We think that’'s a very serious
omission to the current situation, and any State
regulations that are adopted, we would like to see

include a requirement that there be post permitting

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

35
review.

For example, the permitting is done on
what is believed to be will be the hydrological
consequences. Obviously, those predictions may or
may not come forth, but at the current time even
though information is gathered about changes and
flows of springs, and seeps, and the water
information gathered, there is no one who 1is
reviewing that information to see if whether the
actual mining under the permit is having any greater
or lesser effect on the hydrologic balance and on
drinking water sources and other water sources than
was predicted during the time of the permitting
phase. And we think that’s an important aspect that
needs to be included.

That there’s a regular and -- manpower
and reéources made available to regularly review
mining activities to see that they’re causing no
greater consequences than was allowed in their
permit. And if they are, that that be automatically
addressed by the regulatory body and thét the water
right holders and those who use the water not be
regquired to bring actions; that there be automatic
triggers in the permits that when certain things

happen, that they trigger certain requirements for
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water replacement.

Another concern we have 1is water
quantity -- I'm sorry, water quality. To monitor
what materials are left in worked out sections of
mines. To make sure that water gquality is
protected. We think that’s important. We would
also like to see, 1f the State is allowed to develop
its own regulations, that even though there is only
a federal minimum under the federal laws that we’ve
been discussing, that that minimum be exceeded,
because as Mr. Carter pointed out, the unique
situation of Utah and of being different than many
other states because of the State water law we have
here, that other beneficial uses besides just
drinking water also be included and protected as
part of the State program.

There’s no -- I would submit that there
is no bar to the State having something that
provides more protection for water than the minimum
that the federal laws require, and that irrigation,
stock and other recognized beneficial uses of the
State Engineer’s office be similarly protected from
loss by the regulations that are adopted.

These are -- I hope we can get across

the idea that the water entities in this area of the
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state are not large, powerful organizations. They
are small organizations that have limited
resources. For example, Huntington-Cleveland
Irrigation Company, which is the largest holder of
water rights in the Huntington drainage is a mutual
non-profit water agency and does not make a profit,
and is not in the profit making business. It simply
exists to distribute water to its shareholders, and
we have much less in the way of resources than the
companies that are involved in the mining. And so
we have to look to the regulators to protect us and
do so.

As Mr. Appel pointed out, there is
currently a gap existing between where State water
law is not addressing interference by mining of
water. The State Engineer has stated his position
that until it sees the lighﬁ of day, water that’'s
intercepted in a miﬁe is not under what he considers
to be his jurisdiction. We think that gap has to be
addressed. And as Mr. Carter pointed out, there has
to be some cooperative efforts, but that gap does
need to be addressed so that there isn’t a current
gap that we find ourselves in.

We would ask that if there was State

rule making that we as the water entities be
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involved in helping to craft those rules so those
concerns be involved. And finally, we would like to
see, at least initially, some OSM oversight until we
can get the program and be comfortable with what we
have.

And I guess we would like to defer our
final judgment -- or final position until we see the
proposed rules that the State would like to adopt so
that we can make a determination for ourself whether
these rules will not only meet the federal minimums,
but protect this important water resource.

And I would like to at this time present
a couple of previous letters that we sent when the
general oversight hearing was held last August. Mr.
Ehmett, you came here and I believe we were over at
the Doubletree Hotel, and when you were generally
reviewing that we came and had comments and rather
than repeat all those things, what I thought I would
like to do is to present comments both submitted by
myself and Mr. Johansen and submit those and make
those part of the record today. And also we will be
submitting some additional comments that we’ll put
into written form with my verbal comments here
today. Thank you for the opportunity to provide

comments at this hearing.
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MR. EHMETT: Thank you. That’'s all the
folks that have signed up to speak. Is there anyone
else who would like to speak? I see Mr. Carter has
his hand up, so if you’d like to come up.

MR. CARTER: I don’t necessarily want to
get the last word, but I think it’s important to
supplement the testimony of the Division in order to
address some of the issues that have been raised.
And I think it would also be beneficial just for the
general information for anyone who is here and
interested in this issue to get a fuller explanation
of the Division’'s perspective with regard to these
matters.

First, Mr. Appel mentioned that there’s
a matter, a Co-op matter, and I wanted to let you
know that that is a matter that is currently under
advisement. The Board of 0il, Gas, and Mining has
heard argument and testimony in that matter. So
that’s an issue that actually is a fairly good
example of why it is that the State Division
believes that it has in place already adequate
regulatory authority to address the mandates of the
Energy Policy Act.

Water replacement is a remedy and it’‘s a

remedy that is provided for once certain factual
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determinations are made. In the Co-op matter, the
Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining made certain
factual determinations, which in the conclusion of
the Division was that the remedy was not called for
because of the factual determinations we made. The
water users groups disagreed with the factual
determinations of the State and appealed those
determinations to the Board. In that matter the
Board is currently considering the arguments and
testimony and will make a determination on those

factual matters.

I anticipate that if the Board makes a
factual determination that is adverse to the
Division, and makes factual determinations that are
those urged by the water users, the water users will
then find themselves with a set of factual
determinations that they can utilize in other forums
to achieve appropriate remedies for whatever
injuries they are suffering.

The memorandum -- let me touch a bit on
the relationship between the State of Engineering
and the Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining. As was
pointed out, the State Engineer has not historically
made factual determinations about the effects of

mining on water rights. The Engineer does make
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factual determinations on other effects and needs
to. When someone files a change application, the
Engineer must find that that change can be
accomplished without adversely affecting other water
rights owners. But the Engineer has not
historically made factual determinations about
mining and mining’s impacts on water.

On the other hand, the Division has not
historically made factual determinations or
adjudications of water rights between owners of
water rights whose uses of those rights may come
into conflict with one another. So the Memorandum
of Understanding which was suggested is exactly the
kind of vehicle in the Division’s view that can
resolve those gaps as have been pointed out in what
we view as being a complete regulatory framework.

So our testimony is and our belief is
that there exists adequate statutory authority to
address both factual determinations of whether or
not drinking water supplies are being adversely
affected by coal mining, and second, whether or not
replacement, which is an already existing remedy
under Utah State Water Law, is the appropriate
remedy. And it’s simply a matter of dividing the

work between the Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining
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and the Division of Water Rights in a way that
allows each of us to do what we have historically
done or not done, but provides the water users and
the mining companies with a complete picture, both a
factual picture and a legal remedy picture, of all
the impacts of underground mining on water.

We doubt that there’s a need for a
legislative solution; nevertheless, we’'ve committed
to undertake a legislative solution if it appears
that that’s the only way we can get approval of our
regulatory program in finding that it’s no less
effective, so we’'re prepared to do that. We are
also prepared to undertake rule making, if that’s
necessary, either under existing statutory
enactments or under new enactments, and we’d do that
very quickly.

ASo that’s sort of the basis of our
belief that we do not need to invite creation of a

new scheme of regulation or implementation of a

water replacement program that perhaps works in

Pennsylvania or someplace where there’s not prior
appropriation, in Colorado, Utah, or New Mexico for
that matter.

I want to emphasize something that Mr.

Smith touched on, and I appreciate the kudos we
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received and I’l]l offer this as an update on work in
progress. One of the results, probably the major
result of the oversight hearings that we jointly
conducted last summer, was that the Division of 0il,
Gas, and Mining recognized that the hydrologic
impacts of underground mining are one of the major
significant impacts of mining in the state of Utah.
Asgs was pointed out and as we discussed at that
hearing, the state has monitored or has maintained a
data base of hydrologic monitoring that all of the
coal operators in the State are submitting to the
Division on a regular basis.

The difficulty that we’ve experienced,
and I think the water users and the coal community
has experienced as well, is that the Division has
not done as good a job as it could managing that
data. It has.not been in a consistent and
accessible data base from which we could generate
predictions of future effects or evaluate past

effects.

One of the things Mr. Smith touched on
was that the State has not made an effort to revisit
its conclusions, hydrologic impact conclusions,
after its issuance of the permit. And I want to

make clear to you that that’s not the case. The
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State in fact is making every effort and concerted
efforts to better address and evaluate the impacts
of mining based upon the water monitoring data that
we're receiving.

And I'd also like to report that we’ve
made tremendous progress in that regard. We’ve had
an ad hoc group of industry folks meeting with our
hydrologists, Ken White in particular, to work out
the lumps and bumps in our data base to try to
improve that and get it into a more user
friendly -- when I say user, I mean inside the
Division and outside the Division user’s, friendly
base so that we can make the kinds of conclusions
that we need to. So we are putting a tremendous
amount of time and energy into better understanding
the factual impacts of hydrologic impacts of
underground mining.

I also want to point out there was a
suggestion made that only culinary water supplies
are protected, and that is not the case. Only
culinary water supplies need to be replaced if there
is a factual determination that they have been
adversely affected. But SMCRA and the Utah Coal
Regulatory Program both emphasize that all

hydrologic impacts are to be minimized, prevented,
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if possible, and minimized to the extent that they
can be for all beneficial uses of water. Even uses
of water which are not recognized as beneficial uses
under the Utah Water Code, such as habitat support,
maintenance of fisheries and so forth. So the
Division is actively working to protect both guality
and quantity of water supplies under its regulatory
program and has always done so.

The only issue that has cropped under
the Energy Policy Act, the narrow issue, is when
adverse effects are identified on culinary water
supplies, what’s the appropriate remedy? And the
Energy Policy Act says replacement, and how do we
reconcile that with the existing replacement
requirements under Utah State Water Law based upon
the prior appropriation doctrine?

I don’t think that’s all that difficult,
and I can understand that the water users are
concerned and if it’s not so difficult, how come it
hasn’t happened already? I think part of the answer
to that is that it has and we’re developing it, and
we’ll find something out when the Board makes its
determination in the Co-op matter. But I think that
we can enhance what we’ve got and £ill gaps in what

we'’'ve got through the use of an MOU and perhaps
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additional ruling. But I continue to believe that
there’s not a necessity even for State legislation,
let alone creation of a federal regulatory program
to administer Energy Policy Act provisions.

Those are the main things and again, I‘'m
available for questions basically from anybody, and
for all of us are here to understand clearly what
the Division’s been doing and what it’s working on.

MS. DRAGOO: Jim, Craig Smith had raised
the question of whether you were doing monitoring.
During your five-year permit reviews, were the
hydrological conseguences reviewed at that time?

MR. CARTER: Right. At the time of
permit renewal, the Division needs to make a
finding -- it needs to make the same findings under
its probable hydrological consequences -- excuse
me . Its cumulative hydrologic impact assessment.
It needs to find again that that assessment is
correct or is accurate, so there is a window during
which we make a new factual determination which
those who are concerned could appeal if they wanted
to. And we're also looking at the monitoring
information that we’ve received at that time.

MR. EHMETT: Could we let the record

show that the question came from Denise Dragoo.
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Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carter.

MR. CARTER: Thank you.

MR. EHMETT: Is there anyone else here
today who would like to speak? Yes, sir, could you
come up and state your name and spell it.

MR. JOHANSEN: Okay I'm going to stand
if I might.

MR. EHMETT: Sure.

MR. JOHANSEN: I've been sitting too
long. My name is Eugene Johansen and I'm wearing
several hats. And I'm a little disappointed that
the State did not notify other water users of this
hearing. The Emery County Water Conservancy
District was not notified. The Cottonwood Creek
Irrigation Company was not notified. The Ferron
Irrigation Company was not notified. The Special
Service District, which I?m a board member of,
received its information. It is not on the
letterhead and I guess when I read that, Coal
Operators, North Emery Water Users Association,
Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation Company, Utah Mining
Association, I guess that’s what prompted me to come
to the meeting.

I am pleased that Mr. Carter 1is

informing us that the State is now doing everything

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

48

they can to implement what we thought should have
been done quite some time ago. And if they can

continue to do that, why we’d be satisfied with them
doing it. Our main concern is, and we don’t know
whether to blame the concern onto the mining
industry or the drought, because we have seen our
springs dry up. Whole tributaries and canyons are
without water, and this forced the Conservancy
District anyway to begin a monitoring program on all

of the west end of Emery County.

We have installed at present around 35
stations and we’ve brought them into a central spot,
and I don’t understand all this computer business,
but I can read the printout. And we now have a
record of the springs that the mining industry will
be affecting. We learned from the State that we
didn’t have any records to combat what we were
complaining about. And we’ve spent a quarter of a
million dollars the last two years in now making a
data base, which we can say to the State, the mining
and the federal government look, something has gone
wrong here.

Our concern, I guess, is this. Because
of the industrial mechanization of the mining people

they can go into an entry here, they can go into an
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entry over here. The drainage system is here for
this tributary or for that company. The draining
system 1is here for this company and they can tap all
the water, bring it to a collecting agency in their
portal and neither this system nor this system has
any control of the water.

And under the State laws, I understand
it the mines have the water and as long as they use
it and as long as it doesn’t go to the surface, they
can do with it what they want. So if they choose to
take all of this, put it here and even make another
drainage and pump it out, they can do so. Am I
right or wrong on that? That’s our concern, because
they’'re collecting water from several areas, putting
it in their own collecting system, and then at their
discretion, and I’'ll say the least cost, pump it
someplace else. We’'ve got to have that corrected.
And I've listened to your gquestions and I don’t know
how to answer them. How do we determine where the
water came from, whose water it was and whose it's
going to be? And I guess that’s what brings us to
this type of a hearing.

We know that our springs are drying up.
We know that whole tributaries, for example, the

Little Cottonwood Canyon doesn’t have a drop of
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water and it used to have two, three, five, seven
feet of water. We know that’s gone. I don’'t know.
I don’t know if it’s the drought. We’ll find out
this year because we have a snowpack and our
entities also -- we feel that we don’t have much say
on who'’s going to replace what. Who’s going to
finance that replacement? Are they going to buy it
or are they going to give us some of their water?
Who’s it going to come from?

All we know is that our water is
changing sources and going somewhere else or it'’s
being depleted. And as the mining industry moves
further south in Emery County, they will leave these
big, I don’t know what you do with those, those
cave-ins. Can you tell me what you’re going to do
with them? Are you going to let the water stay
there? Are you going to let it come out? That'’s
another concern. It comes out contaminated. It’s
filled With grease. It’s filled with materials that
didn’t used to be there. How do we handle that
problem?

And I may have read into this wrong that
this just concerned culinary, but I thought Mr.
Carter said no, it concerns everything. And I'm

glad to hear that. But as I read the register and
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so on, are you only concerned with culinary water?
Mr. Atwood pointed out that the irrigation companies
control the water and they distribute it not only to
industry, but to the culinary source and also
agriculture. It all comes off the same spring and
we don’t want to be ignored. We want this whole
thing resolved as soon as possible.

MR. CARTER: I was just going to say my
point was the coal regulatory program is intended to
protect all or to minimize all hydrologic impacts in
order to protect water from all uses, culinary uses,
irrigation, everything. But this hearing is being
conducted to address the requirement that culinary
sources, when they’re adversely affected, be
replaced, and that is my understanding that’s a
function of the Energy Policy Act directive that
relates only to -- and Donna’s probably got the
language -- but it excludes irrigation.

MS. GRIFFEN: I just wanted to clarify
it’s not commercial, but it’s residential, domestic
and drinking. When in fact, 1f someone'’'s watering
their yard and it’s part of the homestead, it'’s
covered under the Energy Policy Act, but it’s

non-commercial.

MR. EHMETT: Your comments earlier

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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pertained to there are other requirements in the
Utah program and the Office of Surface Mining SMCRA
that require protection of all beneficial water
sources, but that’s not a subject of this hearing
today. But I think Mr. Carter is saying, and
correct me if I'm wrong, there are other
requirements in the federal and state program that
protect other water sources that are not part of the
Energy Policy Act in addition to that.

MR. JOHANSEN: The entities that I am
part of are willing to work with anybody that will
seriously sit down and say somebody has
responsibilities for solving this problem and we’'re
going to insist that that happen, even if we have to
go to the federal government and say what has to be
said. I guess I’ve said enough.

MR. EHMETT: Mr. Johansen, could you
spell your last name.

MR. JOHANSEN: J-o-h-a-n-s-e-n. Eugene
is the first name.

MR. EHMETT: Okay. Thank you very
much. Is there anyone else? Yes, sir.

MR. LEAMASTER: My name is Darrel
Leamaster, L-e-a-m-a-s-t-e-r. I'm the manager of

Castle Valley Special Sexrvice District. In Mr.
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Smith’s testimony he mentioned that our water
companies have very little resources. We're
basically small companies. We don’t have the
advantage of having geologists, hydrologists on our
staff and had very little expertise in these areas.
Because of that we’re at the mercy of other people,
the coal mining companies, to provide us information
and DOGM to provide us information, and have not the
ability to do too much of that on our own.

Now the federal regulations seem to
recognize this, and state that when problems occur,
that the regulatory authority will have the ultimate
burden of proof of showing that we have been damaged
and that there is a problem. And we appreciate
having that in that federal law, because we think it
addresses the very problem that we have that we
don’t have that expertise.

I guess the million dollar question here
is, is the State, the DOGM, 1in the position and of
the attitude that they’'re willing to step in and
show when problems have occurred and accept that
burden of proof of showing that there has been a
problem. We haven’t seen that in the past and we’'re
pleased with the comments Mr. Carter has made of the

directions they’re taking. But we still have some
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grave concerns that they’re willing to step in and
assume that responsibility and accept the burden of
proof.

One other comment, the federal
requirements also do require, if I read that
correctly, that the permitee provide additional
bonds, performance bonds, for the replacement of
these water sources. That’s something that we
haven’t seen in Utah. We don’t know if that will be
a part of the new program and we would hope that
that would be put in place so that we have that
assurance. And until those questions are answered,
I think that we’re still a little bit confused as to
which direction to go. I think we would still take
the position that we would like to see OSM and the
state jointly involved in the problem. Thank you.

MR. EHMETT: Thank vyou. Denise.

MS. DRAGOO: Denise Dragoo. I just
wanted to address on behalf of Utah Mining
Association one question that was raised by Eugene
Johansen and several of the water users, and that
concerns dewatering of mines. My understanding of
the testimony so far has been that there isn’t
anything that addresses that. If those waters are

already appropriated, then certainly the State
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Engineer can’t step in and address those concerns.
It’s when the waters are unappropriated that then
those waters can be dewatered or removed from the
mine.

So right now, as I understand the State
Water Code, those issues are addressed if there is
appropriated water. The concern here is that a lot
of times water is simply generated in the mining
process. It’'s called developed water. Its
unappropriated, but if that mine seeks to
appropriate that water, it still has to go through
the State Engineer’s appropriation system. The fact
that this hearing is dealing with culinary water
sources would probably mean that those sources are
already appropriated, so I don’t think the problem
that Bugene Johansen has raised and a couple of the
other water user associations have raised is truly a
concern in this context.

MR. EHMETT: Thank you.

MR. JOHANSEN: Can I make one more
comment?

MR. EHMETT: Is there anyone else
besides Mr. Johansen?

MR. JOHANSEN: She brought up another

interesting point there. The water is appropriated,
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but who’s got the appropriation? Here is the water
over here in this district and it’s appropriated to
go into channel one. Now it goes into a collecting
agency and is pumped out into channel two, and
that’s the problem. That’s a different water now.
That’s a new water for somebody, but an old water
for somebody else. How do you solve that one?

MS. DRAGOO: I think that’s where the
State Engineer could be of some assistance.
MR. JOHANSEN: How is he going to do

it? Because we know that water from Huntington has

gone over into Ferron -- not Ferron -- over into
Price, and that’s one of our problems here. You
éollected it all in a big reservoir. Now is it old
water? I’1l]l claim all the old water. Or is it new
water? Joe Blow will claim the new water. I don't
think -- somebody’s got to regulate that.

MR. EHMETT: Mr. Atwood, did you have
another comment?

MR. ATWOOD: Well, it was along the same
lines. Having worked in -- they brought up the
Co-op mine issue. I worked at Co-op mine for five
years and was personally involved in the water
issues that was there. In my opinion, my job at the

mine was dealing with this water issue. That the
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Department of 0il, Gas, and Mining in their
investigative work, their regulatory duties was very
very lax, and inefficient in what they done. I
dealt with them. I know.

This is my concern. I do not like the
federal government coming into the state and saying
this is what we will do to regulate you. I would
rather the State done it on their own. But from
personal experience, the State has not got the
gumption to do it. They do not have the expertise
to do it, or the desire. And it really concerns me
as a water user, and being personally involved in
this issue. The Co-op mine issue should have been
resolved years ago. If DOGM would have been on
their toes, they could have resolved it with no
problem in a real quick hurry. But they weren’t.

So it brings this concern the federal has to come in
and oversight these people to get them to do it.

The comment of the new water being
created -- water in the mine coming here. We create
this water. You don't create any new water. It's
there. It’s adjudicated by the State Water Engineer
as to where it belongs. These rights are filed on
hundreds -- over a hundred years ago. How does an

outfit come into your backyard and take things out
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of your backyard that YOu own supposedly, and say it
was new, we created it? It doesn’t make any sense,
but it shows the issues that the mining companies
and DOGM have got into where they do not realize and
understand personal property rights. And that'’s
where the issue gets into.

MR. EHMETT: Thank you. Any more
comments? I guess not. So thank you very much for
coming. The transcript will now be closed.

(The hearing was concluded at 10:20 a.m.)

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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Thomas E. Ehmett

Acting Director

Albuquerque Field Office
Office of Surface Mining

505 Marquette Avenue N.W.
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

Dear Mr. Ehmett:

This letter will convey my written comments as a supplement to
those given verbally on August 9, 1994 at the Office of Surface
Mining oversight meeting in the Doubletree Hotel in Salt Lake City.

This firm represents a number of water crganizations in the
Emery County, Utah area including Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation
Company, which owns the majority of the water rights in the
Huntington Creek drainage and provides most of the industrial,
domestic and irrigation water in the Northern Emery area including
water to Huntington City, and Cleveland and Elmo Towns. Another
water organization this firm has represented is the Emery Water
Conservancy District, the governmental body charged with protecting
and conserving water in Emery County. Finally, we represent North
Emery Water Users, which provide domestic water to unincorporated
northern Emery County.

Coal and water are found together in Emery County. The
mountains where coal deposits are found are the water shed for
Emery County. It is not surprising that there is a conflict



oy

L

Thomas E. Ehmett
August 10, 1994
Page 2

between mining and water rights. To a mine, water is something
that is incidentally encountered. If large quantities appear in
the mine, they will be disposed of in the most economic fashion.
However, the interruption of water by mining may have serious
impacts on water rights holders. Such interception may move water
from a point of diversion of one owner to that of another. Water
may also be moved from one drainage to another or may have its
quality deprecated.

To better manage these conflicts from a regulatory standpoint,
and to insure that federal and state laws and regulations designed
to protect water quantity and quality from adverse impacts of
mining are followed, we would suggest the following:

1. Appoint a staff DOGM hydrologist to act as a liaison or
contact person for water quantity and quality issues arising from
permitted mining activity.

2. Prepare water user guides to the regulatory and
permitting process of DOGM to aid in their participation in this
process.

3. Devise standard stipulations to all permits that protect
groundwater quality and quantity so that if, after a permit is
issued, greater impacts are found, the permit holder is required to
mitigate those impacts.

4. Devise a procedure and policy to review hydrologic
impacts of mining activity under existing permits to assure that
water quality or- quantity impacts are not occurring in greater

- magnitude than expected and permitted. The permits are issued on

the basis of expected hydrologic consequences; however, the actual
consequence may be much different. Currently, data is collected
which measures the actual impact or consequence; however, no effort
is made to review or analyze such data.

5. Coordinate with Forest Service and BLM to assure that
their regulations and forest stipulations are enforced. For
example, one stipulation to the Manti-LaSal Forest Plan, is for
replacement of any water source interrupted by mining. However,
this is not being considered in permitting, nor enforced by DOGM.

6. Coordinate with water users and the State Engineer’s
Office to better protect water rights and resources. The water
users would be pleased to participate in such a coordinated effort.
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7. DOGM needs to aggressively review hydrologic information
submitted during the permit process to minimize the necessity of
water users in performing their own critique and review of such
information. This would include requiring greater detail of
information and analysis to be submitted by those seeking a permit.
Many water users are nonprofit organizations that have modest
resources. It is very difficult for these organizations to fund
scientific critique and review of information submitted by permit
grantors.

8. Improve noticing to water organizations.

We respectfully submit these suggestions. We are cognizant
and appreciative of the help and assistance of DOGM and seek only
to improve upon their efforts.

Yours truly,

NIELSEN & SENIOR

g .'; A
'

{' \.‘\,["‘;‘:,_,,, -

- - Sl

Crgig Smith

J,
cc: Board of Directors,
Huntington~Cleveland Irrigation Co.
cc: Eugene Johansen
cc: Board of Directors,
North Emery Water Users Association
cc: James W. Carter, Esdg.
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EMERY WATER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

P.O. Box 998
Castle Dale, Utah 84513

Telephone (801) 381-2311

August 8, 1994

Thomas E. Ehmett

Acting Director
Albuquerque Field Office
Office of Surface Mining
505 Marquette Ave. N.W.
Albugquerque, NM 87102

Mr. Ehmett.

The Emery Water Conservancy District has repeatedly
expressed our concerns pertaining to the effects that the mining
industry has on the water supply in our area.

We are not opposed to the wise use of our mineral resources,
but when that use diverts the flow of water from its natural
course or contaminates it, we feel quite strongly that the
industry responsible for the diversion or contamination be held
accountable for such action and must mitigate for any and all
losses.

Many of the streams and springs that once flowed freely on
our mountain ranges have been altered in quantity and quality by
the mining activities. The District is concerned with the
continual disruption of the flow of water that is in the
mountains caused by mining activities. We have seen small
streams and springs decrease or completely stop flowing in recent
vears. This may be caused by drought conditions or by mining
activities.

We are now seeing water being diverted from one river to
another through the mines or being discharged at a site where the
water cannot be utilized beneficially. At the point of discharge
from the mine, the water has been contaminated by underground
activities. The District monitors all of the rivers in Emery
County. In comparing the T.D.S. of the water that is running
into the valley we find about 300 as compared to over 1000 in the
water being pumped from the mine. Many other contaminates appear
in the water as well. This contaminated water runs from the
mines into the rivers and contaminates the rivers.

If this program is to be regulated by the Division of 0il,
Gas, & Mining for the established program in the State of Utah,
then it is the consensus of the Emery Water Conservancy District



the mining industry mitigate with local irrigation companies
under the direction of DOGM for lost and contaminated water as a
result of the industries activities. Rules and regulations need
to be enforced and concerns of private individuals and water

users need to be addressed.

Sincerely,

Chairman
Emery Water Conservancy District

EJ/db
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Reporter’'s Certificate

STATE OF UTAH )

COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

I, KELLY SOMMERVILLE, Registered
Professional Reporter and Notary Public in and for
the State of Utah, do hereby certify:

That said hearing was taken down by
me in shorthand on May 1, 1995 at the place therein
named and thereafter pages 3 through 58 were reduced
to transcription under my direction.

I further certify that I am not of kin
or otherwise associated with any of the parties to
the said cause of action and that I am not
interested in the outcome thereof.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this 2nd day of
May, 1995. -

%jmk/n//c/

KELLY SOMMERVILLE, RPR
Notary Public
Residing in Salt Lake County’

My Commission Expires:
June 22, 1996

Kelly Sommerville, R.P.R.
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United States Department of the Interlorm o s Ao il

OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING ¢
Reclamation and Enforcement (r’z;r"‘ @ é }7/1 ‘}%f 1
Suite 1200 o '
505 Marquette Avenue N.W, ’
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102 Q¢ W :

August 16, 1995

Mr. James W. Carter, Director
Division of Qil, Gas and Mining

3 Triad Center, Suite 350

355 West North Temple

Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203

Dear Mr. Carter:

Enclosed are the latest entries to the Utah Administrative Record,

UT-1055 through UT-1070, and the corresponding pages of the log reflecting these
entries. | have also enclosed a current copy of the State Program Amendment
Tracking (SPAT) report for your information and reference.

The Albuquerque Field Office no longer maintains the Utah Administrative Record.
The Western Regional Coordination Center will provide you with updates and
copies of SPAT reports in the future. Accordingly, please submit all future State
program amendments directly to:

Mr. Jim Fulton, Chief
Denver Field Division
Western Regional Coordination Center

Please call me at 505-766-1486 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

1y, I

Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Albuquerque Field Office

Enclosures




Administrative Record Log: UTAH

60 FR 35188

Proposed rule reopening notice for amendment UT-
1059 closing 07/21/95

07-21-95

no. | Date of Corres
Originator Organization Description of Document pgs | Date Received | ID No. By
SPAT UT-028-FOR 05/12/95 UT-1055 VEM
Telephone conversation record regarding an issue 1
Vernon Maldonado OSM letter for Amendment UT-1025.
MSHA SPAT UT-024-FOR 1 05-18-95 UT-1056 VEM
John A. Kuzar Late - No comment letter for amendment UT-917.
05-23-95
OSM SPAT UT-025-FOR 05-30-95 UT-1057 VEM
60 FR 28040 Final rule approving amendments UT-941, UT-990 1
regarding highwall reclamation. 06-06-95
OSM-AFO Memorandum to Utah administrative record regarding 5 06-05-95 UT-1058 VEM
Arthur W. Abbs consultation for enforcement of EPACT requirements.
DOGM SPAT UT-028-FOR 6 06-05-95 UT-1059 VEM
James W. Carter Amendment revisions in response to UT-1054.
06-08-95
NMA Comments submitted in regard to UT-1039 14 UT-1060 VEM
Harold P. Quinn, Jr. concerning enforcement of EPACT requirements.
MSHA SPAT UT-024-FOR 1 06-22-95 UT-1061 VEM
John A. Kuzar Late comment letters for amendment UT-917 (no
comments). : 06-27-95
OSM SPAT UT-1028-FOR 9 06-27-95 UT-1062 VEM
Arthur W. Abbs Distribution letters for amendment UT-1059
John A, Kuzar MSHA SPAT UT-029-FOR 1 06-16-95 UT-1063 VEM
: No comment letter regarding amendment UT-1003.
06-19-95
OSM SPAT UT-028-FOR 4 07-06-95 UT-1064 VEM




Administrative Record Log: UTAH

- no. | Date of Corres
Originator Organization Description of Document pgs | Date Received | ID No. | By
DOGM SPAT UT-017-FOR 2 07-13-95 UT-1065 VEM
Ronald W. Daniels Promulgated language.
07-19-95
OSM SPAT UT-024-FOR 11 07-19-95 UT-1066 VEM
60 FR 37002 Final rule approving amendments UT-917 and
UT-997. 07-25-95
DOGM SPAT UT-025-FOR 1 07-21-95 UT-1067 VEM
James W. Carter Letter requesting an extension for promulgating rules
and for addressing required amendments
OsSM SPAT UT-017-FOR 1 07-25-95 UT-1068 VEM
Arthur W. Abbs Review of promulgated language for amendment
uUT-827.
Army COE SPAT UT-028-FOR 1 07-12-95 UT-1069 VEM
Charles L. Baldi No comment letter for amendment UT-1059.
07-17-95
OSM 30 CFR 944 6 07-27-95 uT-1070 VEM
60 FR 38491 Notice of decision on initial enforcement of
subsidence control and water replacement. 07-31-95
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of the underground coal mine
subsidence control and water
replacement requirements in Texas is
not reasonably likely to be required and
that implementation will be
accomplished through the State program
amendment process. In the near future,
and in accordance with 30 CFR
732.17(d), OSM intends to notify Texas
of the specific revisions that it must
make to its regulatory program to be no
less stringent than SMCRA and no less
effective than the implementing Federal
regulations.

If circumstances within Texas change
significantly, the Regional Director may
reassess this decision. Formal
reassessment of this decision would be
addressed by Federal Register notice.

Dated: July 19, 1995.
Russell F. Price,

_Acting Regional Director, Western Regional

Coordinating Center.
[FR Doc. 95-18440 Filed 7~-26-95; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4310-05-M

30 CFR Parts 906, 931, and 944

Colorado, New Mexico, and Utah
Regulatory Programs

AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM)
Interior.

ACTION: Notice of decision.

SUMMARY: OSM is announcing its
decision on initial enforcement of
underground coal mine subsidence
control and water replacement
requirements in Colorado, New Mexico,
and Utah. Amendments to the Surface
Mining Control and Reclamation Act of
1977 (SMCRA) and the 1mp1ementmg
Federal regulations require t that
underground coal mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992,
promptly repair or compensate for
subsidence-caused material damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related
structures and promptly replace
drinking, domestic, and residential
water supplies that have been adversely
affected by underground coal mining.
After consultation with Colorado, New
Mexico, and Utah apd consideration of
public comments, OSM has decided that
initial enforcement will be .
accomplished in Colorado through State
enforcement, in New Mexico through
the State program amendment process,

_and in Utah through State enforcement

and, if necessary, direct Federal
enforcement of Federal provisions
protecting water supplies.
EFFECTIVE DATE: July 27, 1995.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director,
Albuquerque Field Office, Telephone:
(505) 766—1486.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
A. The Energy Policy Act

Section 2504 of the Energy Policy Act
of 1992, Pub. L. 102-486, 106 Stat. 2776
(1992) added new section 720 to
SMCRA. Section 720{(a)(1) requires that
all underground coal mining operations
promptly repair or compensate for
subsidence-caused material damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied residential dwellings and
related structures. Repair of damage
includes rehabilitation, restoration, or
replacement of the structures identified
in section 720(a)(1), and compensation
must be provided to the owner in the
full amount of the reduction in value of
the damaged structures as a result of
subsidence. Section 720(a)(2) requires
prompt replacement of certain
identified water supplies if those
supplies have been adversely affected
by underground coal mining operations.

These provisions requiring prompt
repair or compensation for damage to
structures, and prompt replacement of
water supplies, went into effect upon
passage of the Energy Policy Act on
October 24, 1992. As a result,
underground coal mine permittees in
States with OSM-approved regulatory
programs are required to comply with
these provisions for operations
conducted after October 24, 1992.

B. The Federal Regulations
Implementing the Energy Policy Act

On March 31, 1995, OSM
promulgated regulations at 30 CFR Part
817 (60 FR 16722) to implement the
performance standards of sections
720(a)(1) and (2) of SMCRA.

30 CFR 817.121(c)(2) requires in part
that: '

The permittee must promptly repair, or
compensate the owner for, material damage
resulting from subsidence caused to any non-
commercial building er occupied residential

" dwelling or structure related thereto that

existed at the time of mining. * * * The’
requirements of this paragraph apply only to
subsidence-related damage caused by
underground mining activities conducted
after October 24, 1992.

30 CFR 817.41(j) requires in part that:

The permittee must promptly replace any
drinking, domestic or residential water
supply that is contaminated, diminished or -
interrupted by underground mining activities
conducted after October 24, 1992, if the
affected well or spring was in existence
before the date the regulatory authority
received the permit application for the
activities causing the loss, contamination or
interruption.

Alternative OSM enforcement
decisions. 30 CFR 843.25 provides that
by July 31, 1995, OSM will decide, after
consultation with each State regulatory
authority with an approved program,
how enforcement of the new
requirements will be accomplished. As
discussed in the April 6, 1995, Federal
Register {60 FR 17501) announcing the.
public comment period and opportunity
for public hearing and as reiterated
below, enforcement could be
accomplished by State, OSM, or joint
State and OSM enforcement of the
requirements, or by a State after it has
amended its program.

(1) State program amendment
process. If the State’s promulgation of
regulatory provisions that are
counterpart to 30 CFR 817.41(j) and
817.121{c)(2) is imminent, the number
and extent of underground mines that
have operated in the State since October
24, 1992, is low, the number of
complaints in the State concerning
section 720 of SMCRA is low, or the
State’s investigation of subsidence-
related complaints has been thorough
and complete so as to assure prompt
remedial action, then OSM could decide
not to directly enforce the Federal
provisions in the State. In this situation,
the State would enforce its State-
statutory and regulatory provisions once
it has amended its program to be in
accordance with the revised SMCRA
and to be consistent with the revised
Federal regulations. This program
revision process, which is addressed in
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR Part
732, is commonly referred to as the
State program amendment process.

(2) State enforcement. If the State has
statutory or regulatory provisions in
place that correspond to all of the
requirements of the above-described
Federal regulations at 30 CFR 817.41(j)
and 817.121(c)(2) and the State has
authority to implement its statutory and
regulatory provisions for all
underground mining activities ..
conducted after October 24, 1992, then
the State would enforce its provisions
for these operations.

(3) Interim direct OSM enforcement. If
the State does not have any statutory or
regulatory provisions in place that
correspond to the requirements of the
Federal regulations at 30 CFR 817.41(j)
and 817.121(c)(2), then OSM would
enforce in their entirety 30 CFR
817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) for all
underground mining activities
conducted in the State after October 24,
1992. i
{4) State and OSM enforcement If the
State has statutory or regulatory
provisions in place that correspond to
some but not-all of the requirements of
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the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) and the State.
‘has authority to implement its
provisions for all underground mining
activities conducted after October 24,
1992, then the State would enforce its
provisions for these operations. OSM
would then enforce those provisions of
30 CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) that
are not covered by the State provisions.
for these operations.

If the State has statutory or regulatory
provisions in place that correspond to
some but not all of the requirements of
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) and if the
State’s authority to enforce its
provisions.applies to operations
conducted on or after some date later
than October 24, 1992, the State would
enforce its provisions for these -
operations on and after the provisions’
effective date. OSM would then enforce
30 CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) to
the extent the State statutory and-
regulatory provisions do not include
corresponding provisions applicable to
all underground mining activities
conducted after October 24, 1992; and
OSM would enforce those provisions of
30 CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) that
are included in the State program but
are not enforceable back to Qctober 24,
1992, for the time period from October
24, 1992, until the effective date of the
State’s rules.

As described in items (3) and-(4)
above, OSM could directly enforce in
total or in part the applicable Federal
regulatory provisions until the State
adopts and OSM approves under 30
CFR Part 732, the State’s counterparts to
the required provisions. However, as
discussed in item (1) above, OSM could
decide not to initiate direct Federal
enforcement but rather to rely instead
on the 30 CFR Part 732 State program
amendment process. -

In those situations where OSM
determined that direct Federal
enforcement was necessary, the ten-day
notice provisions of 30 CFR 843.12(a)(2)
would not apply. That is, when on the
basis of a Federal inspection OSM
determined that a violation of 30 CFR-
817.41(j) or 817.121(c)(2) existed, OSM
would issue a notice of violation or
cessation order without first sending a
ten-day notice to the State.

Also under direct Federal
enforcement, the provisions of 30 CFR
817.121(c)(4) would apply. This
regulation states that if damage to any

-noncommercial building or occupied
residential dwelling or structure related
thereto occurs as a result of earth
movement within an area determined by
projecting a specified angle of draw
from the outermost boundary of any

underground mine workings to.the
surface of the land (rormally a 30
degree angle of draw), a rebuttable
presumption exists that the permittee
caused the damage.

Lastly, under direct Federal
enforcement, OSM would also
implement the new definition at 30 CFR
701.5 of “drinking, domestic or
residential water supply,” ‘“material
damage,” “non-commercial building,”
“occupied dwelling and structures
related thereto,” and “replacement of
water supply” that were adopted with
the new underground mining -
performance standards.

OSM would enforce 30 CFR 817.41(j), -

817.121(c) {2) and (4), and implement
the definitions at 30 CFR 701.5 for
operations conducted after October 24,
1992.

C. Enforcement in Colorado

Colorado Program Activity,
Requirements, and Enforcement

By letter to Colorado dated December
14, 1994, OSM requested information.
that would help OSM decide.which
approach to take in Colorado to
implement the requirements of section
720(a) of SMCRA, the implementing
Federal regulations, and/or the
counterpart Colorado program
provisions (Administrative Record No.
CO-652). By letter dated February 24, .
1995, Colorado responded to OSM’s -
request (Administrative Record No. CO-
661).

Colorado stated that, of the 25
underground coal mines that had
permits as of October 24, 1992, 11
actually mined coal after that date.

Colorado indicated that prior to June
1, 1892, Colorado had in place surface
owner protection performance standards
at 2 Code of Colorado Regulations 407
2, rules 4.20.3(1) and 4.20.3(2) that
encompassed the requirements of
section 720(a)(1) of SMCRA. Rule
4.20.3(2), which contained requirements
regarding an operator’s obligation to
repair or compensate for material’
damage or reduction in value or
reasonably foreseeable use caused by
subsidence to surface structures,
features, or values, expired on june 1,
1992, under Colorado’s “Sunset Law.”
The rule expired because Colorado’s
Office of Legislative Legal Services
found during November 1991 it was not
supported by statute. Colorado
subsequently developed language for a
bill to amend the Colorado Surface Coal
Mining and Reclamation Act (the
Colorado Act) and introduced the bill
during the 1995 legislative session. The
intent of the bill was to amend Colorado
Revised Statute (C.R.S.) 34-33—-121(2)(a)

to provide specific statutory support for-

Rule 4.20.3(2). -~ .

Colorado explained that, although the
specific language of Rule 4.20.3(2)
expired during June 1992, the Division
of Minerals and Geology has continued
since that time to interpret its rules to
require that mine operators are
responsible for repairing or
compensating surface owners for
subsidence-caused material damage to
structures. Colorado based its authority
for doing so on the general provisions of
Rule 4.20.3(1) and the subsidence
control plan mitigation requirements of
Rule 2.05.6(6)(iv).

Colorado indicated that there may be
a conflict between the provisions of
section 720(a)(2) of SMCRA, which:
requires prompt replacement of
drinking, domestic, or residential water
supplies adversely impacted by
underground mining operations, and
Colorado water law. Consequently,
Colorado has requested an opinion from
the Colorado Assistant Attorney General

"in this regard. Existing Colorado Rule

4.05.15 requires operators to “* " * *
replace the water supply of any owner
of a vested water right whichis
proximately injured as a result of the
mining activities in a manner consistent
with applicable State law” (emphasis.
added).

For underground mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992,
Colorado has received one complaint
alleging subsidence-related structural
damage and two complaints alleging..
water supply loss or contamination.
Colorado investigated all three
complaints. Colorado determined thé
complaint alleging subsidence-caused
structural damage to be without basis.
One of the complaints alleging water
supply loss or contamination was
withdrawn, and the second was under
investigation by Colorado..

On May 4 and 31, 1995, OSM
confirmed with Colorado that 11 of its
25 underground coal mines produced
coal after October 24, 1992
(Administrative Record No. CO-668). At
that time, OSM also discussed with
Colorado the status of the State’s:
revision of its program to include
counterparts to SMCRA and the
implementing Federal regulations.

Effective ]u%y 1, 1995, the Colorado
legislature amended the Colorado
Surface Coal Mining Reclamation Act,
C.R.S. 34-33-101, et seq., ’
{Administrative Record No. CO—-664) to
serve as a statutory basis for a
subsidence material damage rule to
replace Rule 4.20.3(2), which, as
discussed above, expired under
Colorado’s Sunset Law. On May 24,
1995, the Colorado Mined Land
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Reclamation Board commenced
rulemaking to replace this rule. Upon
the completion of these actions,
Colorado béelieves that it will have fully
implemented counterparts to the
subsidence material damage provisions
of the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
817.121(c)(2).

Colorado stated that C.R.S. 34-33~
111(1)(m) and Rule 2.05.6(3), which
address protection of the hydrologic
balance, give it the necessary authority
to require replacement of drinking,
domestic, or residential water supplies
in a manner no less effective than 30

" CFR 817.41(j) (Administrative Record

No. CO-664). However, Colorado has
not yet received an opinion from the
Colorado Assistant Attorney General as
to whether related Rule 4.05.15 limits

" the replacement of water supplies to

those with “vested water rights.”

Colorado received no additional
complaints. The investigation of the
water supply complaint is ongoing.
‘With respect to the structural damage
complaint that Colorado initially
determined was without basis, Colorado
and OSM are reviewing information
supplied by the complainant with the
intent of resolving the complainant’s
concerns.

Comments. On April 6, 1995, OSM
published in the Federal Register (60
FR 17501) notice of opportunity for a
public hearing and a request for public
comment to assist OSM in making its
decision on how the underground coal
mine subsidence control and water
replacement requirements should be
implemented in Colorado
{(Administrative Record No. CO-662).
The comment period closed on May 8,
1995. Because OSM did not receive a
request for a public hearing, OSM did
not hold a public hearing. OSM received
comments from two parties in response
to its notice.

One party stated that the enforcement
alternatives incorporating total or partial
direct interim Federal enforcement
(items (3) and (4) in section B. above)
have no statutory basis in SMCRA and
are not consistent with Congress’ intent
in creating section 720 of SMCRA
(Administrative Record No. CO-666).
The party also commented that the
waiving of ten-day notice procedures in
implementing direct Federal

_enforcement is not consistent with

Federal case law. OSM does not agree
with the commenter’s assertions, and it
addressed similar comments in the
March 31, 1995, Federal Register (60 FR
16722, 16742-16745) and also responds
to these comments below in the
“Comments” subsection of following
Utah section E. These concerns about
direct Federal enforcement are moot

issues for Colorado because the Regional

~ Director has decided, as set forth below,

not to implement an enforcement’
alternative including direct Federal
enforcement.

Another party commented on the
national Federal regulations
(Administrative Record No. CO—665)
after OSM published them as a final rule
on March 31, 1995 (60 FR 16722). These
comments are not germane to OSM’s
April 6, 1995, Federal Register request
for public comment to assist OSM in
making its decision on how the
underground coal mine subsidence
control and water replacement
requirements should be implemented in
Colorado.

Regional Director’s decision. Prior to
the Regional Director making this
decision on which enforcement
alternative should be implemented in

. Colorado, the Albuquerque Field Office

on May 4 and 31, 1995, consulted with
Colorado in accordance with 30 CFR
843.25(a)(4) (Administrative Record No.
CO-668). Because the number of mines

-in Colorado that are subject to section

720(a) of SMCRA is low, Colorado has
made significant progress in
promulgating the necessary statutory
and rule provisions, and Colorado has
shown a commitment to investigating
citizen complaints regarding subsidence
and water supply impacts, the Field
Office and Colorado agreed that
Colorado should be the primary enforcer
of its State program provisions for
subsidence-caused material damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related
structures and for drinking, domestic,
and residential water supplies adversely
affected by underground coal mining.
Only, if a situation arises in which
Colorado’s enforcement role as primary
enforcer does not appear to fully meet
the requirements of section 720(a) of
SMCRA, would OSM through Federal
oversight issue ten-day notices. '

On this basis and the disposition of
the comments received, the Regional
Director decides that initial enforcement
of the underground coal mine
subsidence control and water
replacement requirements in Colorado
will occur through State enforcement.

If circumstances within Colorado
change significantly, the Regional
Director may reassess this decision.
Formal reassessment of this decision
would be addressed by Federal Register
notice. :

D. Enforcement in New Mexico

New Mexico Program Activity,
Requirements, and Enforcement

By letter to New Mexico dated
December 14, 1994, OSM requested
information that would help OSM
decide which approach to take in New
Mexico to implement the requirements
of section 720(a) of SMCRA, to
implementing Federal regulations, and/
or the counterpart New Mexico program
provisions (Administrative Record No.
NM-725). By letter dated December 22,
1994, New Mexico responded to OSM’s
request (Administrative Record No.
NM-726).

New Mexico stated that two
underground coal mines were active in
New Mexico after October 24, 1992.
New Mexico stated that it intended to
revise its subsidence information and
control plan provisions at Coal Surface
Mining Commission (CSMC) Rule 80-1—-
20-124 to be no less stringent than
section 720 of SMCRA.

New Mexico did not indicate whether
it had authority within its program to
investigate citizen complaints of
structural damage or water supply loss
or contamination caused by
underground mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992. New
Mexico had not received any citizen
complaints alleging subsidence-related
structural damage or water supply loss
or contamination as a result of
underground mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992. New
Mexico indicated that both of the
underground mines that operated after
October 24, 1992, are located several
miles from structures subject to the
Federal requirements for subsidence-

- related material damage.

On May 13, 1995, New Mexico
proposed an amendment to OSM for its
permit application requirements at -
CSMC Rule 80-1-9-39 (Administrative
Record No. NM-739). Specifically, New
Mexico proposed to revise its
subsidence information and control
plan requirements at this rule with the
intent of making it consistent with
section 720 of SMCRA. OSM is -
currently reviewing the effectiveness of
this proposed rule. . -

On May 3 and June 5, 1995, OSM
confirmed with New Mexico that tow
underground coal mines were active
after October 24, 1992 (Administrative
Record No. NM-746). New Mexico
stated that it had received no
subsidence material damage or water
supply complaints for these operations,
and that neither operation has
noncommercial buildings or occupied
dwellings and related structures, or
developed water sources, within the
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projected subsidence angles of draw.
New Mexico indicated that, if it were
necessary to apply the provisions of 30
CFR 817.41(j) and 817.12(c)(2) before it
had revised its program to be no less
effective than these Federal regulations,
it would pursue enforcement utilizing
general provisions contained in the
State regulations.

Comments. On April 6 1995, OSM
published in the Federal Register (60
FR 17501) notice of opportunity for a
public hearing and a request for public
comment to assist OSM in making its
decision on how the underground coal
mine subsidence control and water
replacement requirements should be
implemented in New Mexico
(Administrative Record No. NM-737).
The comment period closed on May 8,
1995. Because OSM did not receive a
request for a public hearing, OSM did
not hold one. OSM received from one of
the parties that commented on the
Colorado program the same comments
regarding total or partial direct interim
Federal enforcement and ten-day notice
procedures (Administrative Record No.
NM-749). OSM does not agree with the
commenter’s assertions. It addressed
similar comments in the March 31,
1995, Federal Register (60 FR 16722,
16742-16745) and also responds to
these comments below in the
“Comments” subsection of following
Utah section E. These concerns about
dire(;t Federal enforcement are moot
issues for New Mexico because the
Regional Director has decided, as set
forth below, not to implement an
enforcement alternative including direct
Federal enforcement.

Regional Director’s décision. Prior to
the Regional Director making this
decision on which enforcement
alternative should be implemented in
New Mexico, the Albuquerque Field
Office on May 3 and June 5, 1995,
consulted with New Mexico in-
accordance with 30 CFR 843.25(a)(4)
(Administrative Record No. NM-746).
Because there has been little
underground mining activity since
October 24, 1992; there is little
likelihood for subsidence damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related
structures, or adverse effects to
drinking, domestic, and residential

" water supplies by underground coal
mining; and New Mexico has already
proposed to OSM revisions to part of its
regulatory program, the Field Office and
New Mexico agreed that it is unlikely
that any State or Federal enforcement
would be necessary in the State during
the interim period between October 24,
1992, and the date by which New
Mexico entirely revises its program in

‘accordance with SMCRA and the

Federal regulations.

On this basis and the disposition of
the comments received, the Regional
Director decides that initial enforcement
of the underground coal mine
subsidence control and water-
replacement requirements in New
Mexico is not reasonably likely to be
required and that implementation will
be accomplished through the State
program amendment process. On June
22, 1995, OSM notified New Mexico of
the specific revisions that it must make
to its regulatory program to be no less
stringent than SMCRA and no less
effective than the implementing Federal
regulations (Administrative Record No.
NM-747).

If circumstances within New Mexico
change significantly, the Regional
Director may reassess this decision.
Formal reassessment of this decision
would be addressed by Federal Register
notice.

E. Enforcement in Utah

Utah Program Activity, Requirements,
and Enforcement

By letter to Utah dated December 14,
1994, OSM requested information that
would help OSM decide which
approach to take in Utah to implement
the requirements of section 720(a) of .
SMCRA, the implementing Federal
regulations, and/or the counterpart Utah
program provisions (Administrative
Record No. UT-1001). By letter dated
January 20, 1995, Utah responded to
OSM'’s request (Administrative Record
No. UT-1015).

Utah stated that the number of
underground coal mines in operation
after October 24, 1992, may be found in
the past and current grant applications
filed annually with OSM. From review
of these grant applications, OSM
determined that there are approximately
21 underground mines that operated
after October 24, 1992,

As submitted to OSM on April 14,
1994, and subsequently revised an
December 14, 1995 (Administrative
Record Nos. UT-917 and UT-997), Utah
proposed subsidence material damage
provisions at Utah Code Annotated
(UCA) 40-10-18(4) that were intended
to be counterparts to the provisions of
section 720(a)(1) of SMCRA. OSM has
not yet published, in accordance with
30 CFR Part 732.17, a final rule Federal
Register notice detailing its decision on
the proposed provisions. - -

In its January 20, 1995, letter, Utah
indicated that it intends to promulgate .
by March 1996 water replacement
statutory provisions that are

counterparts to the provisions of sec‘uon
720(a)(2) of SMCRA.

Utah did not state whether it has
authority to investigate citizen
complaints of structural damage or
water loss caused by underground
mining operations conducted after
October 24, 1992. Utah indicated that it

- did receive, investigate, and resolve one

citizen complaint after October 24,
1992, but is also indicated that the
complaint was judged not to be one that
the Energy Policy Act of 1992 revisions -
to section 720 of SMCRA could remedy.
On May 1 and 31, and June 5, 1995,
OSM discussed with Utah its regulatory
program as it relates to section 720 of
SMCRA (Administrative Record No.

UT-1058).

After further review, OSM has
determined that 16 underground mines
conducted mining operations after
October 24, 1992. Utah has not received
for these operations any complaints
relating to subsidence damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related
structures, or adverse effects to drinking
domestic, and residential water
supplies.

Utah stated that it still intends to
introduce a water replacement -
counterpart section 720{a)(2) of SMCRA

to its legislature during the 1996 session .

and that it intends to undertake
rulemaking by the summer of 1996.
Utah stated that, although there is
potential for conflicts with State water ..
law regarding replacement of “junior”
water allocation, it is committed to
developing water replacement
regulations that meet both the
requirements of section 720(a)(2) of
SMCRA and 30 CFR 817.41(j) and water
rights doctrine. Notwithstanding these
future program revisions, Utah
indicated that it has the authority under
existing enactments and rules to
adequately address water replacement
issues as they arise. It stated that it is
committed to the investigation and
resolution of citizens’ concerns
regarding water sources.

Comments. On April 6, 1995, OSM
published in the Federal Register {60
FR 17501} notice of opportunity for a
public hearing and-a request for public
comment to assist OSM in making its
decision on how the underground coal
mine subsidence control-and water
replacement requirements should be
implemented in Utah (Administrative
Record No. UT-1039). The comment
period closed on May 8, 1995. In
response to a request, OSM held a
public hearing on May 1, 1995,'in Salt
Lake City, Utah. OSM entered into the
administrative record a verbatim
transcript of the hearing testimony

\&..‘."
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(Administrative Record No. UT-—lOSO).

Following are summaries of all
substantive comments that OSM
received, and OSM’s responses to them.

Two commenters indicated that there
are 13 active underground mines in
Utah (Administrative Record Nos. UT—
1045, 1049, and 1050). By OSM’s count,
there are 16 mines that operated after
October 24, 1992, and that are subject to
the provisions of the Energy Policy Act.

One party stated that the enforcement
alternatives incorporating total or partial
direct interim Federal enforcement
(items (3) and (4) in section B. above)
have no statutory basis in SMCRA and
are not consistent with Congress’ intent
in creating section 720 of SMCRA
(Administrative Record No. UT-1060).
Specifically, the party commented that
SMCRA contains various statutory
procedures for the amendment,
preemption, and substitution of Federal
enforcement of State programs (sections
503, 505, and 521(b)) that should be
used in lieu of direct interim Federal
enforcement.

In response to this comment, OSM's
position remains as was stated in the
March 31, 1995, preamble for the
Federal regulations at 30 CFR 843.25,
which in part implement section 720 of
SMCRA:

OSM has concluded that it is not clear
from the legislation or legislative history,
how Congress intended that section 720 was
to be implemented, in light of existing
SMCRA provisions for State primacy. Thus,
OSM has a certain amount of flexibility in
implementing section 720. After weighing
these considerations, OSM intends to
implement section 720 promptly, but will
pursue federal enforcement without
undermining State primacy under SMCRA.

(60 FR 16722, 16743). Using this
rationale, OSM concludes that there is
no inconsistency in its implementation
of section 720 of SMCRA with sections
503, 505, and 521(b) of SMCRA.

Further the party commented that
Congress’ intent was that agreements
between coal mine operators and
landowners would be used to ensure
that the protective standards of section
720 of SMCRA would occur rather than
enforcement by State regulatory
authorities and OSM. The party did not
supply any legisiative history to support
this conclusion, and the plain language
of section 720 of SMCRA does not
support this conclusion.

Lastly, the party commented that the
waiving of ten-day notice procedures in
implementing direct Federal
enforcement is not consistent with
Federal case law. OSM does not agree
with the commenter’s assertion. The
following response to a similar
comment in the March 31, 1995,

Federal Register (60 FR 16722, 16742~

16745) also applies to this comment.

" {The commenter stated that] the proposal
to provide for direct Federal enforcement
ignores Federal case law which indicates
that, as a general proposition, the State
program, not SMCRA, is the law within the
State. OSM recognizes that, under existing
rules implementing SMCRA, States with
approved regulatory programs have primary
responsibility for implementing SMCRA,
based on the approved program. However, in
this rule OSM has carved out a limited
exception to the general proposition to the
extent necessary to give reasonable force and
effect to section 720, while maintaining so far
as possible State primacy procedures. OSM
believes that the process adopted in this final
rule is consistent with and authorized by
Congress under the Energy Policy Act, and
that case law interpreting other provisions of
SMCRA is not necessarily dispositive.

Two commenters recommended that
Utah take over the immediate
enforcement of Energy Policy Act
provisions and 30 CFR 817.41(j) and
817.121(c)(2) because {1) There is a
relatively low number of active
underground coal mines in Utah, (2)
there have been a relatively low number
of citizen complaints dealing with
subsidence material damage or water
supply damage. (3) Utah has promptly
taken remedial action of all citizen
complaints received, (4) Utah is Keenly
aware of State water law, (5) Utah has
qualified personnel to enforce the
requirements of the Energy Policy Act
(Administrative Record Nos. 1045, 1049,
and 1050). OSM acknowledges these
recommendations and took them into
consideration in making a decision on
enforcement in Utah. ‘

One commenter stated that the water
supply protections afforded by March
31, 1995, Federal regulations are
currently in place under the Utah Water
Code and that, without further
amendment of Utah law, enforcement of
these regulations may be accomplished
through a memorandum of
understanding (MOU) between the Utah
Division of Oil, Gas and Mining
(Division) and the Utah State Engineer
(Engineer, Administrative Record
No0.UT-1046). Another commenter
submitted a suggested MOU addressing
water replacement that could be entered
into the Division and the Engineer
(Administrative Record No. UT-1050).
In response to a commenter’s perception
that a regulatory gap exists between
what the Division is willing to enforce
and what the Utah State Engineer is
willing to enforce (Administrative
Record No. UT-1050), the Division
endorsed the concept of an MOU with
the Engineer as a means to bring
together in-a complete regulatory
framework the Division’s

— :
determinations on mining’s impact on .
water and the Engineer’s determinations
of adjudications on.water rights. OSM s
response to these comments and
submission is that, although this is one
approach that Utah may decide to
pursue, this MOU is not in place and as
such is not a consideration in the
Regional Director’s decision on whether
to institute direct Federal enforcement
in Utah. If Utah decides to modify its
approved regulatory program through
such an MOU, it would have to submit
it as a State program amendment for
OSM approval in accordance with 30
CFR 732.17.

The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and
Mining stated that direct Federal
enforcement in the State would amount
to institution of a separate Federal
program to address only subsidence
damage and water replacement issues
(Administrative Record No. UT-1050).
In its opinion, this would be an
inefficient and wasteful use of scarce
budgetary resources because (1) It has
adequate authority to implement the
subsidence damage and water
replacement provisions required by the
Energy Policy Act and the implementing
regulations, (2) there exists significant
legal and administrative impediments to
creation of a successful separate federal
program; and (3] it can have new
regulatory provisions in place, if
necessary, by March 1996. In making
the decision that is set forth below,
OSM has given thoughtful consideration
to Utah’s concerns. OSM does not
consider that any direct Federal
enforcement in Utah would be
inefficient and wasteful because OSM
also has a responsibility under section
720(a) of SMCRA to ensure that the
protective provisions to remedy
subsidence material damage and -
adversely affected water supplies are
promptly applied.

The Division indicated its intent to
actively seek the input of the Utah
Division of Water Rights when it
develops water supply regulations so
that these regulations are consistent
with existing water rights doctrine. The
Division and several other commenters
made statements about what State water
law and the Utah: State Engineer require
or do not require with respect to water
rights and allocations. Some of these .
comments related directly or indirectly
to the implementation of section 720(a}
and 30 CFR 817.41(j). OSM responds to
these comments by reiterating its
position on water rights that was
included in the preamble to the March
31, 1995, Federal regulations.

Section 717(a) requires deference to State
water law on questions of water allocation
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‘and use..OSM interprets section’'720 and- the
" ‘implementing rules as not requiring the.,
replacement. of water supplies to the extent
underground mining activities consume or
legitimately use the water supply undera . .
senior water right determined under
applicable State law. See Iri re Permanent
Surface Mining Regulation Litigation II,
Round 11, 620 F. Supp. 1519, 1525 (D.C.D.C.
1985). However, OSM believes that section
.717(a) concerns rights under State water law
to consumption or use of water, and was not
. intended to address destruction or damage of
the source of water, or contamination of
water supply. Thus, OSM anticipates that
underground mining activities which cause
destruction or damage of a water supply
source, or contamination of a water supply, -
would be subject to the replacement
requirements of section 720 even if the
permittee possessed senior water rights.

(60 FR 16722, 16733).

Two commenters indicated that, in a
proceeding before the Board on Oil, Gas
and Mining concerning alleged
diminution and contamination by a
Utah mining operation of a water
source, the Division was unwilling to
enforce the water replacement
requirements of section 720(a) of
SMCRA (Administrative Record Nos.
UT-1047, 1048, and 1050). These
commenters, and one other person
(Administrative Record No. UT—-1050),
stated that the Division had not fully
enforced the water protection provisions
of the Utah program. One of the
commenters recommended a number of
changes in the implementation of the
Utah program and indicated that, until
these changes were made, OSM should
conduct oversight Utah’s
implementation of the ground-water
protection provisions of the Utah
program and, if necessary, directly
enforce water resources protection
provisions in Utah. The other
commenter recommended, at a
minimum, joint Division and OSM

" enforcement of the Energy Policy Act
requirements, or direct Federal
enforcement. OSM acknowledges these
comments and took them into
consideration in makmg the decision set
forth below.

Oné commenter stated that, to the best
of his knowledge, Utah does not”
conduct-any monitoring of the
hydrological consequences of a mine
after it has'been permitted to determine
whether the mine is affecting the
hydrelogic balance as predicted in the
permit (Administrative Record No. UT-
1050). In response to this statement, the
Division indicated that, during the
operation of a mine, it does reevaluate
the hydrologic impact conclusions made

“at the permitting stage in light of
‘monitoring data collected during the

" mine’s operatlon (Admxmstratlve

Record No.:UT-1050):. - )
Regional Director’s. deczszon Prior to '

the Regional Director making this =~
decision on which enforcement -
alternative should be implemented in
Utah, the Albuquerque Field Office, on
May 1 and 31, and June: 5, 1995,
consulted with Utah in accordance with
30 CFR 843. 25(a){4) (Administrative =
Record No. UT-1058). .

The majority of Utah mines have
operated after October 24, 1992, and are-
subject to the provisions of section
720(a) of SMCRA and the implementing
Federal regulations. Although Utah has
implemented its regulatory program
provisions concerning hydrologic
information and hydrologic balance and
is committed to the investigation and
resalution of citizens’ concerns
regarding water sources, there are, as is
documented in the written record of the
public hearing, current concerns and
potential for additional complaints
regarding the loss, contamination, or
diminution of water séurces that serve
large populations in the coal producing
counties in Utah. The mid-1996
projection for promulgating statutory
and regulatory State program provisions
for water replacement is in keeping with
usua!l timeframes for enactment of
legislation and revision of regulations.

The Field Office and Utah agreed that
Utah should be the primary enforcer of
its State program provisions for
subsidence-caused material damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related-
structures and for drinking, domestic,
and residential water supplies adversely
affected by underground coal mining.
However, the Field Office found that it
is unclear that the water supply
protections of section 720(a)(2) of
SMCRA and 30 CFR 817.41(j) can be
implemented by Utah in all cases.
Therefore, the Field Office concluded
that, if a situation arises in which Utah’s

- enforcement role as primary enforcer

does not appear to fully meet the water
replacement requirements of section
720(a)(2) of SMCRA, OSM must take
direct Federal enforcement.

On this basis and the disposition of
the comments received, thie Regional
Director decides that initial enforcement
of the underground coal mine :
subsidence control and water -
replacement requirements in Utah will
occur through State enforcement and, if
necessary, direct Federal enforcement of
the water replacement requirements of
section 720(a)(2) of SMCRA and 30 CFR

. 817.41(j).

If circumstances w1thm Utah change
significantly, the Regional Director may-
reassess this decision. Formal .- .

- affetted by under

" redssessment of this decision-would be:

addressed by Federal. Reglster notlce
Dated July 19, 1995 :

" Russell F. Price,

Acting Regional Director, Westem Regzona]
Coordinating Center.

[FR Doc. 95-18441 Filed 7—26—95 8: 45 am]
BILLING CODE 4310-05-M

--30 CFR Parts 915,916, and 925

Iowa, Kansas and
Programs
AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining

Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM),
Interior.
ACTION: Notice of\decision.

SUMMARY: OSM is ouncing its
decision on initial enforcement of
underground coal jnine subsidence
control and water feplacement
requirements in Igwa, Kansas, and
Missouri. Amendfments to the Surface
Mining Control ahd Reclamation Act of
1977 (SMCRA) and the implementing
Federal regulatiofs require that
underground coal\mining operations
conducted after O¢tober 24, 1992:
promptly repair orlcompensate for
subsidence-causedjmaterial damage to .
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related .
structures and prgmptly replace
drinking, domestfc, and residential
water supplies that have been adversely
round coal mining.
After consultatld with Jowa, Kansas,.
and Missouri and consideration of
public comments} OSM has decided that
initial enforcement is not reasonably
likely to be required and that
implementation in jthese States will be
accomplished throfigh the State program
amendment procegs.

EFFECTIVE DATE: Jyly 27, 1995.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Michael C. Wolfgom, Acting Director,
Kansas City Field Office, Telephone
(816) 374-6405.

SUPPLEMENTARY! FORMATION:
A. The Energy Policy Act

. Section 2504 of eEnergy Pohcy Act
of 1992; Pub. L. 1p2-486, 106 .Stat. 2776

includes rehabjlitation, restoration, or "

replacement offthe structures identified
in section 720(4)(1), and compensation




“~DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY o/
U.S5. Army Corps of Engineers
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20314-1000

July 12, 1995

REPLY TO
ATTENTION OF:

Engineering Division

Mr. Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director

Albuquerque Field Office

Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement

505 Marquette Avenue, NW, Suite 1200

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

Dear Mr. Abbs:

This is in response to your letter of June 27, 1995,
concerning Administrative Record No. UT-1059.

Our review of the amendment to Utah's Coal Mining and
Reclamation Regulatory Program, found the changes to be
satisfactory to our agency.

Sincerely,

2t

Charles L. Baldi
Acting Chief, Engineering Division
Directorate of Civil Works -
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Memorandum

To: Peter Rutledge, Chief
Program Support Division

From: Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director /S/M

Albuguerqgue Field Office
Subject: Utah Promulgated Language for SPAT UT-017-FOR
The Albuguerque Field Office (AFO) received the attached
promulgated language from Utah (UT-1065) for its March 24,
1993 amendment (UT-827).
The subject rules were promulgated by Utah on July 1, 1994.
AFO reviewed the promulgated language and found it to be
identical to what was reviewed and approved by OSM on April 7,
1994, 59 FR 16538 (UT-913). Please insert the promulgated

language into your official copies of the Utah rules.

A copy of this memorandum and the attachment are also belng
transmitted to OSM-HQ for input into COALEX.

If you have any questions contact Vernon Maldonado at
505-766-1486.
Attachment

cc: Edgar Stanton, OSM-HQ o

INITIALS _ REG/Date INE/Date AML/Date

Originator: W 7/?/7ﬁ/

Branch Chief:

Deputy FOD: Document Name/Date:

C:\wpS1l\vem\plut827.2
FOD: cem 7/25/95

Typist: - /Jm e o File Code:
/

Secretary:

Overnight: Fax:



DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING

Michael O. Leavitt 355 West North Temple
ichael O. Leavi . .
Governor 3 Triad Cenfer, Suite 350
Ted Stewart Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203

Executive Director 801-538-5340

James W. Carter || 801-359-3940 (Fax)
'Division Director | 801-538-5319 (TDD) July 21, 1995

@ State of Utah

i g MessAGE

LA Aobe
Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director i 1T EHMETT
Office of -Surface Mining L. MEADORS
Reclamation & Enforcement — —-
505 Marquette N.W., Suite 1200 \| 8 MARTINEZ N
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102 M D. MARTINEZ /1/4/ D NN

[}

Re: UT-025-FOR, Highwalls 5. RATHEUM |

DearWVI'&%ér

This communication is in response to the notice which appeared in the
Federal Register on May 30, 1995, at 60 FR 28040. The subject notice announced
approval of Utah's previously submitted program amendments and listed required
program amendments at 30 CFR 944.15 and 30.CFR 944.16, respectively., As you
know, the Utah program amendments set out in my letter of November 12, 1993,
and as revised on June 28 and November 3, 1994, contained proposed rule
changes which were intended to be enacted following OSM approval. Now, with
the bulk of these rules approved via the May 30, 1995, notice, and the balance
contained in a required amendment, Utah has begun the actual rulemaking process
and requires additional time. ' "

While the rules approved by the Federal Register notice of May 30, 1995,
require no actual action by OSM (since they are approved pending promulgation), |
am asking at this time that you recognize that more time will be required until
formal adoption, and for the required amendment, that it be required to be
performed by October 31, 1995, a 90-day extension for performance.

Should there be additional information required under this program
amendment, please contact Ron Daniels, Lowell Braxton, or me. Thank you for

your prompt action at this time.
Very tr urs,
N\
N

es W. Carter
gctor
jbe
cC: R. Seibel
R. Daniels
P:HIWALEXT.LTR
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the administratiop and management of

" Montana’s reclamation program.

As discussed i
Director approve
- procedures concerning consultation and
coordination by the designated agency
in administering Montana’s AMLR
program.
As discussed id finding No. 4, the
Director approves Exhibits B, C, and D
as additions to Méntana's AMLR Plan.
' The Director approves the proposed

finding No. 3, the
the policies and

Consistency of State and Federal
standards is requited by SMCRA.

VII Procedural Dé¢terminations '
1. Executive Order; 12866

This rule is exempted from review by
the Office of Management and Budget
{OMB) under Exechtive Order 12866
(Regulatory Plannipg and Review).

2. Executive Order{12778

The Department pf the Interior has
conducted the revipws required by
section 2 of Executjve Order 12778
{Civil Justice Reforin) and has
determined that this rule meets the
applicable standards of subsections {a)
and (b) of that sectipn. However, these
standards are not applicable to the
actual language of State AMLR plans
and revisions theredf since each such
plan is drafted and promulgated by a
specific State, not by OSM. Decisions on
proposed State AMLR plans and

categorically excluded from compliance
with the National Environmental Policy+
Act (42 U.S.C. 4332} by the Manual of
the Department of the [Interior (516 DM
6, appendix 8, paragraph 8.4B(29)).

' follows
§926.20 Approvai okMontana Abandoned -

This rule does ot contain .
information colleftion. requlrements that
require approval by OMB under the
Paperwork Redudtion Act (44.U.S.C.
3507 et seq.).

5. Regulatory Flekibility Act

The Department of the Interior has
determined that this rule will not have
a significant ecofomic impact on a
substantial number of small entities
under the Reguldtory Flexibility Act (5
U.S.C. 601 et seq.). The State submittal
which is the subject of this rule is based
upon Federal regulations for which an
economic analygis was prepared and
certification made that such regulations
would not have h significant economic
effect upon a substantial number of
small entities. Alccordingly, this rule
will ensure that [existing requirements
established by SMCRA or previously
promulgated by]OSM will be
implemented by the State. In making the
determination ap to whether this rule
ificant economic
ent relied upon the

4. Paperwork‘Réchction Act - ‘

ing Federal regulations.
List of Subjects|in 30 CFR Part 926

Intergovernmiental relations, Surface
mining, Underground mining.

Dated: July 13, 1995.
Richard J. Seibel
Regional Directorj Western Regional
Coordinating Center.

For the reasons set out in the

preamble, Title{30, Chapter VII,
Subchapter T of the Code of Federal

Regulations is agnended as set forth
below:
PART 926—MONTANA

1. The authorjty citation for Part 926
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 30 U.S.C. 1201 et seq.
2. Section 926.20 is revised to read as

Mine Land Reclamjation Plan.,

The Montana Abandoned Mine Land
Reclamation Plan, as submitted on June
16, 1980, and as fevised on July 28, -
1980, is approved effective November
24, 1980.-Copies pf the approved plan
are available at: .

(a) Montana Department of .
Environmental Qpality, 1625 Eleventh

. Avenue, Helena, MT 59620-1601.

(b) Office of Sutface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement, Casper
Field Office, 100 East B Street, Room -
2128, Casper, WY|82601-1918.

. 3.-Section 926. 25 it added to read as
follows:

§926.25 Approval of ban'doned mine land
reclamation plan amengdments.

September 19, 1983.
{b) Certification by
completion of all kno

March 22 and April 5,
effective July 19, 1995.

[FR Doc. 95-17715 Filed
BILLING CODE 4310-05-M

SPAT Uut-6x2 %

8-95; 8:45 am]

30 CFR Part 944

Utah Regulatory Program and Utah
Abandoned Mine Land Reclamation
(AMLR) Plan

AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM),
Interior.

ACTION: Final rule; approval of
amendment. ,

SUMMARY: OSM is approving, with
additional requirements, a proposed
amendment to the Utah regulatory
program and Utah AMLR plan
(hereinafter referred to as the “Utah
program’ and the “Utah plan.”) under
the Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA). The
amendment consists of proposed

‘revisions to the UtalrCbal Mining and
‘Reclamation Act of 1979. The revisions

to the Utah program concern definitions
of new terms; rulemaking authority and
procedures; administrative procedures;
Division of Oil, Gas and Mining
(Division) action on permit applications;
informal conferences; appeals and
further review; release of performance
bonds; revegetation standards on lands
eligible for remining; operator
requirements for underground coal -
mining; contest of violation or amount
of penalty; violations of Utah’s program
or permit conditions; judicial review of
rules and orders; repeal of specific
sections of the Utah Code Annotated
1953; and repeal dates of certain
provisions of the Utah program. The
revisions to the Utah plan concern lands
and water eligible for reclamation,
recovery of reclamation costs, and liens
against reclaimed lands. The
amendment is intended to revise the

. Utah program to be consistent with the
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- Utah Administrative Procedures Act,

and to revise the-Utah program and
Utah plan to be consistent with SMCRA,

" and improve operational efficiency.

EFFECTIVE DATE: ]uly 19, 1995. .

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
James F. Fulton, Chief; Denver Field
Division, Western Regional '
Coordinating Center, Telephone: (303)
672--5524.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

L. Background on the Utah Program and
the Utah Plan

On January 21, 1981, and June 3,
1983, the Secretary of the Interior
conditionally approved the Utah
program and approved the Utah plan.

General background information on the |

Utah program and Utah plan, including
the Secretary’s findings, the disposition
of comments, the conditions of approval
of the Utah program, and approval of
the Utah plan, can be found in the
January 21, 1981, and June 3, 1983,
publications of the Federal Register (46
FR 5899 and 48 FR 24876). Subsequent
actions concerning Utah’s program and
program amendmerits can be found at
30 CFR 944.15, 944.16, and 944.30.
Subsequent actions concerning Utah’s
plan amendments can be found at 30
CFR 944.25.

II. Proposed Amendment

" By letter dated April 14, 1994, Utah
submitted a proposed amendment to its
program and plan pursuant to SMCRA
(administrative record No. UT-917).
The amendment consists of proposed
revisions to the Utah Coal Mining and
Reclamation Act of 1979. Utah
submitted the proposed amendment in
part to make its program and plan
consistent with SMCRA and in part at
its own initiative to make its program
consistent with the Utah Administrative
Procedures Act, thereby improving
operational efficiency.

The Utah program provisions of the
Utah Coal Mining and Reclamation Act
of 1979 that Utah proposed to revise
were: Utah Code Annotated (UCA) 40—
10-2, purpose of Chapter 10; (2) UCA
40-10-3, definitions of new terms
“adjudicative proceeding,” “lands
eligible for remining,” and
“unanticipated event or condition;” (3)
UCA 40-10-6.5, rulemaking authority

_and procedure; (4) UCA 40-10-6.7,

administrative procedures; (5) UCA 40—
10-7, prohibition of financial interest in
any coal mining operation; (6) UCA 40—
10-8, coal exploration rules issued by
the Division and penalty for violation;
(7) UCA 40-10-10, permit applications;
(8) UCA 40-10-11, Division action on
the permit application; (9)-UCA 40-10-

12, revision or modification of permit
provisions; (10) UCA 40-10-13, .
informal conferences; (11) UCA 40-10—
14, permit approval or disapproval,
appeals, and further review; (12) UCA .
40-10-15, performance bonds; (13) UCA
40-10-16, release of performance bond,
surety, or deposit; (14) UCA 40-10~17,
revegetation standards on lands eligible
for remining; (15) UCA 40-10-18,
operator requirements for underground
coal mining; (16) UCA 40-10-19,
information provided by the permittee
to the Division and right of entry; (17}
UCA 40-10-20, contest of violation or
amount of penalty; (18) UCA 40-10-21,
civil action to compel compliance with
Utah’s program and other rights not
affected; (19) UCA 40-10-22, violations
of Utah'’s program or permit conditions;
(20} UCA 40-10-24, determination of
unsuitability of lands for surface coal
mining; and (21) UCA 40-10-30,
judicial review of rules or orders. Utah
also proposed to repeal UCA 40-10—4,
“Mined land reclamation provisions
applied,” and UCA 40-10-31,
“Chapter’s procedures supersede Title

‘63, Chapter 46b.” Finally, Utah
proposed to repeal UCA 40-10-11(5),

modification of permit issuance
prohibition, and UCA 40-10-17(2){t)(ii),
revegetation standards on ‘lands eligible
for remining, effective September 30,
2004.

The Utah plan provisions of the Utah
Coal Mining and Reclamation Act of
1979 that Utah proposed to revise were:
(1) UCA 40-10-25, lands and water
eligible for reclamation; (2) UCA 4010~
27, entry upon land adversely affected
by past coal mining practices, State

acquisition of land and public sale, and .

water pollution control and treatment
plants; and (3) UCA 40-10-28, recovery
of reclamation costs and liens against
reclaimed land. .

-‘OSM announced receipt of the
proposed amendment in the May 12,
1994, Federal Register (59 FR 24675),
provided an opportunity for a public
hearing or meeting on its substantive
adequacy, and invited public comment
on its adequacy (administrative record
No. UT-926). Because no one requested
a public hearing or meeting, none was

held. The public comment period ended

on June 13, 1994.

During its review of the amendment, -
OSM identified concerns relating to the-
provisions of the Utah Coal Mining and
Reclamation Act of 1979 at UCA 40-10~
3(1), definition of “adjudicative
proceeding;”” UCA 40-10-4,
applicability of provisions of UCA 40-
8; UCA 40-10-6.7 and Utah '
Administrative Rule (Utah Admin. R.)
641-100-100, administrative '
procedures; UCA 40-10-11(3) schedule

of applicant’s mining law violations;
UCA 40-10-11(5), remining operation
violations resulting from unantxc1pated
events or conditions; UCA 40—
1013(2)(b), location of informal
conferences; UCA 40-1014(6)(c), appeal
to district court and further review;
UCA 40-10-16(6), information
conference or formal hearings
concerning performance bond release
decisions; UCA 40-10-18(4), damage
resulting from underground coal mining
subsidence; UCA 40-10-20(2)(e),
contest of a violation or amount of a
civil penalty; UCA 40-10-22(2)(b),
cessation order, abatement notice or
show cause order; UCA 40-10-22(3){e),
costs assessed against the permittee or
any person having an interest that is or
may be adversely affected by the notice
or order of ¢he Board of Oil, Gas and
Mining (Board); and UCA 40-10-28
(1}(b) and (2)(b), recovery of reclamation
costs and liens against reclaimed land.
OSM notified Utah of the concerns by
letter dated October 24, 1994
{administrative record No. UT—980).

Utah responded in a letter dated
December 7, 1994, by submitting a
revised amendment and additional .
explanatory information (administrative
record No.-UT-997). Utah proposed
revisions to its Rules of Practice and
Procedure of the Board at Utah Admin. .
R. 641-100-100, administrative
procedures. Utah.also proposed
revisions to and additional explanatory
information for UCA 40-10-14(6),
appeal to district court and further
review, UCA 40-10—4, mined land
reclamation provisions applied, UCA
40-10-16(6), formal hearings or
informal conferences, and UCA 40-10-
22(2)(b), cessatiorf ottlers, abatement
notices, or show cause orders.

Based upan the revisions to and
additional explanatory information for
the proposed program and plan
amendment submitted by Utah, OSM
reopened the public comment period in
the December 15, 1994, Federal Register
(59 FR 64636, administrative record No. -
UT--1002). The public comment penod
ended on December 30, 1994.

IIL Director’s Findings

As discussed below, the Dxrector, in
accordance with SMCRA and 30 CFR
732.15 and 732.17, finds, with
additional requirements, that the
proposed program and plan amendment
submitted by Utah on April 14, 1994,
and as revised by it and supplemented
with additional explanatory information
on December 7, 1994, is no less effective
than the corresponding Federal
regulations and no less stringent than
SMCRA. Accordingly, the Director
approves the proposed amendment.’
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1. Nonsubstantzve Rewsxons to Utah s
Statutes

Utah proposed revisions to the
following previously-approved statutes
- that are nonsubstantive in nature and
consist of minor editorial, punctuation,
grammatical, and recodification changes
(corresponding SMCRA provisions are
listed in parentheses):

UCA 40-10-2 (1) through {6), purpose
(section 102 of SMCRA),

" UCA 40-10-3 (2) through (7), (9) through
(20), and (22), recodification of definitions
for the terms “alluvial valley floors,”
‘“approximate original contour,” “Board,”
“Division,” “imminent danger to the health
and safety of the public,” “employee,”
“operator,” “other minerals,” “permit,”
*“permit applicant,” or “applicant,”
“permitting agency,” “permit area,”
“permittee,” “person,” “prime farmland,”
“reclamation plan,” “‘surface coal mining and
reclamation operations,” “surface coal
mining operations,” and “unwarranted .
failure to comply” (sections 701 (1), (2), (8),
(13} through (21), (28), (29), and (33) of
SMCRA), .

UCA 40-10-6.5 (2) and (3) [recodlﬁcatxon]
rulemaking procedures (section 505 of
SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-7(1), prohibited financial
interest in mining operations (section 201(f)
of SMCRA),
~ UCA 40-10-8 (1) and (3), exploration rules
issued by Division and penalty for violation
(section 512 of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-10(2), submission of
application and reclamation plan (section
507 of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-~11(1), (2) (a) through (d),
{e)(ii), {f) (i) and (iii); and (4} (a) and (b),
Division action on permit application,
requirements for approval, and restoration of
prime farmland (section 510 of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-12(3), revision or modification
of permit provisions (section 511(c) of
SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-14 (2) and (3), notice to the
applicant of approval or disapproval of the
application and hearings (section 514 of
SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-15(1), performance bonds
(section 509(a) of SMCRA},
~ UCA 40-10~-16(1), {3), and (6)(a), release of

performance bond, surety, or deposit; action
ot application for relief of bond; and formal
hearings or informal conferences (section 519
of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10~-17(2)(g); (2)(j) (i}(B) and (ii} (A)
and (B}; (2)(m); (2){0) and (o) (i), (iv}, and (v);
* (2)(p} ()(F), (ii), and (iii); (2)8(i): (2)(v)(viii);

(3)(b) and (b)(ii); (3)(c); (4) (a) and (d); and

{5), performance standards for all coal mining

and reclamation operations, additional

standards for steep-slope surface coal mining,
- and variances (section 515 of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10~-18(1), (2)(i)(i)(B}, (2)(j), and
(5), underground coal mining, rules regarding
surface effects, operator requirements for
underground coal mining, and applicability
of other chapter prov1s1ons (section 516 of
SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-19(1) and (2)(a), information
provided by the permittee to the Division and

1nspect10ns by the DlVlSlOIl (sectlons (517(b)
and (b)(3) of SMCRA), -

UCA 40~-10-21(1)(a)(i) and (n) (2)(a)(ii),
and (), civil action to compel compliance
with chapter, jurisdiction, and other rights
not affected (section 520 of SMCRA),

UCA 40~-10-22 (1)(c) and (2)(a)(i), violation
of chapter or permit conditions and
inspections (section 521 of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-24(1)(c) (i) (A), (B), (C), and
(D), and (ii); (e) (i), (ii), and (iii); and (2) (a)
and (b), determination of unsuitability of
lands for surface coal mining, petitions, and
public hearings (section 522 of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-25(2) (d) and (e)
(recodification] and (3) and (3)(a), AMLR

program, expenditure priorities, and eligible
lands and water (sections 402(g)(4), 403, and
404 of SMCRA), and

UCA 40-10-27 (5)(a) and (12)(b), entry
upon land adversely affected by past coal
mining practices and State acquisition of
lands {sections 407(g) and 413 of SMCRA).

Because the proposed revisions to
these previously-approved statutes are
nonsubstantive in nature, the Director
finds that these proposed Utah statutes
are no less stringent than SMCRA. The
Director approves these proposed
statutes.

2. Substantive Revisions to Utah’s
Statutes That Are Substantively

Identical to the Corresponding. Provzswﬁ

of SMCRA

Utah proposed revisions to the
following statutes that are substantive in
nature and contain language that is
substantively identical to the
requirements of the corresponding
SMCRA provisions (listed in
parentheses).

UCA 40-10-3 (8) and (21), definitions for
the terms “lands eligible for remining"” and
“unanticipated event or condition” (sections
701 (33) and (34) of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-11(5) (b}, and {c), Division
action on permit application and
requirements for approval (section 510{e) of
SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-17(2)(t)(ii), performance
standards for lands eligible for remining .-
(section 515(b){20)(B) of SMCRA),

UCA 40-10-22(1) (d), and (3) (a}, (b), (d),
and (f), violations of chapter or permit
conditions; cessation orders, abatement
notices, or show cause orders; suspension or
revocation of permits; and reviews (sections

" 521(a)(4) and 525 (a)(1) and (a)(2) and (d) of

SMCRA), and

UCA 40-10-~25(2)(d) {deletion], 3(b), (4), ’

(5), and (6), AMLR program and eligible
lands and water (sectxon 402(g)(4) of
SMCRA).’

Because these proposed Utah statutes
are substantively identical to the
corresponding provisions of SMCRA,
the Director finds that they are no less
stringent than SMCRA. The Director
approves these proposed statute
provisions. A

. 3. UCA 40-10-3(1), Definition of
“Adjudicative Proceeding”

Utah proposed at UCA 40—10—3(1) a
definition for the term “adjudicative

proceeding” to mean “a division or

board action or proceeding that
determines the legal rights, duties,
privileges, immunities, or other legal
interests of one or more identifiable
persons, including all actions to grant,
deny, revoke, suspend, modify, annul,
withdraw, or amend an authority, right,
permit, or license.”-This definition is
similar to the definitions of the same -
term at existing UCA. 63—46b—2(1)(a) as
described at UCA 63-46b-1 of the Utah
Administrative Procedures Act (UAPA)
and Utah Admin. R. 641-100-200 of the
Rules of Practice and Procedure of the
Board, except that the proposed.
definition at UCA 40-10-3(1) does not
contain the phrase “and judicial review
of all such actions.”

The term “adjudicative proceeding” is
not spec1ﬁcally defined in the .
provisions of SMCRA or the Federal
regulations at 30 CFR Chapter VIL
Although there is no counterpart
definition of “‘adjudicative proceeding”
in SMCRA or the implementing Federal
regulations, section 526(e} of SMCRA
provides, in part, that “[alction of the
State regulatory authority pursuant to an
approved State program shall be subject
to judicial review by a court of
competent jurisdiction in accordance
with State law * * *.”

UCA 40-10-30, which is Utah’s
counterpart to 526(e) of SMCRA,
establishes requirements for judicial
review of any “rule or order of the
Board.” However, the propased
definition at UCA 407-10‘—)3(1) of

“‘adjudicative proceedlng does not

.reference the judicial review provision

at UCA 40—-10-30(1), and by not
specifically providing for “judicial
review of all such actions” in the
proposed definition, the implication is
that judicial review is not included in
“adjudicative proceedings.” The
inconsistency between definitions of the
same term within provisions of the Utah
regulatory program and the lack of
consistency between the provisions of
UCA 40-10-3(1) and 40-10-30 were
pointed out to Utah by OSM in its
October 24, 1994, issue letter (issue No.
1). In order to be consistent with its own
provisions at UCA 40-10~-30(1), which
do require judicial review of

" adjudicative proceedings, and with its

other existing definitions of
“adjudicative proceedings” at UCA 63—
46b-2(1)(a), which is further clarified at
UCA 63-46b-1, and Utah Admin. R.
641~100-200, Utah, in its December 7,
1994, response to OSM’s issue letter,

Ll &L g
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stated that it would pursue the
inclusion of judicial review in its

definition of “adjudicative proceeding” .

at UCA 40-10-3(1) during its 1996
legislative session.

Therefore, the Director finds that
Utah’s proposed definition of
“adjudicative proceeding” at UCA 40—
10-3(1), while not inconsistent with the
provisions of SMCRA because there is
no Federal counterpart definition for
this term, is inconsistent with the
definition of the same term elsewhere at
UCA 63-46b—2(1)(a), as clarified at UCA
63—46b—1, of the UAPA, and the
implementing rules at Utah Admin. R.
641—100—200. With the requirement that
Utah further revise its definition of
“adjudicative proceeding” at UCA 40— -
10-3(1) to include judicial review of
agency actions, the Director is
approving Utah’s proposed definition of
“adjudicative proceeding” at UCA 40—
10-3(1).

4. Repeal of UCA 40-10-4, Applicability
of Provisions of UCA 40-8

Utah proposed to repeal its prov1sxons
at UCA 40-10—4, which concern the
applicability of provisions of Title 40,
Chapter 8 and its implementing rules at
Utah Admin. R. Part 647 to the State’s
coal mining and reclamation operations.
UCA 40-8 and Utah Admin. R. Part 647
pertain to the Utah Mined Land
Reclamation Act and contain general
reclamation standards for mining,
principally for hard rock mining. There
are no Federal SMCRA to either UCA
40-10—4 or 40-8. .

The repeal of UCA 40~10—4 would
appear to eliminate any applicability of
the provisions of UCA 40-8 and Utah
Admin. R. Part 647 to the Utah program.
OSM notes, however, that UCA 40-10—
6, which is not proposed for revision in
this amendment, also references UCA
40-8. The language at UCA 40-10-6
provides that the Board and Division
have powers, functions, and duties in
addition to those provided in Title 40,
Chapter 8, and that employees, agents,
and contractors are authorized by the
Board and Division to enter upon any
property for the purpose of carrying out
the provisions of Chapter 10 and
Chapter 8, Title 40.

OSM, in its October 24, 1994, issue
letter {issue No. 2), asked Utah to clarify
whether the Board and Division derived
some or all of their powers, functions,
or duties necessary for the
administration of Utah’s coal program
from provisions contained in UCA 40—
8. Utah stated in its December 7, 1994,

. response to this issue that UCA 40-10-
4 was proposed for deletion from the
Utah Coal Mining and Reclamation Act
in order to remove ambiguity from

Utah'’s statute to clarify which, if any, of
the UCA 40-8 provisions would apply"

“to the Staté’s coal regulatory program.

Utah clarified further that the reference
to UCA 40-8 at UCA 40-10-6 stems
from the leglslatlve branch awarding

_more powers in 1979 to the Board and

Division and that such reference is only
for historical purposes. Utah also stated
that should there be provisions of UCA’
40-8 or 40-6 which are discovered to
apply to coal or which, when changed,
would impact Utah’s coal regulatory
program, these provisions would be
included in a program amendment.
Based upon the explanation provided
by Utah and the State’s assurance that
the Board and Division do not derive’
powers needed to implement Utah's
coal regulatory program from UCA 40—
8, the Director finds that the deletion of
the UCA 40-10—4 from the Coal Mining
and Reclamation Act of 1979 is not
inconsistent with SMCRA and approves
the deletion of this statutory provision.

5. UCA 40-10-6.5 (1) and (3},
Rulemaking Authority and Deletion of
Administrative Procedures

Utah proposed the addition of new
language at UCA 40-10-6.5(1) to
provide that ““[t}he board shall
promulgate rules under this chapter in
accordance with Title 63, Chapter 46a,
Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act
[UARAL OSM, in the January 21, 1981,
Federal Register (46 FR 5899}, approved
UARA provisions that were
incorporated by Utah into its program as
part of its original program submittal.

Section 503(a)(7) of SMCRA proirides,
in part, that “[e]ach state * * * shall -
submit to the Secretary, * * * a State
program which demonstrates that such
State has the capability of carrying out
the provisions of this Act and meeting
its purposes through * * * rules and
regulations consistent with regulations
issued by the Secretary.pursuant to this
Act.”

The Director finds that the proposed
addition at UCA 40-10-6.5(1) is not
inconsistent with section 503(a)(7) of
SMCRA and the Director.approves the
proposed addition of this statute.

In addition, Utah proposed to delete
UCA 40~10-6.5(3) in its entirety.
Existing UCA 40-10-6.5(3) prov1des
that:

{hlearings under this chapter shall be

conducted in a manner which guarantees the
parties’ due process rights. This includes, but

_is not limited to, the right to examine any ..

evidence presented to the [hearing]
commiftee, the right to cross-examine any
witness, and a prohibition of ex parte
communication between any party and a
member of the board.

Utah prdposed at UCA 40-10-
6.7(2)(b) the addition of similar °
provisions to those proposed for
deletion {see finding No. 6). The
Director finds that, with the proposed
addition of similar language at UCA 40—
10-6.7(2)(b), the deletion of UCA 40—
10-6.5(3) is not inconsistent with
SMCRA. The Director approves the
deletion of this statute.

6. UCA 40-10-6.7 and Utah Admin. R.
641-100-100, Administrative
Procedures

Utah proposed new administrative
procedures at UCA 40-10-6.7 to
provide:

(1)(a) Informal adjudicative proceedings
shall be conducted by the division under this
chapter and shall be referred to as
conferences’or informal conferences.

{b) The conduct of conferences shall be
governed by rules adopted by the board
which are in accordance with Title 63,
Chapter 46b, Administrative Procedures Act
{UAPAL

(2)(a)(i} Formal adjudicative proceedings
shall be conducted by the division or board
under this chapter and shall be referred to as
hearings or public hearings.

(ii) The conduct of hearings shallbe
governed by rules adopted by the board
which are in accordange with Title 63,
Chapter 46d, Admunstrat,we Procedures Act
[UAPA].

(b) Hearmgs under thls chapter shall be
conducted in a manner which guarantees the
parties’ due process rights. This includes:

(i) the right to examine any evidence
presented to the board;

(ii) the right to cross-examme any witness;
and

(iii) a prohibition of ex parte
communication between any party and a
member of the board.

(c) A verbatim réceti%f each public
hearing required by this chapter shall be
made, and a transcript made available on the
motion of any party or by order of the board.

Although not explicitly stated in this
provision, the Utah Admin. R. Parts 645
and 641 rules respectively apply to
informal and formal adjudicative
proceedings and provide clear direction

‘on how formal and informal hearings

are to be conducted. There are no
specific counterpart provisions in
SMCRA, however, as discussed in
finding No. 5 above; Utah’s proposed
deletion of UCA.40-10-6.5(3) in its
entirety and the addition of the deleted
provisions at UCA 40-10-6.7(2)(b) and
(b)(i), (ii), and (iii) provides hearing
requirements that are not inconsistent
with SMCRA and its implementing’
Federal regulatmns

Utah, in this amendment, also

* proposed a revision to its Rules of

Practice and Procedure of the Board at
Utah Admin. R. 641-100-100 to add the
phrase “the Coal Program Rules” in the
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sentence “[t)he rules for mformal
adjudicative proceedings are in the Coal
- Program Rules, the Oil and Gas
Conservation Rules and the Mineral
Rules.” OSM previously approved the
informal proceeding provisions of Utah
Admin. R.-645 and formal proceeding
provisions of Utah Admin. R. 641.

The Director finds that the addition of
new administrative procedures at UCA
40-10-6.7 is not inconsistent with
SMCRA. OSM wishes to clarify that any
future rulés implemented by Utah in
accordance with UAPA must be revised
and determined to be consistent with
SMCRA. In addition, the Director finds
that the proposed revision at Utah
Admin. R. 641-100-100 referencing
Utah’s coal mining rules at Utah Admin.
R. Part 645 is not inconsistent with
SMCRA. Therefore, the Director
approves the addition of UCA 40~10—
6.7 and the revision of Utah Admin. R.
641-100-100.

7. UCA 40-10-11(3), Schedule of
Applicant’s Mining Law Violations and
Pattern of Violations Determination

Utah proposed to revise UCA 40-10-
11(3) to provide, in part:

[tihe applicant shall file with his permit
application a schedule listing any and all
notices of violations of this chapter, any state
or federal program or law approved under the
Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act

of 1977, 30 U.S.C. Sec. 1201 et seq., and any

law, rule, or regulation of the United States,
State of Utah, or any department or agency
in the United States pertaining to air or water
environmental protection incurred by the
apphcant in connection with any surface coal
mining operation during the three-year
period prior to the date of application. * * *
no permit shall be issued to an applicant
after a finding by the board * * * that the
applicant, or the operator specified in the
application, controls or has controlled
mining operations with a demonstrated
pattern of willful violations of this chapter of
such nature and duration with such resulting
irreparable damage to the environment as to
indicate an intent not to comply with the
provisions of this chapter.

Emphasis added. As used by Utah in
~UCA 40-10-11(3), “this chapter” means
UCA Title 40, Chapter 10.

Section 510(c) of SMCRA provides, in
part, that (1) the applicant shall file with
the permit application a schedule listing
any and all notices of violations of,
among other things, “this Act;” and (2)
the permit shall not be issued after a
finding that the apphcant ‘or the
operator specified in the application,
controls or has controlled mining
operations with a demonstrated pattern

. of willful violations of “this Act” of
such nature and duration with such
resulting irreparable damage to the
environment as to indicate an intent not

to comply with. the prov1s1ons of “this.
Act.” The reference to “this Act” in
section 510{c) of SMCRA includes
SMCRA, the implementing Federal
regulations,-and all State and Federal
programs approved under SMCRA. (See
48 FR 44344, 44389, September 28,
1983. See also 53 FR 38868, 38882—-
38883, October 3, 1988.) :

with regard to the first sentence of
UCA 40—10—11(3) that requires that the
permit application contain a schedule
listing any and all notices of violations,
the provision encompasses violations of
all State and Federal programs approved
under SMCRA, but it does not
encompass violations of SMCRA itself
or violations of the implementing
Federal regulations. With regard to the
portion of UCA 40-10-11(3) that deals
with the pattern of violations, “this
chapter” encompasses only violations of
the State statute. It does not encompass
violations of SMCRA, the implementing
Federal regulations, any State and
Federal programs enacted under
SMCRA, or other provisions of the
approved Utah program.

OSM discussed
October 24, 1994, issue letter to Utah
(issue No. 4). Utah agreed in its
December 7, 1994, response to OSM'’s
issue letter that UCA 40-10-11(3)
needed to be revised in accordance with
the deficiencies identified in OSM’s
issue letter. Utah stated that it would, in
its 1996 legislative session, pursue the
changes to UCA 40-10-11(3).

Based upon the above, the Director,
with the requirement that Utah revise
UCA 40-10-11(3) to require that (1) the
schedule of the applicant’s mining law
violations required in connection with a
permit application includes violations
of SMCRA and the implementing -
Federal regulations and (2) the pattern
of violations determination discussed
therein includes violations of SMCRA,
the implementing Federal regulations,
any State or Federal programs enacted
under SMCRA, and other provisions of
the approved Utah program, finds UCA
40-10-11(3) to be no less stringent than
section 510(c) of SMCRA. The Director
approves the proposed revisions at UCA
40-10-11(3). ) -

8. UCA 40-10-11(5)(a), Remining
. Operation Violations Resulting From
Unanticipated Events or Conditions

Proposed UCA 40-10~-11(5)(a)
provides that the prohibition ef UCA
40-10-11(3), which limits the issuance
of a permit for violations {discussed
‘above at finding No. 7), does not apply
to a permit application after October 14,
1992, if the violation resulted from an
unanticipated event or condition that
occurred at a surface coal mining

ese issues in its

operanon on lands eligible for remxmng
under a permit held by the person -
makmg the application. This provision .
is similar to section 510(e) of SMCRA,
except that section 510(e) of SMCRA
applies after the date of enactment of . -
the Energy Policy Act of 1992, which
was October 24, 1992. OSM discussed
the difference in dates in its October 24,
1994, issue letter to Utah (issue No. 4).
Utah stated in its December 7, 1994,
response to OSM’s issue letter that the
October 14 date at UCA 40-10~-11(5)(a)
is a typographical error and that the
correct date should be October 24.

With the requirement that Utah revise
UCA 40-10-11(5){a) to reflect an
effective date of “after October 24,
1992,” the Director finds UCA 40-10—
11(5)(a) to be no less stringent than
section 510(e) of SMCRA. The Director
approves proposed UCA 40-10-11(5)(a).

9. UCA 40—10—13(2}(b}, Location of
Informal Conferences

Existing UCA 40-10-13(2)(b) states
that, if a person files written objections
on an initially-proposed or revised mine
permit application, the Division shall
hold an informal conference within a
reasonable time of the receipt of the
objections or request. Utah proposed to
revise this rule to further state, among
other things, that: r
[tihe conference shall be informal and shall
be conducted in accordance with the
procedures described in Subsection (b), -
irrespective of the requirements of Section
{UCA] 63—46b~5, Administrative Procedures
Act. The conference may be held in the
locality of the coal mining and reclamation
operation if requested within a reasonable
time after written objections or the request
for an informal conference are received by
the division. )

Emphasis added. The procedures
described in subsection (b) of UCA 40~
10-13(2) are consistent with the
procedures for informal conferences
established by section 513(b) of SMCRA,
except that SMCRA requires that the
regulatory authority shall hold an
informal conference in the locality of
the proposed mining, if requested
within a reasonable time of the receipt-
of such written objections or the
request.

Because Utah did not submit any
rationale for this statute, it is not clear
what it intended with the use of the
word “may’’ instead of “shall.” It is
possible that Utah intended, as section
513(b) of SMCRA requires, that the
Division would always hold an informal

-conference in the locality of the

proposed mining when requested °
within a reasonable time after receipt of
the objections or request However, the
use of the word “may” in the proposed
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statute would appear to allow Utah

. discretion to not hold the informal

conference in the locality of the
proposed mining even when the
Division receives a request to do so-
within a reasonable time. The Director
finds that UCA 40-10-13(2)(b), to the
extent that the first sentence of the
proposed new language at this statute
requires that the conference be informal
and be conducted in accordance with
the procedures for informal conferences,
is no less stringent than section 513(b}
of SMCRA, and approves this part of the
statute. However, to the extent that the
second sentence Utah proposed to add
at UCA 40-10-13(2)(b) allows the
Division to possibly not hold the
informal conference in the locality of
the coal mining and reclamation
operation when such conference is
requested within a reasonable time, the
Director finds UCA 40-10-13(2){(b) is
less stringent than section 513(b) of
SMCRA. Utah stated in its December 7,
1994, response to OSM’s October 24,
1994, issue letter {issue No. 6), that it
would pursue a change from the
discretionary “may"’ in holding the
informal conference in the locality of
the mining operation to a mandatory
“shall” in its 1995 legislative session.
Therefore, with the requirement that
Utah revise UCA 40-10-13(2)(b) to
change the word “may” to “shall” in the
sentence that begins “[t]he conference
may be held in the locality of the coal
mining and reclamation operation
* * * the Director finds UCA 40-10-
13(2)(b) to be no less stringent than
section 513(b) of SMCRA. The Director
approves the proposed revisions at UCA
40-10-13(2)(b).

10. UCA 40-10-14(6), Appeal to District
Court and Further Review

. In response to the required
amendment at 30 CFR 944.16(b)

- (September 27, 1994; 59 FR 49185,

49186; finding No..3), which required
Utah to alleviate a discrepancy in the

. requirements addressing the jurisdiction .
-of the Utah Supreme Court and the State
-district courts, and at its own initiative,
Utah proposed to revise UCA 40—10—

" 14(6). Specifically, Utah proposed that:

(a) [aJn applicant or person with an interest

- which is or may be adversely affected who

has participated in the proceedings [to
determine whether a permit should be
issued) as an objector, and who is aggrieved
by the decision of the board, may appeal the
decision of the board directly to the Utah
Supreme Court.

(b) [ilf the board fails to act within the time

- limits specified in this chapter [UCA Title 40,
Chapter 10), the applicant or any person with

an interest which is or may be adversely
affected, who has requested a:hearing in

aocox_'dance with Subsection (3), may bring an

action in the district court for the county in
which the proposed operation is located.

- {c) [a]ny party to the action in district court
may appeal from the final judgment, order,
or decree of the district court.

_ (d) [tlime frames for appeals under
Subsections (6] {a) through (c} shall be
consistent with applicable provisions in
Section 63—46-14, Administrative Procedures

(Italics indicate new language
proposed to be added to this statute.)
Utah also proposed the deletion of the
provision at UCA 40-10-14(6)(b} that
required that “[rleview of the
adjudication of the district court is by
the [Utah] Supreme Court.”

Section 526{e) of SMCRA provides, in
pertinent part, that actions of the State
regulatory authority pursuant to an
approved State program are subject to
judicial review by a court of competent
jurisdiction in accordance with State

The Director finds that Utah’s
proposed procedures for further review
and appeal of decisions concerning
permit applications at UCA 40-10-14(6}
are consistent with and no less stringent
than the judicial review requirements of
section 526(e).of SMCRA. Therefore, the
Director approves proposed UCA 40—
10-14(6). The Director also notes that
the proposed revisions at UCA 40-10—
14(6) satisfy the required amendment at
30 CFR 944.16(b) (59 FR 49185, 49186;
September 27, 1994, finding No. 3),
which required Utah to amend this
statute to eliminate inconsistencies
regarding appellate procedures.
Accordingly, the Director is removing
the required amendment at 30 CFR

11. UCA-40-10-16(6) (b) through (d),
Informal Conferences or Formal
Hearings Pertaining to Performance
-Bond Release Decisions

. Utah proposed to delete its procedural
requirements pertaining to bond release
decisions at UCA 40-10-16(6) (b)
‘through (d) and:to replace them with a
reference in UCA 40-10-16(6)(d) to the
‘Board's Rules.of Practice and Procedure,
which are at Utah Admin. R. Part 641.

" Existing UCA 40-10-16(6)-is v
substantively-identical to the provisions
of sections 519 (f), (g), and (h) of
SMCRA, which provides, in pertinent
part, the requirements for advertising
notice of a hearing,.establishing an
informal conference to resolve written -

+ objections, gatheringevidence, and
compiling a verbatim record and- makmg

a.transcript available. .
The procedural requirements at
sectmns 519(f), (g}, and (h) of SMCRA

- are contained in the referenced Rules of

- Practice and Procedure of the Board at

'Utah Admin. R. Part 641. In addition,

Utah has clarified, that for the purposes
of UCA 40-10-16(6), all of the

- - provisions of Utah Admin. R. Part 641

apply to hearings held for the purpose
of bond release.

There is no counterpart provision in
SMCRA similar to Utah'’s provision at
UCA 40-10-16(6)(c) that allows an
informal conference to be converted to
a formal proceeding under the standards
set forth-at UCA 63—46b— of UAPA.
OSM requested in its October 24, 1994,
issue letter (issue No. 8) that Utah verify
that all procedural requirements
accompanying a formal hearing will
occur prior to continuing the conference
as a formal proceeding when an
informal conference is converted to a
formal proceeding under UCA 63-46b—
4. Utah responded in its December 7,

- 1994, letter that when a hearing is

converted to a formal proceeding from
an informal proceeding, all of the
requirements of a formal proceeding
apply.

Based upon Utah’s assurances that the
provisions of Utah Admin. R. Part 641,

-Rules of Practice and Procedure of the

Board, provide for counterpart
requirements to sections 519 (), (g), and
(h) of SMCRA, apply fo pond release
hearings, and that, when an informal

. hearing is converted to a formal hearing,
-the requirements of a formal proceeding

apply, the Director finds that the
revisions proposed by Utah at UCA 40—
10-16(6) are no less stringent than
sections 518 (f}, (g), and (b} of SMCRA.
The Director approves the revised
statute. '

12. UCA 40-10-18(4) la) through (c),
Damage Resulting From Underground

.Coal Mining Subsidence

Utah proposed new language at UCA
40-10-18(4) (a) through (c) to provide:

(a) [ulnderground coal mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1994, shall be
subject to the following requirement: The
permittee shall promptly repair, or
compensate for, material damage resulting
from subsidence caused to any occupied .
residential.dwelling and-related structures of

.noncommercial building.due to nnderground

coal mining aperations.:Repair of damage
will-include rehabilitation, restoration, or
replacement of the damaged occupied
residential dwelling and related structures of

... noncommercial building. Compensation shall

be provided to the owner-of the damaged

- occupied residential dwelling and related
- structures or noncommercial building and

will be in the full amount of the.diminution

" in value resulting from the subsidence.

Compensation may be accomplished by the

- purchase, prior to mining, of a

noncancellable premium prepaid insurance
policy.
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(b) [n]othing in Subsection (4) shall be
construed to prohil_)it or interrupt
underground coal mining operations. -

(c) [wlithin one year after the date of
enactment of Subsection (4), the board shall
adopt final rules to 1mplement Subsection

(4).

The proposed language at UCA 40—
10-18(4)(a) is substantively identical to
the language provided at section
720(a)(1) of SMCRA, which requires
repair or compensation for material
damage to certain structures resulting
from subsidence due to underground
coal mining. Therefore, the Director
finds that UCA 40-10-18(4)(a} is no less
stringent than SMCRA and approves the
statute.

The proposed language at UCA 40—
10-18(4)(b) is identical to the last
sentence of section 720(a)(2) of SMCRA,
which provides that “[n}othing in this
section shall be construed to prohibit or
interrupt underground coal mining
operations.” This proposed language is
consistent with section 720(a)(2) of
SMCRA and the Director approves it.
However, UCA 40~10-18(4){(b) lacks a
counterpart provision to the first
sentence of section 720(a)(2), which
requires the prompt replacement of any
drinking, domestic, or residential water
supply from a well or spring in
existence prior to the application for a
surface coal mining and reclamation
permit, which has been affected by
contamination, diminution, or
interruption resulting from underground
coal mining operations. As stated in the
March 31, 1995, Federal Register final
rule (60 FR 16722, 16745), if the
Director determines that certain State
program provisions should be amended
in order to be made no less effective that
the revised Federal rules, the individual
States will be notified in accordance
with the provisions of 30 CFR 732.17,
For Utah, this may mean that a 30 CFR
part 732 issue Jetter may be written ifa
determination is made that Utah’s
program is less effective than the -
Federal rules ¢oncerning the protection
of water supplies affected by
underground coal mining operations.

The proposed language at UCA 40—
10-18(4)(c) is Utah’s counterpart
provisions to section 720(b} of SMCRA,
which requires the promulgation,; after
providing naotice and an opportunity for
public comment, of final regulatmns to
~ implement the subsidence provisions of -
section 720 of SMCRA. The Director
finds that UCA 40-10-18(4)(c) is no less
stringent than section 720(b) of SMCRA
and approves it.

13. UCA 40-10-20(2)(e)(ii), Contest of
Violation or Amount of Civil-Penalty

In response to the Director’s previous
finding that UCA 40-10-20(3) was less
stringent than section 518(c) of SMCRA,
and the Director’s deferred decision on
this statutory provision (September 27,
1994; 59 FR 49185, 49187; finding No.
5), Utah proposed to create UCA 40-10—
20(2)(e)(ii) to require that, if the operator
charged with a violation fails to forward
the amount of the penalty to the
Division within 30 days of receipt of the
results of an informal conference, the
operator waives any opportunity “for
further review of the violation or to
contest the violation.”

Section 518(c) of SMCRA provides, in
part, that failure of the operator to

* forward the amount of the penalty to the

Secretary of the Interior within 30 days
shall result in a waiver of all legal rights
to contest the violation or the amount of
the penalty. Utah’s proposed phrase “for
further review of the violation or to
contest the violation™ addresses an
operator’s waiver of the right to contest
the fact of the violation, but does not
address an operator’s waiver of the right
to contest the amount of the civil
penalty.

The Director finds UCA 40—10—
22(2){(e)(ii) to be less stringent than
section 518(c) of SMCRA to the extent
that it does not preclude an operator
from contesting the amount of the
penalty when the operator does not
forward the amount of the civil penalty
to the Division within 30 days of the
operator’s receipt of the results of the
informal conference. Utah stated in its
December 7, 1994, response to OSM'’s
October 24, 1994, issue letter (issue No.
10) that it would pursue clarification in
its 1996 legislative session of what is”
waived when an operator fails to
forward the amount of the penalty to the
Division.

Therefore, with the reqmrement that.
- Utah revise UCA 40—10—20(2)(e)(n) to

' promde for a waiver of the operator’s

right to contest the amount of the civil
penalty when the operator fails to
forward the amount of the penalty to the
regulatory authority within 30 days of
receipt of the results of the informal
conference, the Director finds UCA 40—
10-20(2)(e)(ii) to be no less stringent
than section 518(c) of SMCRA. The
Director approves the proposed statute.

14. UCA 40—10—22(2)(b), Cessatzon
Orders, Abatement Notzces, and Show .
Cause Orders

“Utah proposed at UCA 40-10—
22(2)(b), among other things, that any
relief granted by a State district court to
enforce an order pursuant to UCA 40—

10—22(2)(a)(i) shall éontimie in effect

" until the completion or final

termination of all proceedings for
review of such order, unless prior to
completion or termination, the Utah
Supreme Court on review grants a stay
of enforcement or sets aside or modifies
the Board’s order that is being appealed.
Section 521{c) of SMCRA provides
that, under similar circumstances, any
relief granted by the Federal district

- court shall continue in effect until

completion or final termination of all
proceedings for review of such order,
unless prior thereto, the district court
granting such relief sets it aside or
modifies it. Section 521(d) of SMCRA
requires that an approved State program
contain the same or similar procedural
requirements gelating to the
enforcement provisions of section 521 of
SMCRA.

OSM requested in its October 24,
1994, issue letter that Utah clarify
whether the provisions of UCA 40-10-
22(2)(b) allow the State district court to
set aside or modify its own relief as
section 521{(d} of SMCRA does (issue
No. 11). Utah stated in its December 7,
1994, response to OSM'’s issue letter that
State law provides for the Utah Supreme
Court to be the authorityfor modifying
or setting aside a Board order or
decision, and that, to the extent that any
judicial body can reconsider its own
order or decision, the State district court
can also modify or set aside its own
order or decision. :

Based upon Utah’s explanation of its
rationale for the proposed revisions at
UCA 40—10—22(2](b) the Director finds
that this provision is consistent with the
provisions of section’531 ({:) of SMCRA.
The Director approves the proposed
revisions to UCA 40-10-22(2)(b).

15. UCA 40-10-22(3)(e), Costs Assessed
Against Either Party Adversely Affected
by the Board'’s Notice or Order

Utah proposed to revise UCA 40-10—
22(3)(e) to provide:

{wlhenever an order is entered under this
section or as a result of any adjudicative .
proceeding under this chapter, at the request
of any person, a sum equal to the aggregate
amount of all costs and expenses (including
attorney fees) as determined by the board to
have been reasonably incurred by tha't person
in connection with his participation in the
proceedings, including any judicial review of
agency actions, may be assessed against
either party as the court, resulting from
judicial review, or the board, resulting from
adjudicative proceedings, deems proper.

UCA 40-10-22(3)(e) is similar to
section 525(e) of SMCRA, except Utahis

. proposmg to change the term

“administrative proceedings” t
“adjudicative proceedings.” This
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change is consistent with the addmon of mlemahng (4 CFR 34385, August 3,

a definition for the term “adjudicative
proceeding” proposed by Utah in this
amendment at UCA 40-10-3(1). As
discussed in finding No. 3, the
definition of “adjudicative proceeding”
as proposed by Utah at UCA 40-10-3(1)
does not encompass judicial review.

Use of the term “adjudicative
proceeding” in UCA 40-10-22(3)(e)
allows Utah to limit the reimbursement
of costs and expenses incurred through
participation in the proceedings to only.
proceedings which are adjudicatory in
nature. Section 525(e} of SMCRA
provides for the award of costs and
expenses incurred in connection with
“any administrative proceeding.” Prior
to Utah’s adoption of the amendment
under consideration in this rulemaking,
UCA 40-10-22{3)(e) contained similar
language.

Both the Interior Board of Land
Appeals (IBLA) and the U.S. District
Court for the Utah District declined to
delineate the full reach of the phrase
“any administrative proceeding” in
section 525{e) of SMCRA when
presented with an opportunity to do so.
Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.
(NRDC), et al. v. Office of Surface
Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
(OSMj et al., 107 IBLA 339, 365 n. 12
(1989); Utah International, Inc. v.
Department of the Interior, 643 F. Supp.
819, 825 n. 25 (D. Utah 1986). However,
in deciding these cases, both IBLA and
the U.S. District Court held that this
phrase should not be read literally, but
rather must be interprefed in the context
of the legislative history of SMCRA and
case law concerning attorney fee and
expense awards under other statutes.
Both opinions contain extensive dicta
suggesting that the phrase could or
should be read to include only -
administrative proceedings of an
adjudicatory nature, not proceedings
that are part of the fact-finding process
culminating in an initial agency
decision, e.g., informal conferences on
permit applications. NRDC, supra, at
354-360; Utah International, supra, at
820-825. )

Furthermore, the Federal regulations
at 43 CFR 4.1290 and 4.1291, which
implement this section of SMCRA in
part, provide for an award of costs and
expenses only in connection with
administrative proceedings resulting in
the issuance of a final order by an
administrative law judge or IBLA. The
preamble to these regulations notes that
the Secretary rejected comments
requesting the scope of the rules be
expanded to allow the award of costs
and expenses in other types of
administrative proceedings, such as

1978).

Therefore, the Dn‘ector finds the Utah -
statutory provision at UCA 40-10—
22(3)(e) that allows for award of costs
and expenses in connection with an
adjudicatory proceeding is not
inconsistent with section 525(e) of
SMCRA and its implementing
regulations, as interpreted by case law.
The Director approves the proposed
revisions to this sttatute.

The Director’s approval is based upon
OSM’s interpretation that the term
“adjudicatory proceedings,” as used at
UCA 40-10-22(3)(e) includes all classes
of actions in which participants would
be eligible for an award of costs and
expenses under 43 CFR 4.1290 through
4.1295. The Director notes that, as more
case law develops, it may be necessary
in the future to further expand the
provisions at UCA 40-10-22(3)(e) to
include other types of administrative
proceedings. In that event, OSM would
notify Utah in accordance with 30 CFR
Part 732.

16. UCA 40-10-28 (1)(a)(ii) and (2)(a),
Recovery of Reclamation Costs and
Liens Against Reclaimed Lands

In response to the Director’s previous
finding that UCA 40-10-28(1)(a}(ii) and
40-10-28(2)(a) were not consistent with
sections 407(e) and 408(a) of SMCRA
and the Director’s deferred decision on
these statutory provisions (September
27,1994; 59 FR 49185, 49187-88;
finding Nos. 7 and 8), Utah proposed to
add new language to its provisions at
UCA 40-10-28(1)(a)(ii) and UCA 40-
10-28(2)(a).

Utah proposed at UCA 40-10—
28(1)(a)(ii) to require that the sale price
of land that is sold to the State or local
government for public purposes may not

" be less than the actual “cost of the

purchase of the property by the State
plus the™ costs of reclaiming the land.
This requirement is analogous to and no
less stringent than the counterpart
Federal provision at section 407(e) of
SMCRA, which provides that the sale
price of land sold to the State or local
government for public purposes may in
no case be less than the cost of purchase
and reclamation of such land.

- Utah also proposed the addition of a
new provision at UCA 40-10-28(2)(a) to
provide, in addition to other criteria,
that a lien will be placed against
reclaimed land except where the surface
owner “owned the land prior to May 2,
1977.” This specific requirement is
analogous to and no less stringent than
the requirement of section 408(a) of
SMCRA, which provides, in part, that
no lien shall be filed against the

property of any person who owned the
land prior to May 2, 1977. :

As discussed above, the revisions
proposed by Utah in this amendment at
UCA 40-10-28(1)(a)(ii) and 40-10—
28(2)(a) are consistent with sections
407(e) and 408(a) of SMCRA. Therefore,
the Director approves the proposed
revisions to these statutes.

17. UCA 40-10-30, Judicial Review of
Orders or Rules

Utah proposed new provisions at
UCA 40-10-30 to provide, in part:

(1) [jludicial review of adjudicative
proceedings under this chapter is governed
by Title 63, Chapter 46b, Administrative
Procedures Act, and provisions of this
chapter consistent with the Administrative
Procedures Act.

(2) []]udlclgl review of the board’s

‘rulemaking procedures and rules adopted

under this chapter is governed by Title 63,
Chapter 46a, Utah Administrative
Rulemaking Act.

(3] laln appeal from an order of the board
shall be directly to the Utah Supreme Court
and is not a trial de novo. * * *

(4) laln action or appeal involving an order
of the board shall be determined as
expeditiously as feasible and in accordance
with Subsection 78-2-2(3)(e)(iv). The Utah
Supreme Court shall determine the issues on
both questions of law and fact and shall
affirm or set aside the ruleor order, enjoin
or stay the effective date of agency action, or
remand the cause to the board for further
proceedings. * * *

(5] [i]f the board fails to perform any act
or duty under this chapter which is not
discretionary, the aggrieved person may bring
an action in the district court of the county
in which the operation or proposed operation
is located.

(Italics indicate new language proposed
to be added to this statute.) Utah also
proposed to delete the requirement at
existing UCA 40-10-30(3) that
“[rleview of the adjudication of the
district court is by the Supreme Court.”

The proposed revisions at UCA 40—
10-30 are consistent with the
requirements of the counterpart Federal
provisions of section 526 of SMCRA.
Therefore, the Director finds that the
proposed revisions at UCA 40-10-30
are no less stringent than section 526 of
SMCRA and approves them.

IV. Summary and Dlsposmon of
Comments

Following are summaries of all
substantive oral and written comments
on the proposed amendment that were
received by OSM, and OSM's response
to them.

1. Public Comments

OSM invited public.comments on the
proposed amendment, but none were
received.
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2. Federal Agency Comments

Pursuant to 732.17(h){11)(i), OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from various Federal
agencies with an actual or potential
interest in the Utah program and Utah
* AMLR plan.

In a telephone conversation on May
11, 1994, the Bureau of Mines stated
that it had no comments on the
proposed amendment (administrative
record No. UT-922).

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
responded in a letter dated May 23,
1994, that it found the proposed
changes to be satisfactory

. (administrative record No. UT—830).

In a letter dated May 18, 1995, the
Mine Safety and Health Administration
stated that its personnel had reviewed
the proposed amendment for possible
conflicts with MSHA regulations and
that no conflicts between the two were
found (administrative record No. UT—~
1056).

3. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) Concurrence and Comments

Pursuant to 30 CFR 732.17(h)(11)(i),
OSM is required to solicit the written
concurrence of EPA with respect to
those provisions of the proposed
program amendment that relate to air or
water quality standards promulgated
under the authority of the Clean Water
Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) or the Clean
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.). None
of the revisions that Utah proposed to
make in its amendment pertain to air or
water quality standards. Therefore, OSM
did not request EPA’s concurrence.

Pursuant to 732.17(h)(11)(i), OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from EPA (administrative
record No. UT-919). It responded on
May 9, 1994, that it believed that the
proposed amendment would have no
impact on water quality standards
promulgated under the authority of the
Clean Water Act, as amended (33 U.S.C.
1251 et seq.).

4. State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO) -*

.Pursuant to 30 CFR 732.17(h)(4}, OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from the SHPO
(administrative record Nos. UT-919).
The SHPO did not respond to OSM’s
request.

V. Director’s Decision

Based on the above findings, the
Director approves, with additional .
requirements, Utah's proposed
amendment as submitted on April 14,
1994, and as revised and supplemented
with additional explanatory information
on December 7, 1994.

The Director approves the following
sections of the proposed amendment, as
discussed in: finding No. 1, UCA 40~
10-2 (1) through (6), concerning -
purpose; UCA 40-10-3 (2] through (7)
(9) through (20), and (22)
[recodification], concerning the
definitions of certain terms; UCA 40—
10-6.5 (2) and (3) [recodification],
concerning rulemaking procedures
UCA 40-10-7(1), concemmg prohibited
financial interest in mining operations;
UCA 40-10-8 (1) and (3), concerning
exploration rules issued by the Division
and penalties for violations; UCA 40~
10-10(2), concerning submission of the
application and reclamation plan; UCA
40-10-11 (1), (2)(a) through (d), (e)(ii),
(B (1) and (iii), and (4) (a) and (b},
concerning Division action on the
permit application, requirements for
approval, and restoration of prime
farmland; UCA 40-10-12(3), concerning
revision or modification of permit
pr0v1smx;s, UCA 40-10-14 (2) and (3),
concerning notice to the applicant of
approval or disapproval of the
application and hearings; UCA 40-10—
15(1), concerning performance bonds;
UCA 40-10-16 (1}, (3), and (6)(a),
concerning release of the performance
bond, surety, or deposit, action on the
application for relief of bond, and
formal hearings or informal conferences;
UCA 40-10-17 (2)(g), (2)(j} (1)(B) and (ii)
(A) and (B), (2)(m), (2) (o) and (0)(i), (iv},
and (v), (2)(p)(1)(F), (ii), and (iii),

(2)(t)(1), (2)(v)(viii), (3)(b) and (b)(ii),
(3)(c). (4) (a) and (d), and (5), concerning
performance standards for all coal
mining and reclamation operations,
additional standards for steep-slope
surface coal mining, and variances; UCA
40-10-18 (1), (2)(i)(D)(B), (2)(j), and (5),
concerning underground coal mining,
rules regarding surface effects, operator
requirements for underground coal
mining, and applicability of other
chapter provisions; UCA 40-10-19 (1)
and (2){a), concerning information
provided by the permittee to the

- Division and inspections by the

Division; UCA 40-10-21(1)(a) (i) and
(ii), and (2)(a)(ii), and (5), concerning .
civilaction to compel compliance with
chapter, jurisdiction, and other rights
not affected; UCA 40~10-22 (1){c) and
{2)(a)(i), concerning violation of chapter
or permit conditions and inspections;
UCA 40-10-24(1)(c)(i) (A), (B), (C), and
(D), and (ii), (e) (i), (ii), and (iii), and (2)
(a) and (b), concerning determination of
unsuitability of lands for surface coal
mining, petitions, and public hearings;
UCA 40-10-25(2) (d) and (e)
[recodification) and (3) and (3)(a),
concerning abandoned mine
reclamation program, expenditure

priorities, and eligible lands and water,
and UCA 40—10—27(5)(3) and (12)(b),
concerning entry upon land adversely
affected by past coal mmmg practices
and State acquisition of lands; ﬁndmg
No. 2, UCA 40-10-3 (8) and (21),
concerning definitions for the terms
“lands eligible for remining” and
“unanticipated event or condition;”
UCA 40-10-11(5) (b}, and (c},
concerning Division action on permit
application and requirements for
approval; UCA 40-10-17(2)(t)(ii),
concerning performance standards for
lands eligible for remining; UCA 40-10-
22 (1)(d) and (3) (a). (b), {d) and (f),
concerning violations of chapter or
permit conditions, cessation orders,
abatement notices, or show cause
orders, suspension or revocation of
permits, and reviews,; and UCA 40-10~

- 25(2)(d) [deletion], 3(b), (4), (5), and (6),

concerning abandoned mine
reclamation program, eligible lands and
water; finding No. 4, UCA 40-10-4,
concerning repeal of the applicability of
provisions of UCA 40-8; finding No. 5,
UCA 40-10-6.5.(1) and (3), concerning
rulemaking authority and deletion of
administrative procedures; finding No.
6, UCA UCA 40-10-6.7 and Utah
Admin. R. 641-100-100, cgncerning
administrative procedures; finding No.
10, UCA 40-10-14(6), concerning
appeal to district court and further
review; finding No. 11, UCA 40-10-
16(6) (b) through (d), concerning
informal conferences or formal hearings
pertaining to performance bond release
decisions; ﬁnding No. 12, UCA 40-10-
18(4), concerning damage resulting from
underground coal mining subsidence;
finding No. 15, UCA 40"—’%0—22(2)(1))
concerning cessation orders, abatement
notices, and show cause orders; finding
No. 15, UCA 40-10-22(3)(e), concerning
costs assessed against either party
adversely affected by the Board's notice
or order; finding No. 16, UCA 40-10—
28(1)(a)(ii) and (2)(a), concerning
recovery of reclamation costs and lien$
against reclaimed lands; and finding No.

17, UCA 40-10-30, concerning ]ud1c1al

review of rules or orders. -

With the requirement that Utah .
further revise its statutes, the Director
approves, as discussed in:-finding No. 3,
UCA 40-10-3(1), concerning the
definition of “adjudicative proceeding;”

" finding No. 7, UCA 40-10-11(3),

concerning the schedule of an
applicant’s mining law violations and
pattern of violations determination;

" finding No. 8, UCA 40-10-11(5)(a),

concerning remining operation
violations resulting from unanticipated
events or conditions; finding No. 9,
UCA 40-10-13(2)(b), concerning the
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location of informal conferences; and solely on a determination of whether the which an economic analysis was

finding No. 13, UCA 40-10-20(2){e)(ii), ~ submittal is consistent with SMCRA and prepared and certification made that
concerning contest of the violation or its implementing Federal regulations such regulations would not have a-
the amount of the civil penalty. and whether the other requirements of  significant economic effect upon a
The Director approves the statutes 30 CFR Parts 730, 731, and 732 have substantial number of small entities.
and rule as proposed by Utah with the  been met. Decisions on proposed State  Accordingly, this rule will ensure that
provision that they be fully promulgated AMLR plans and revisions thereof existing requirements established by
in identical form to the statutes and rule submitted by a State are based on a SMCRA or previously promulgated by
submitted to and reviewed by OSM and  determination of whether the submittal =~ OSM will be implemented by the State.
the Eubhc meets the requirements of Title IV of In making the determination as to
e Federal regulations at 30 CFR SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1231-1243) and the ~ whether this rule would have a
Part 944, codifying decisions concerning  applicable Federal regulations at 30 CFR significant economic impact, the
li?nUt:;};g(;liﬁ ‘iilfxl‘d Eﬁgxﬁlg?i’sare Parts 884 and 888. Department relied upon the data and
decigion. This final rllx)le is being made 3. National Environmental Policy Act :?EESEZ:S for the counterpart Federal
effective immediately to expedite the No environmental impact statement is .g C
‘State program and plan amendment required for this rule since section List of Subjects in 30 CFR Part 944
process and to encourage States to bring  702(d) of SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1292(d)) Intergovernmental relations, Surface
their programs into conformity with the  provides that agency decisions on mining, Underground mining. -
Federal standards without undue delay. proposed State regulatory program
- prop 8 Ty prog Dated: July 13, 1995.
Consistency of State and Federal provisions do not constitute major . .
standards is required by SMCRA. Federal actions within the meaning of ?cl_xardlll.).Selbel, W Regional
VL Procedural Determinati section 102(2)(C) of the National egional Director, Western Regiona
LP ce. m tons Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 Coordinating Center.
1. Executive Order 12866 U.S.C. 4332(2)(C)). For the reasons set out in the
This rule is exempted from review by No environmental impact statement is' preamble, Title 30, Chapter VIi,
the Office of Management and Budget required for this rule since agency Subchapter T of the Code of Federal
(OMB) under Executive Order 12866 decisions on proposed State AMLR Regulations is amended as set forth
{Regulatory Planning and Review). plans and revisions thereof are below:
. categorically excluded from compliance
2 igec;tzvertOrder 15;78[ iorh w1thg the NaBt,ional EnvironmentalpPolicy PART 944—UTAH
€ Department ot the Interlor has Act (42 U.S.C. 4332) by the Manual of sty citati
conducted the reviews required by the l()epartment of tllle )I,nterior (516 DM co;.tgll:;: ?ﬁz:éyagl;gﬁga?r Part 944
section 2 of Executive Order 12778 6, appendix 8, paragraph 8.4B(29)). :
(Civil Justice Reform) and has . Authority: 30 U.5.C. 1201 et seq.
determined that this rule meets the . 4. Paperwork Reduction Act _ 2. Section 944.15 is amended by
applicable standards of subsections (a) This rule does not contain adding paragraph (ff) to read as follows;
and (b) of that section. However, these  jnformation collection requirements that
standards are not applicable to the require approval by OMB under the §944.15 Approval of amendments to State
actual language of State regulatory Paperwork Reduction Act (44 U.S.C. regulatory program. S
programs and program amendments or 3507 et seq.). ) oo * * *
AMLR plans and revisions thereof since - (ff) The revisions to or additions of
each such program or plan is drafted 5. Regulatory Flexibility Act the following sections of the Utah Code

and promulgated by a specific State, not The Department of the Interior has Annotated 1953 (UCAY, Title 40, and the
by OSM. Under sections 503 and 505 of ~ determined that this rule will not have ~ Utah Administrative Rules (Utah

SMCRA {30 U.S.C. 1253 and 1255) and  a significant economic impact on a Admin. R.) for Coal Mining, as

the Federal regulations at 30 CFR substantial number of small entities submitted to OSM on April 14, 1994,

730.11, 732.15, and 732.17(h)(10), under the Regulatory Flexibility Act (5 and as revised and supplemented with

decisions on proposed State regulatory ~ U.S.C. 601 et seq.). The State submittal  explanatory information on December 7,

programs and program amendments that is the subject of this rule is based 1994, are approved effective July 19,

submitted by the States must be based upon counterpart Federal regulations for 1995.

UCA 40-10-2 (1) through (6) 3 Purpose.

40-10-3(1) . Definition of “Adjudicative Proceedmg

40-10-3 (2) through (7), (9) through (20), and (22) .ccevveereevrererrrernsenene Recodification of Definitions.

40-10-3 (8) and (21). * Definitions of “Lands Eligible for Remining” and “Unanncxpated

- " Event or Condition.”

40-104 Repeal of the Applicability Provisions of 40-8.

40-10-6.5(1) - Rulemaking Authority.

40-10-6.5 (2} and (3) Recodification of Rulemaking Procedures.

40-10-6.5(3) " Deletion of Administrative Procedures.

40-10-6.7 Administrative Procedures. n

40-10-7(1) . : Prohibited Financial Interests in. Mining Operations.

40--10-8 (1) and (3) .. ... Exploration Rules Issued by Division and Penalty for Violations.

40-10-10(2), - Submission of Applications and Reclamation Plans. .

40-10-11 (1), (2)(a) through {d), (e)(ii), (D (i) and (iii), and (4) (a) Division of Oil, Gas and Mining (Division) Action on Permit Appli- .
and (b). cations, Requirements for Approval, and Restoranon of Prime

Farmland.
40-10-11(3) . Schedule of Applicant’s Mining Law Vlolatlons and Pattern of Vio-

lations Determination.
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40-10-11(5)(a) . ; wRemmmg Operation Violations Resultmg From - Unantxcxpated

S : ) . Events or Conditions.

40-10—5) (b) and (c) ... Division Action on Permit Apphcatxons and Requirements for Ap-
: proval.

40-10-12(3) . e eeeeeererateteearaaaassaesnreeseresssastaatesenane Revisions or Modifications of Permit Provisions.

40-10-13(2)(b) . rereerenrenen Location of Informal Conferences.

40-10-14 (2) and (3)

40-10-14(6) ... R e
40—10—15(1)
40-10-16 (1), (3), and (6)(a) B oeveeesreee,

40-10-16(6) (b) through (d) ..ecoeveeeeeneies

40-10-17(2) (g), (2)()(i) (B) and (ii)(A) and (B), (2)(m), (2) (o}, and
(0)(i). (iv), and (v}, (2)(p} G)(F), (ii), and (iii), (2)(t) (1), (2) (v)(viii},
(3) (b) and (b)(ii), (3)(c), (4) (a)} and (d), and (5).

40—10-17{2){EJ(IL) -eeereeameeeeenirne ettt s

40-10-18 (1), (2)A)E)B), (2)(), and (5] wveeveirrire e

.40-10-18(4) (a) through (c) .
40-10-19 (1) and (2)(@) .eecceereeerarcerrerarnnen

A010-20(ZYE)(IT) +ernrrreeremmmrrrereeeseresmesesemmeresssemssoesssssemmsesseesesesessemmseeres
40-10-21 (1)(a) (i) and (ii), {2)(a)(ii), and (5)

40-10-22 (1)(c) and (2)@)(i) ... eermereeeeeaserasen
40-10-22 (1)(d) and (3) (a), (b), {d), and (B c.eorevmevrrerrrrememererrrrereeeeeneee

40-10-22(2)(b) -

G0=10-22(3)(€) -eeerererreerererressassocecasessnsssosesesocesoerarsssasscacessssssossssessosssssesssss

40—-10-24(1){c)(i) (A), (B), (C), and (D) and (ii), {e) (i), (ii), and (iii),
and (2) (a) and (b).

Q01030 ...ciicireiireiiiinerinisrsnssetntrtisiirntasesrsetersrtteitsretrressannsserusstonssarnassanans

. Utah Admin. R. 641-100-100 ........

3. Section 944.16 is amended by
removing and reserving paragraph (b)
and adding paragraphs (e) through (i) to
read as follows:

*x % Kk 7

§944.16 Required program amendments.
* * * * *

{e) By March 1, 1996, Utah shall
revise its definition of “adjudicative
proceeding” at UCA 40-10-3(1) to
include judicial review of agency
actions.

() By March 1, 1996, Utah shall revise
UCA 40-10-11(3) to require that (1) the
schedule of the applicant’s mining law

of the penalty to the

violations required in connection witha §944.25 Approval of amendments to State

permit application includes violations abandoned mine plan.
of SMCRA and the implementing * . x

sentence that begins
may be held in the locality of the coal
mining and reclamation operation

(i) By March 1, 1996, Utah shall revise
UCA 40-10-20(2)(e)(ii) to provide for a
waiver of the operator’s right to contest
the amount of the civil penalty when
the operator fails to forward the amount

within 30 days of receipt of the results
of the informal conference.

4. Section 944.25 is amended by
adding paragraph (c) to read as follows:

Notice to Applicant of Approval or Disapproval of Apphcatxon and
Hearings.

Appeals to District Court and Further Review.

Performance Bonds.

Release of the Performance Bond Surety, or Deposit, Action on Ap-
plication for Relief of Bond, and Formal Hearings or Informal
Conferences.

- Information Conferences or Formal Hearings Pertaining to Perform-

ance Bond Release Decisions.

Performance Standaids for All Coal Mining and Reclamation Oper-
ations, Additional Standards for Steep-Slope Surface Coal Mining,
and Variances.

Performance Standards for All Coal Mining and Reclamation Oper-
ations.

Underground Coal Mining, Rules Regarding Surface Effects, Opera-
tor Requirements for Underground Coal Mmmg, and Applicability
of Other Chapter Provisions.

Damage Resulting From Underground Coal Mining Subsidence.

Information Provided by Permittee to Division and Inspections by
Division.

Contest of the Violation or the Amount of the Civil Penalty.

Civil Action to Compel Compliance with Chapter, Jurisdiction, and
Other Rights Not Affected.

Violations of Chapter or Permit Conditions and Inspections.

Violations-of Chapter or Permit Conditions, Cessation Orders, Abate-
ment Notices, or Show Cause Orders, and Suspensions or Revoca-
tions of Permit.

Cessation Orders, Abatement Notices, and Show Cause Orders.

Costs Assessed Against Either Party.

Determination of Unsuitability of Lands for Surface Coal Mining, Pe-
titions, and Public Hearings.

Judicial Review of Rules or Orders.

Administrative Procedures.

Mining Practices and State
Acquisition of Lands.

40-10-28 (1)(a)(ii) and (2)(a), Recovery
of Reclamation Costs and Liens
Against Reclaimed Lands.

{FR Doc. 9517716 Filed 7£16195; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4310-05-M ’

‘[t}he conference

regulatory authority
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS
AFFAIRS

38 CFR Part 4

RIN 2900-AG86

®

Chronic Fatigue Syndrome

Federal regulations and (2) the pattern
of violations determination discussed
therein includes violations of SMCRA,
the implementing Federal regulations,
any State or Federal programs enacted
under SMCRA, and other provisions of
the approved Utah program.

(g) By March 1, 1996, Utah shall
revise UCA 40-10-11(5)(a) to reflect an
effective date of “after October 24,
1992.”

(h) By March 1, 1996, Utah shall
revise UCA 40-10-13(2)(b) to change
the word “may” to “shall” in the

(c) The following sections of the Utah
Code Annotated 1953 (UCA), Title 40,
pertaining to the Utah abandoned mine
plan, as submitted to OSM on April 14,
1994, and revised on December 7, 1994,
are approved effective July 19, 1995.
40—-10-25(2)(d), Deletion of Research
. and Demonstration Projects.
40-10-25(2) (d) and (e), Recodification

of Expenditure Priorities.

40-10-25 (3), (3)(a), (3)(b), (4}, (5), and

(6), Eligible Lands and Water.
40-10-27 (5}(a) and (12)(b), Entry Upon
Land Adversely Affected by Past Coal

AGENCY: Departrhent of Veterans Affairs.
ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: This document adopts as a
final rule without change an interim
rule adding a diagnostic code and
evaluation criteria for chronic fatigue

syndrome to the VA Schedule for Rating"

Disabilities. The intended effect of this
rule is to insure that veterans diagnosed
with this condition meet uniform
criteria and receive consistent

evaluations.

e e i e e L

oy et e 2 ais




kl‘-)\ State ﬁf Utah

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
NHP | DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING
Michael O, Leavite | o0 wost North Templo T

Governor § 3 Triad Center, Suite 350 \ 3 RO FIELD OFFL
Ted Stewart Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203 i BLoYY 2
Executive Director 801-538-5340
James W. Carter 801-359-3940 (Fax)

L

Division Director 1 801-538-5319 (TDD) 7o 'NITIAL DATE ROUTE

DATE] MESSAGE

July 13, 1995

A Avbs
n T. EHMETT gl
L. MEADORS

S MARTINGZ

é\l

Vernon Maldonado

State Program Amendments D. MARTINEZ

Office of Surface Mining 8. RATHRUN
Reclamation and Enforcement -

505 Marquette N.W., Suite 1200 Vera | 4

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

Re: UT-017-FOR, State Rule Language as Enacted in the Utah Administrative
Code, (Rules Relating to Roads)

Dear Vern:

| have extracted the final rule language as adopted by the state for this
program amendment from the Utah Administrative Code. Copies are enclosed for
your evaluation. The definitions for "affected area,” "road,” and "public road" are
all included on the enclosure to this letter. Please note that any intervening rule
language found between each of these definitions in the actual code is not shown.

Please let me know if you have any questions on the enclosed material or if

you need any additional information.

Sincerely,

Ronald W. Daniels
Coordinator of Minerals Research

jbe
Enclosure
cc: J. Carter

L. Braxton
P:ROADSFR.LTR




Enclosure -- 7/13/95

"Affected Area” means any land or water surface area which is used to facilitate,
or is physically altered by, coal mining and reclamation operations. The affected
area includes the disturbed area; any area upon which coal mining and reclamation
operations are conducted; any adjacent lands the use of which is incidental to coal
mining and reclamation operations; all areas covered by new or existing roads used
to gain access to, or for hauling coal to or from coal mining and reclamation
operations, except as provided in this definition; any area covered by surface
excavations, workings, impoundments, dams, ventilation shafts, entryways, refuse
banks, dumps, stockpiles, overburden piles, spoil banks, culm banks, tailings, holes
or depressions, repair areas, storage areas, shipping areas; any areas upon which
are sited structures, facilities, or other property material on the surface resulting
from, or incident to, coal mining and reclamation operations; and thé area located
above underground workings. The affected area shall include every road used for
purposes of access to, or for hauling coal to or from, coal mining and reclamation
operations, unless the road (a) was designated as a public road pursuant to the
laws of the jurisdiction in which it is located; (b) is maintained with public funds,
and constructed, in a manner similar to other public roads of the same
classification within the jurisdiction; and (c) there is substantial (more than
incidental) public use. Editorial Note: The definition of "Affected area”, insofar, as
it excludes roads which are included in the definition of "Surface coal mining
operations”, was suspended at 51 FR 41960, Nov. 20, 1986. Accordingly, Utah
suspends the definition of Affected Area insofar as it excludes roads which are
included in the definition of "coal mining and reclamation operations.”

"Public Road", for the purpose of part R645-103-200, R645-301-521.123, and °
R645-301-521.133 means a road (a) which has been designated as a public road
pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is located; (b) which is , ,
maintained with public funds in a manner similar to other public roads of the same
classification within the jurisdiction; (c) for which there is substantial (more than
incidental) public use; and (d) which meets road construction standards for other
public roads of the same classification in the local jurisdiction.

"Road" means a surface right-of-way for purposes of travel by land vehicles used
in coal mining and reclamation operations or coal exploration. A road consists of
the entire area within the right-of-way, including the roadbed, shoulders, parking
and side areas, approaches, structures, ditches, and surface. The term includes
access and haul roads constructed, used, reconstructed, improved, or maintained
for use in coal mining and reclamation operations or coal exploration, including use
by coal hauling vehicles to and from transfer, processing, or storage areas. The
term does not include ramps and routes of travel within the immediate mining area
or within spoil or coal mine waste disposal areas.
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subpoena, dourt order or legal process to
the General}Counsel.

{b) Notifidation by.person served. If
any current pr former officer, director,
employee of agent of the Corporation, or
any other parson who has custody of
exempt recofds belonging to the FDIC,
is served with a subpoena, court order,
or other prodess requiring that person’s
attendance ab a witness concerning any
matter relatefl to official duties, or the
production df any exempt record of the
Corporation,jsuch person shall promptly
advise the Office of the Corporation’s
General Counsel of such service, of the
testimony ang records described in the
subpoena, arid of all relevant facts
which may b of assistance to the
General Counsel in determining
whether the individual in question
should be authorized to testify or the
records should be produced. Such
person should also inform the court or
tribunal whidh issued the process and
the attorney for the party upon-whose -
application-the process was issued, if.
known, of thd substance of this.section:

(c) Appearénce by person served. .
Absent the wtitten authorization of the-
Corporation’s;General Counsel, or -
designee, to disclose the requested:
information,.dny current or former
officer, director, employee, or agent of.
the Corporatien, and any other.person
having custody of exempt records. of the

Corporation; who is required to respond -

to a subpoenaj court order, or other legal-
process, shall attend at the time-and
place therein dpecified andrespectfully
decline-to produce any such record or
give any testimony with respect thereto;
basing-such refusal on this.section.

By Onderof'th:e Board of.Directors:-
Dated:at Washington, DC this 27th.day of

4

June, 1995.. i
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Jerry L. Langley, ..

Executive Secretdry.:

{FR Doc. 9516329 Filed 75-95; 8:45 am].
BILLING ,coor-:'s?n-{pp

DEPARTMENT &F TRANSPORTATION .

14.CFR Part 234&
{Docket.50053]
RIN 2137-AC67

Airline Service

Lality Performance -
Reports |

AGENCY: Departmdnt of Transportation.
ACTION: Extension fpf comment period.

SUMMARY: This notjce announces that
the Bureau of Tran}portation Statistics
is extending from July 5 to August 5,

1995, the deadlin for submitting
comments to the hotice of proposed
rulemaking concgrning reporting by air
carriers concernifig their on-time
performance. _ -
DATES: Commentg are now due August
5, 1995. .
ADDRESSES: Com;
submitted in d
Clerk, Docket 50053, room PL 401,
Office of the Sectetary, Department of
Transportation, 400 Seventh Street,
SW., Washingtox},.DC 20590.

FOR FURTHER lNF@RMATION CONTACT:
Bernard. Stankus{ Office of Airline
Information, K-25, Bureau of
Transportation S}atistics, 400 Seventh
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20590,
(202) 366-4387. | :
SUPPLEMENTARY Hi:WFORMATION: On june 5,
1995 (60 FR 29514), the Office of Airline
Statistics, Researdh and Special
Programs Administration of DOT (now"
the Office of Airlihe Information,
Bureau of Transpgrtation Statistics; see
60 FR 30195, June 8, 1995) published a
notice of propose% rulemaking- (NPRM}
to amend the on-time flight performance
reporting requirergents. The central
issue was whetherjair carriers.should
exclude mechanicgl delays from their
on-time performangereport. The public
was given 30-days4o respond to the
NPRM.

On June 28, 1995, the Department
received three diffdrent requests for
extension of the comment period. Ina -
letter to Secretary
Hatfield asked that the comment period
be extended .60-day$. Henoted that
when DOT:proposed changes to the on-
time report-process in the past,the"

docket-was open fork ubstantially longer.

rther stated that -
erits the same
«thorough review.

periods of time. He
the currentproposal
type of thoughtful
by allinterested parties.: .
In a second letter tq Secretary Pefia;. -
the National Gonsumers.League asked. -
that the comment perjed be extended
for 60-days. It stated that it only-recently
became aware of the groposed«change to
exclude:mechanieal delays and
cancellations from the carrier-on-time
performance ratings. Because.on-time
performance is now tie number one
concern of-business:trpvelers;.the -
National Consumers
public should be give:
respend to the rulem
American Airlines, Delta Aic-Lines,
United Airlines and USAir filed a joint
submission asking the{Department to- -
extend the comment priod to
September 5,.1995. Thp joint carriers .
stated that they need dilditional time to
prepare comments thafjfully take into
account the history of this issue, as well

a.more iime to.
ing. - .

fia, SenatorMark O.

ague believes the -

as the merits of the Department’s
proposal. In addition, they note that we
are now enterirgjthe peak vacation
period and that gritical personne} have

‘not been available during the full period

between issuance of the NPRM and the
current comment closing date.

Two answers were filed opposing the
extension. Southwest Airlines stated
that the joint carfiers failed to provide
a credible basis for an extension and
criticized the last minute nature of the
filing. It stated tHat the “peak vacation
period” argumerlt is both unconvincing
and irrelevant, and that the carriers are
seeking a lengthy extension in order to
delay a ruling. They concluded by
stating that all pdrties deserve certainty
on this issue instead of an unending
period.of further|debate and
skirmishing. . '§

Northwest Air
the request for e

ines strongly opposed
tension. It stated that
the Department hias before it apressing
safety issue that fequires immediate-:
action, and that ngither procrastination.
nor vacation scheflules.should stand in .
the .way of the Department'’s reselution
of this issue..
We.are grantingfa one-month
extension. This ac}ion serves to.
facilitate the submgssion of informed
comments, while ot unduly delaying
the proceeding. Da T believes this action
will notprejudice the position-of any .
party..
Issued in Washingthn on June 30, 1995~
Timothy E. Carmody) - )
Acting Director, Offic of Airline Information,
Bureau of Transportafion ptatistics.
[FR Doc..95~16682X ifed 7~3—95;.11:26 am] -
BILLING ' CODE 49

DEPARTMENT OF-THE INTERIOR.

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation .
and:Enforcement - :

30.CFR Part 944

Utah Regulatory Program

AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement; Interior.
ACTION: Proposed: rule; reopening and
extension of public comment period on
proposed amendment:

SUMMARY: OSMris announcingreceipt of.
revisions pertaining to a previously
proposed amendment to-the Wtah
regulatory program (hereinafter, the
“Utah pregram™).under the Surface .
Mining Control and Reclamation Act of.
1977 (SMCRA). The revisions for Utah’s
proposed rules pertain to normal
husbandry practices and Utah’s
“Vegetation Information Guidelines.”
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The amendment is mtended to 1mprove
operational efficiency. S
DATES: Written comments must be
received by 4 p.m., m.d.t., July 21, 1995.
ADDRESSES: Written comments'should
be mailed or hand delivered to Richard
J. Seibel at the address listed below.

Copies-of the Utah program, the
proposed amendment, and all written
comments received in response to this
document will be available for public
review at the addresses listed below
during normal business hours, Monday
through Friday, excluding holidays.
Each requester may receive one free
copy of the proposed amendment by
contacting OSM’s Western Regional
Coordinating Center.

Richard J. Seibel, Regional Director,
Western Regional Coordinating
Center, Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement, 1999
Broadway, Suite 3320, Denver,
Colorado 80202-5733

Utah Coal Regulatory Program, Division
of Oil, Gas and Mining, 355 West
North Temple, 3 Triad Center, Suite
350, Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203,

"Telephone: (801) 538-5340.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Richard J. Seibel, Telephone: (303) 672~

5501.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
I. Background on the Utah Program

On January 21, 1981, the Secretary of
the Interior conditionally approved the
Utah program. General background
information on the Utah program,
including the Secretary’s findings, the
disposition of comments, and the
conditions of approval of the Utah
program can be found in the January 21,
1981, Federal Register (46 FR 5899).
Subsequent actions concerning Utah’s
program and program amendments can
be found at 30 CFR 944. 15 944.16, and
944.30.

II. Proposed Amendment

By letter dated February 6, 1995, Utah
submitted a proposed amendment to its
program (administrative record No. UT—
1025) pursuant to SMCRA (30 U.S.C.
1201 et seq.). Utah submitted the
proposed amendment at its own
initiative.

OSM announced receipt of the
proposed amendment in the March 15,
1995, Federal Register (60 FR 13935),
provided an opportunity for a public .
hearing-or meeting on its substantive
adequacy, and invited public comment
on its adequacy (administrative record
No. UT-1034). Because no one
requested a public hearing or meeting,
none was held. .

The public comment penod ended on
April 14, 1995. .

During its review of the amendment
OSM identified concerns relating to the

provisions-of the Utah Coal Mining

Rules at Utah Administrative Rule (Utah
Admin. R.) 645-301-357.340,
concerning those activities that cause
the need for repair of revegetation after
phase Il bond release that would not
restart the liability period; Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-357.350, concerning -
clarification that the rule applies to
irrigation of transplanted trees and
shrubs that would not restart the
liability period; and Appendix C of
Utah’s ““Vegetation Information
Guidelines,” concerning references to
manuals it submitted to support the
reestablishment of vegetation after
wildfires that would not restart the
liability period proposed at Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-357.340. OSM
notified Utah of the concerns by letter
dated May 23, 1995 (administrative
record No. UT—-1054.

Utah responded in a letter dated June
5, 1995, by submitting a revised
amendment (administrative record No.
UT-10589). Utah proposes to revise: Utah
Admin. R. 645-301—-357.340, to include
as an activity that would not restart the
liability period, repair of revegetation
after phase Il bond release necessitated
by illegal activities, such as vandalism,
which are not caused by any lack of
planning, design, or implementation of
the mining and reclamation plan; Utah -
Admin. R. 645-301-357.350, to clarify
that irrigation of transplanted trees and
shrubs would not restart the liability
period; and Appendix C of Utah’s
“Vegetation Information Guidelines,” to
include references to manuals that
support the reestablishment of
vegetation after wildfires.

OSM is reopening the comment
period on the proposed Utah program
amendment to provide the public an
opportunity to reconsider the adequacy
of the proposed amendment in light of
the additional materials submitted. In
accordance with the provisions of 30
CFR 732.17(h}, OSM is seeking
comments on whether the proposed
amendment satisfies the applicable
program approval criteria of 30 CFR
732.15. If the amendment is deemed
adequate, it will become part of the
Utah program.

Written comments should be specxflc.
pertain only to the issues proposed in
this rulemaking, and include
explanations in support of the
commenter’s recommeéndations.
Comments received after the time
indicated under DATES or at locations
other than the Western Regional
Coordinating Center will not necessarily

be considered in the final rulemakmg or
included in the administrative record

1v. Procedural Determmatxons
1. Executive Order 12866

This rule is exempted from review by
the Office of Management and Budget
{OMB) under Executive Order 12866
(Regulatory Planning and Review).

2. Executive Order 12778

The Department of the Interior has
conducted the reviews required by
section 2 of Executive Order 12778
(Civil Justice Reform) and has
determined that this rule meets the
applicable standards of subsections (a)
and (b) of that section. However, these
standards are not applicable to the
actual language of State regulatory
programs and program amendments
since each such program is drafted and
promulgated by a specific State; not by
OSM. Under sections 503 and 505 of
SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1253 and 1255) and
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
730.11, 732.15, and 732.17(h)(10},
decisions on proposed State regulatory
programs and program amendments
submitted by the States must be based
solely on a determination of whether the
submittal is consistent with SMCRA and
its implementing Federal regulations
and whether the other requirements of
30 CFR Parts 730, 731, and 732 have
been met.

3. National Environmental Policy Act

No environmental impact statement is
required for this rule since section
702(d) of SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1292(d))
provides that agency decisions on
proposed-State regulatory program
provisions do not constitute major
Federal actions within the meaning of
section 102(2)(C) of the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42
U.S.C. 4332(2)(C)).

4. Paperwork Reduction Act

This rule does no contain information
collection requirements that require
approval by OMB under the Paperwork
Reduction Act (44 U.S.C. 3507 et seq.).

5. Regulatory Flexibility Act

The Department of the Interior has
determined that this rule will not have
a significant economic impact on a
substantial number of small entities
under the Regulatory Flexibility Act (5
U.S.C. 601 et. seq.). The State submxttal
that is the subject of this rule is based
upon counterpart Federal regulations for
which an economic analysis was
prepared and certification made that
such regulations woudd not have a
significant economic effect upon a
substantial number of small entities.
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‘Accordingly, this rule will ensure that -
existing requirements previously
promulgated by OSM will be-.
implemented by the State. In making the :
determination as to whether this rule
would have a significant economic -
impact, the Department relied upon the
data and assumptions for the

counterpart Federal regulations.

List of Subjects in 30 CFR Part 944
Intergovernmental relations, Surface

mining, Underground mining. '
Dated: June 28, 1995.

James F. Fulton,

Acting Regional Director, Western Regional
Coordinating Center.

[FR Doc. 95-16544 Filed 7-5-95; 8:45 am)}
BILLING CODE 4310-05-M

[
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY

40 CFR Part 300
[FRL-5254—1]
National Oil andi{Hazardous

Substances Pollution Contingency
Plan; National Priorities List

AGENCY: Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA).

ACTION: Notice of Intent to Delete Brown
Wood Preserving Site from the National

Priorities List; request for comments.

SUMMARY: The U_S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA), announces its
intent to delete the Brown Wood
Preserving Superfund Site (Site} in Live
Oak, Suwannee Gounty, Florida, from
the National Priotities List (NPL) and
requests public c¢mment on this action.
The NPL is codified as Appendix B of
the National Oil and Hazardous
Substances Pollution Contingency Plan
(NCP), 40 CFR Part 300, which EPA
promulgated pursuant to Section 105 of
the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act of 1980 (CERGLA). EPA and the

. State of Florida (State) have determined
that all appropriate responses under
CERCLA have been implemented and
that no further cleanup by responsible
parties is appropriate. Moreover, EPA
and the State havd determined that the -
remedial actions cpnducted at the Site
to date have been protective of public
health, welfare, and the environment.

~ DATES: Comments pn the Notice of
Intent to Delete thq Site from the NPL

should be submitt4d on or before

August 7, 1995.

ADDRESSES: Comm. [ts may be mailed

to: Joe Franzmathes| Director, Waste
Management Divisiqn, U.S.

Environmental Profection Agency, -
Region IV, 345 Cougtland Street, N.E.,

‘Atlanta; Georgia 30865.: :

Comprehensive ipformation on this

Site is maintained

the public docket,

which is available for viewing at the
information repositpries in two

locations. Requests

copies of the backgr

from the public doc

directed to:

Ms. Debbie Jourdan
Pratection Agency
Courtland Street;

for appointments or
pund information
ket should be

U.S. Environmental
, Region IV, 345
N.E., Atlanta,

Georgia 30365, Phone: (404) 347~
3555, ext. 6217, Hours: 8:00 a.m. to
4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday—
By Appointment-®nly.

Suwannee River Reg

ional Library, 207

Pine Street, Live Qak, Florida 32060,
Phone: (904) 362317, Hours: 8:30

a.m. to 8:00 p.m.,

Monday and

Thursday; 8:30 a.iju. to 5:30 p.m.,
Tuesday, Wednesday, and Friday;
8:30 a.m.—4:00 p.m., Saturday.

FOR FURTHER INFORM
Randall ‘Chaffins, U.

ATION CONTACT:
S. Environmental

Protection Agency, Region IV, Waste
Management Divisiagn, South Superfund

Remedial Branch, 34
N.E. Atlanta, GA 303

ext. 6260.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFO

Table of Contents
L. Introduction

II. NPL Deletion Criterig
HI. Deletion Procedures

5 Courtland Street,
65, (404) 3472643

RMATION:

IV. Basis.for Intended Site Deletion

I. Introduction

EPA announces it

intent to delete the

Site from the NPL, which constitutes

Appendix B of the N

300, and requests co

, 40 CFR Part
ments on this

proposed deletion. EPA ideéntifies sites
that appear to present a significant risk
to public health, welfare, or the
environment and maintains the NPL as
the list of those sites.{Sites on the NPL

may be the subject o

firemedial actions

Superfund Response {rust Fund (Fund).

Pursuant to Section 3

0.425(e)(3) of the

NCP, any site deleted from the NPL
remains eligible for Fynd-financed
remedial actions in thg event that
conditions at the site yarrant such

action.

EPA will accept comments

concerning this Site

for thirty (30)

calendar days after publication of this
notice in the Federal Register.

Section II of this notjce explains the
criteria for deleting sité¢s from the NPL.

Section III discusses
EPA is using for this

pRrocedures that
agtion. Section IV

discusses how the Site neets the

deletion criteria.

I1. NPL Deletion (riteria -

The NCP establishes the criteria that
EPA uses to delefe sites from the NPL.
In accordance with 40 CFR 300.425(e);
sites may-be delgted from the NPL
where no furthegresponse is
appropriate. In making this
determination, HPA; in consultation
with the State, cpnsiders whether any of
the following criteria have been met:

(i) Responsiblg or other persons have
implemented al} appropriate response
actions required; or :

(ii) All appropriate Fund-financed
response under CERCLA has been
implemented and no further response
action by respogsible parties is
appropriate; or

{iii) The remegial investigation has
determined thatjthe release poses no
significant threat to public health or the
environment; and, therefore, taking of
remedial measu.?es is not appropriate.

II1. Deletion Procedures

EPA will accept and evaluate public:
comments befor? making a final
decision to delete the Site. Comments
from the local cgmmunity may be the
most pertinent to deletion decisions.
The following pliocedures were used for
the intended delgtion of this Site:

(1) EPA has re'gommended deletion
and has prepared the relevant
documents. |

(2) The State of Florida has concurred
with the deletion decision.

(3) Concurrent with this Notice of
Intent to Delete, h notice has been
published in a 1qcal newspaper and has
been distributedjto appropriate Federal,
State, and local ¢fficials, and other
interested partie$. :

(4) EPA has made all relevant
documents available at the information
repositories.

Deletion of a site from the NPL does
not itself create, 3lter, or revoke any
individual rightsjor obligations. The
NPL is designated primarily for
information. purppses and to assist EPA
management. As mentioned in Section
II of this Notice, 40 CFR 300.425(e}(3) -
states that deletioh of a site from the
NPL does not pre¢lude eligibility for
future Fund-finanted response actions.

The comments geceived during the
public comment pgriod will be
evaluated before the final decision to
delete the Site. EPA will prepare a
Responsiveness Supnmary, if necessary,
which will addressjthe comments
received during the public comment
period. .

A deletion occurstwhen the Regional
Administrator of EPA places a Notice of
Deletion in the Feddral Register. Any
deletions from the NIPL will be reflected




U. S. Department of Labor Mine Safety and Health Administration
P.O. Box 25367

Denver, Colorado 80225-0367
Coal Mine Safety and Health
District 9

Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
Albuquerque Field Office

505 Marguette Avenue, N.W., Suite 1200

Albuquerque, NM 87102

RE: Formal Amendment to
Utah’s Coal Mining Rules (UT-1003)
SPAT No. (UT-029-FOR)
General Comments

Dear Mr. Ehmett:

This 1is in response to your 1letter dated January 12, 1995,
requesting general comments concerning the referenced Utah rules
being changed for surface mining. Unfortunately, the review of
this information by MSHA personnel was delayed past the due date
indicated. We apologize for the tardiness of our response.

However, the information has been reviewed, and it appears not to
conflict with any current MSHA regulations. Thank you for your
patience regarding this matter. If you have any questions, please
contact this office at (303) 231-5462.

Sincerely,

orJohin A. Kuzagx
District Manager
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June 27, 1995

Memorandum
To1 Mr. Galen Knutsen
Intermountain Field Operations Center
From: Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director 456;42'/

Albugquerqgue Field Office

Subject: Solicitation of Comments on a Formal Amendment to Utah’s Coal
~ Mining Rules (UT-1059, SPAT No. UT-028-FOR)

On February 6, 1995, the State of Utah submitted an amendment
(Administrative Record number UT-1025) to its permanent regulatory
program for surface coal mining and reclamation operations. The
amendment deals with husbandry practices of vegetation on reclaimed
lands. It was submitted as a State initiative and was distributed to
you on March 7, 1995.

Now, enclosed for your review and comment are revisions to the original
amendment (UT-1059), submitted in response to a deficiency letter which
OSM sent to Utah on May 23, 1995.

Although the revisions proposed to the original amendment at rules R.
645-301-357.340 and .350 are not marked with redline or strikeout, it
appears that Utah changed the words "third-party interference" and
"interference" to "illegal activities" in the first rule and the word
“transplantsﬁy"transplanted trees and shrubs" in the second.

Your comments are requested by July 12, 1995. However, because a
proposed rule is being prepared for publication in the Federal Register
to officially open the comment period for this amendment, additional
time may be available for review, depending on the date of publication
and the date established for the close of the comment period.

To facilitate our processing of your comments, please refer to
Administrative Record No. UT-1059 in your response.

Comments should be submitted to:
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
505 Marquette, NW, Suite 1200
Albuquerque, NM 87102

Please contact Vernon E. Maldonado at 505-766-1486 with any questions.

Attachment



Mr. Galen Knutsen”R
Intermountain Field Operations Center”R
~E
Mr. Dave Shaver”R
Mining and Minerals Branch”R
~“E
Mr. Robert D. Williams, Asst., Field Supervisor”R
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service”R
/\E )
Mr. Mat Millenbach, State Director
Bureau of Land Management
}

VEM\UT-MEMO.1, June 27, 1995, ns



'
United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING
Reclamation and Enforcemenc
Suite 1200
505 Marquerte Avenue N.W,
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

June 27, 1995

Mr. Charles L. Baldi, Chief
Engineering Division
U. S. Army Corp of Engineers
20 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Washingtoh, DC 20314

Re: Solicitation of Comments on a Formal Amendment to Utah’s Coal
Mining Rules (UT-1059, SPAT No. UT-028-FOR)

Dear Mr. Baldi::

On February 6, 1995, the State of Utah submitted an amendment
{({Administrative Record number UT-1025) to its permanent regulatory
program for surface coal mining and reclamation operations. The
amendment deals with husbandry practices of vegetation on reclaimed
lands. It was submitted as a State initiative and was distributed to
you on March 7, 1995.

Now, enclosed for your review and comment are revisions to the original
amendment (UT-1059), submitted in response to a deficiency letter which
0OSM sent to Utah on May 23, 1995.

Although the revisions proposed to the original amendment at rules R.
645-301-357.340 and .350 are not marked with redline or strikeout, it
appears that Utah changed the words "third-party interference" and
“interference"” to "illegal activities" in the first rule and the word
"transplantsya“transplanted trees and shrubs" in the second.

Your comments are requested by July 12, 1995. However, because a
proposed rule is being prepared for publication in the Federal Register
to officially open the comment period for this amendment, additional
time may be available for review, depending on the date of publication
and the date established for the close of the comment period.

To facilitate our processing of your comments, please refer to
Administrative Record No. UT-1059 in your response.

Comments should be submitted to:
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
505 Marquette, NW, Suite 1200
Albugquergue, NM 87102
Please contact Vernon E. Maldonado at 505-766-1486 with any questions.
Sincerely,
15[ Ko R fun_

Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Albuquerque Field Office

Enclosure



- <

Mr. Charles L. Baldi, Chief
Engineering Division

U. S. Army Corp of Engineers
20 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20314

Mr. Baldi:

Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety, and Health”R

Department of Energy

Forrestal Building

1000 Independence Avenue, SW" R

Washington, DC 20585”R

Sir”~R

“E

Mr. Dale Bosworth, Regional Forester”R

U.S. Forest Service”™R

Federal Building

324-25th Street

Ogden, UT 84401"R

Mr. Bosworth”R

B

Mr. Phillip J. Nelson, State Conservationist”R

Soil Conservation Service”R

P.0O. Box 11350

Salt Lake City, UT 84147"R

Mr. Nelson”R

B

Mr. John Kuzar, District Manager”R

U.S. Department of Labor

Mine Safety and Health Administration”R

P.0O. Box 25367

Denver, CO 80225-0367"R

Mr. Kuzar”™R

AR

Ms. Carolyn Johnson, CCC™R

1705 S. Pearl, Suite 5

Denver, CO 80210"R

Ms. Johnson”R

“E

Mr. Alex Jordan, President”R

Utah Mining Association

825 Kearns Building”R

Salt Lake City, UT 84101"R

Mr. Jordan”R

“E

Mr. Ken Rait”R

Southern Utah Wilderness Alliance”R

1471 South 1100 East

Salt Lake City, UT 84105”°R

Mr. Rait”R

~“E

Ms. Christine Osborne”R

Sierra Club

1536 East 3080 South”R

Salt Lake City, UT 84106”R

Ms. Osborne”R

~“E

VEM\UT-MRG.1, June 27, 1995, ns



Ms. Anna Lopez

Wilderness Society

7475 Dakin Street, Suite 410°R
Denver, Colorado 80221°R

Ms. Lopez”R

~E

Harold P. Quinn, Jr., Sr. VP
National Coal Associationl~
Coal Bldg. -~ 1130-17th St, Nw2~
Washington, DC 200363~

Mr. Quinnd-~

VEM\UT-MRG.1, June 27, 1995, ns



June 27, 1995

Mr. Max H. Dodson, Director
Water Management Division

U. S§S. EPA , Region 8, Suite 500
One Denver Place, 999 18th Street
Denver, CO 80202

Subject: Solicitation of Comments on a Formal Amendment to Utah'’s Coal
Mining Rules {(UT-1059, SPAT No. UT-028-FOR)

Dear Mr. Dodson:

On February 6, 1995, the State of Utah submitted an amendment
(Administrative Record number UT-1025) to its permanent regulatory program
for surface coal mining and reclamation operations. The amendment deals
with husbandry practices of vegetation on reclaimed lands. It was
submitted as a State initiative and was distributed to you on March 7,
1995.

Now, enclosed for your review and comment are revisions to the original
amendment (UT-1059), submitted in response to a deficiency letter which OSM
sent to Utah on May 23, 1995.

Although the revisions proposed to the original amendment at rules R. 645-
301-357.340 and .350 are not marked with redline or strikeout, it appears
that Utah changed the words "third-party interference" and "interference"
to "illegal activities" in the first rule and the word "tramsplants" .,
"transplanted trees and shrubs" in the second.

Your comments are requested by July 12, 1995. However, because a proposed
rule is being prepared for publication in the Federal Register to
officially open the comment period for this amendment, additional time may
be available for review, depending on the date of publication and the date
established for the close of the comment period.

To facilitate our processing of your comments, please refer to
Administrative Record No. UT-1059 in your response.

Comments should be submitted to:
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
505 Marquette, NW, Suite 1200
Albuquerque, NM 87102
Please contact Vernon E. Maldonado at 505-766-1486 with any questions.
Sincerely,
)55, /g:zlaA—m 7§<}13&-&*4/r——/

Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Albuquerqgue Field Office

Enclosure



June 27, 1995

Mr. Max J. Evan, Director
State Historical Society

300 Rio Grande

Salt Lake City, UT 84101

Re! Solicitation of Comments on a Formal Amendment to Utah’s Coal Mining -
Rules (UT-1059, SPAT No. UT-028-FOR)

Dear Mr. Evan:

On February 6, 1995, the State of Utah submitted an amendment
(Administrative Record number UT-1025) to its permanent regulatory program
for surface coal mining and reclamation operations. The amendment deals
with husbandry practices of vegetation on reclaimed lands. It was
submitted as a State initiative and was distributed to you on March 7,
1995.

Now, enclosed for your review and comment are revisions to the original
amendment (UT-1059), submitted in response to a deficiency letter which OSM
sent to Utah on May 23, 1995.

The Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM) did not
identify any aspects of the amendment that pertain to cultural or historic
resources. Unless comments are received to the contrary, OSM will proceed
as if a determination of no effect is in place with respect to the
consultation requirements of 36 CFR Part 800.

Although the revisions proposed to the original amendment at rules R. 645-
301-357.340 and .350 are not marked with redline or strikeout, it appears
that Utah changed the words "third-party interference"” and “interference"
to "illegal activities" in the first rule and the word "transplants" »»
*transplanted trees and shrubs" in the second.

Your comments are requested by July 12, 1995. However, because a proposed
rule is being prepared for publication in the Federal Register to
officially open the comment period for this amendment, additional time may
be available for review, depending on the date of publication and the date
established for the close of the comment period.

To facilitate our processing of your comments, please refer to
Administrative Record No. UT-1059 in your response.
Comments should be submitted to:

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement

505 Marquette, NW, Suite 1200

Albugquerque, NM 87102
Please contact Vernon E. Maldonado at 505-766-1486 with any questions.

Sincerely,
|e,' &:I]Juvcg]EgLJC$u64A/1——/

Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Albuquerque Field Office

Enclosure



June 27, 1995

Memorandum

To: Jim Fulton, Chief
Denver Field Division Ci} 15

From: Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Albuquerque Field Office

Subject: Formal Amendment to Utah’s Coal Mining Rules (UT-1059, SPAT No.
UT-028-FOR) :

Attached for your evaluation and processing is a copy of a formal amendment
submitted by the Utah Division of 0il, Gas and Mining. A proposed rule is
being prepared by your staff for publication in the Federal Register, to
announce receipt of the amendment and reopen the comment period for 15
days. :

Similar memoranda transmitted the amendment to Gina Guy, Office of the
Regional Solicitor, which instructed her to send comments to you by July
12, 1995.

Please call Vernon Maldonado or me at 505-766-1486 if you have any
questions.

Attachment



June 27, 1995

Memorandum
To: Gina Guy
Office of the Regional Solicitor 0
Rocky Mountain Region :
o o, (%
From: Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director

-

Albugquerque Field Office

Subject: Formal Amendment to Utah’s Coal Mining Rules (UT-1059, SPAT No.
UT-028-FOR)

Attached for your evaluation and processing is a copy of a formal amendment
submitted by the Utah Division of 0il, Gas and Mining. The Denver Field
Division (DFD) of the Western Regional Control Center (WRCC) is preparing a
Federal Register notice to announce receipt of the amendment and reopen the
comment period for 15 days.

Please submit your comments by July 12, 1995, to Mr. Jim Fulton, with a
copy to me. DFD will be preparing either another issue letter or final
rule Federal Register notice for this amendment.

Please call Vernon Maldonado or me at 505-766-1486 if you have any
questions.

Attachment
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U. S. Department of Labor Mine Safety and Health Administration
P.O. Box 25367
Denver, Colorado 802250367
Coal Mine Safety and Health
District 9

JUN 22 1995

Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
Albuquerque Field Office

505 Marquette Avenue, N.W., Suite 1200

Albuquergue, NM 87102

RE: Formal Amendment
Utah’s Coal Mining and
Reclamation Regulatory Program
(UT-917) General Comments

Dear Mr. Ehmett:

This is in response to your letter dated April 29, 1994, requesting
general comments on the referenced proposed formal amendment to
Utah’s mining and reclamation regulatory program. The amendment
has been reviewed by MSHA personnel, and it appears there are no
conflicts with the requirements of 30 CFR.

MSHA appreciates the opportunity to comment on matters of such
importance. If you have any questions, concerning this matter,
please contact this office at (303) 231-5462.

Sincerely,

<1#3)
John A. Kuza

District Manager
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National Mining Association e

Foundation For America’s Future i T CHNNE
MAY | g 1905

Harold P. Quinn, jr. May 12, 1995
Geerens oy President, Genoras Jonnsel s Seleriar

Sl Aty

Mr. Robert J. Uram

Director

Office of Surface Mining

U.S. Department of Interior
Interior South Building 233

1951 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20240

RE: Proposed Implementation Scheme for §720 of SMCRA
60 F.R. 17495; 17498; 17501; 17504 (April 6, 1995)
60 F.R. 17734; 17736; 17739; 17741; 17743 (April 7, 1995)
60 F.R. 18044; 18046 (April 10, 1995)
60 F.R. 18351 (April 11, 1995)

Dear Mr. Uram:

This letter comprises the comments of the National Mining Association (NMA) on the
implementation scheme announced by the Office of Surface Mining for primacy states under
§720 of SMCRA. The NMA is a recently formed trade association joining the American Mining
Congress (AMC) and National Coal Association (NCA) who participated in the regulatory
proceeding which produced the final rule on "Underground Mining Permit Application
Requirements and Performance Standards" published on March 31, 1995 (60 F.R. 16722).

The NMA contends that the various alternative implementation schemes suggesting the
authority and necessity for complete or partial federal enforcement of certain parts of the
underground coal mine rules conflicts directly with SMCRA. We previously set forth this view
during the proposed rulemaking (58 F.R. 50174) in the comments filed by AMC and NCA (copy
attached). In the course of that proposal, as well as in the context of the recent request for
public comment, OSM has completely failed to supply any statutory basis for violating the
deliberate allocation of regulatory authority vested with primacy states.

The proposed implementation scheme is apparently premised upon the incorrect view that
since Congress did not provide specific direction as to how OSM was to implement §720,
OSM is free to devise its own scheme. See 60 F.R. at 16744. The problem with this premise
is that congressional silence is reasonably construed to indicate that Congress intended the
existing statutory scheme to control implementation. SMCRA contains various statutory
procedures for the amendment, preemption and substitution of federal enforcement of state
programs. See e.g., §§503; 505; 521(b). OSM has not explained why these provisions do not
apply here.



-2-

Moreover, the purpose gleaned from § 720 is that Congress did not intend for OSM, or the state
regulatory authorities, to intervene in matters related to the remedies provided to landowners
under that provision. Congress expressly provided that “Nothing in this section shall be
construed to prohibit or interrupt underground coal mining operations.” §720(a). See also
NCA/AMC comments. The phrase "this section” includes the remedies under subsection (a),
as well as the rulemaking conducted under subsection (b). In short, there exists neither the
necessity nor authority for this proposed radical departure from the statute.

Finally, the generic rulemaking authority in §201(c) does not authorize OSM to depart
from SMCRA’s implementation and enforcement scheme. Nor can OSM disregard or otherwise
"waive" the ten-day notice procedure in a primacy state. West Virginia Mining and Reclamation
Assn. v. Snyder, Civ. No. 91-0123-W (N.D.W. Va. August 3, 1991). And, as the district court
in NCA v, Uram recently held, Section 521(a)(1) establishes a mandatory procedure. OSM
cannot simply disregard the applicability of §521(a)(1) in primacy states because it considers it
inconvenient. This proposal is yet another in a series of policy maneuvers by OSM toward the
atrophication of the states’ authority to implement SMCRA. This latest mutation of SMCRA’s
state primacy scheme readily evinces the reasons why OSM’s pervasive presence in primacy
states requires scrutiny immediately.

For these reasons, as well as those set forth in the AMC and NCA comments in the
proposed subsidence rule, we ask that OSM withdraw the notices proposing the possibility that
it would initiate direct federal inspections and enforcement in primacy states. ,

Sincerely,

/é/fml:fQuinn, Jr.

Senior Vice President and
General Counsel

cc: Guy Padgett-Casper Field Office-OSM
James Moncrief-Tulsa Field Office-OSM
Thomas Ehmett-Albuquerque Field Office-OSM
Michael Wulfrom-Kansas City Field Office-OSM
Jim Fulton-Springfield Field Office-OSM
Roger Calhoun-Indianapolis Field Office-OSM
William Kovacic-Lexington Field Office-OSM
Robert Monney-Columbus Field Office-OSM
Robert Penn-Big Stone Gap Field Office-OSM
Jesse Jackson-Birmingham Field Office-OSM
Robert Biggi-Harrisburg Field Office-OSM
James Blankenship-Charleston Field Office-OSM
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Comments of the NCA/AMC Joint Committee on Surface Mining Regulation in Response to
OSM’s Proposed Revisions to Underground Mining Permit Application Requirements and
Performance Standards - 58 Fed. Reg. 50174 (September 24, 1993).

The following comments are submitted by the National Coal Association/American
Mining Congress Joint Committee on Surface Mining Regulations on the proposed rule to
substantially revise and reversé longstanding agency policy for permit application
requirements and performance standards for underground coal mine operations under the
Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA); The coal company‘
members of NCA and AMC account for most of the coal produced from underground mines
throughout the United States. NCA and AMC and their member combanies have participated
in all the significant rulemaking procedures under SMCRA including those establishing the
existing regulatory program for underground coal mines. The Associations and their
members have extensive experience in the planning, development, and operation of

underground coal mine operations domestically and internationally. They are also familiar

with the state of the art technology associated with underground coal mining, subsidence

control, monitoring and reclamation, as well as applicable federal and state laws and
regulations related to these operations. The views expressed in these comments include the

benefit of their knowledge and experience.

AMERICAN Joint NCA/AMC Committee @ COA.-.
MINING |

CONGRESS on ASSOOATION
FOUNDED 1897 . FOUNDED 1917
SO0 1 STREET NW Surface Mining Regulations COAL BULDING
WASHINGTON ) DC 20036
20286192800 22 1187

TWX 7108220126 Coal Building 1130 17th St NW Washington OC 20036



[ ] — Y [~ [ [ 3 [ —— — — — —m [rovron

——— - S ——— M o\

o o

material damage occurred, was used as a residence. . . The
term also includes a building adjunct and used in connection
with the residential use of the occupied dwelling such as a
garage or storage shed. Buildings used for any agricultural,
commercial, or industrial purposes are excluded.

B.  REPLACEMENT OF DRINKING, DOMESTIC OR RESIDENTIAL WATER
SUPPLIES - § 817.41(k)

1. The Rule Designed to Implement Energy Policy Act Provisions Govemning the
Replacement of Domestic Water Supplies Fail Defer to_State Water Rights

Laws as Required by Section 717(a).

When Congress enacted the revisions to SMCRA in the Energy Policy Act mandating the
replacement of drinking and domestic water supplies, there is no indication of any intent to
disrupt state water rights laws establishing priorities among waier users, as guaranteed by section
717(a) of SMCRA. Yet the proposed rule at 30 CFR 817.41(k) would require an underground
coal producer with senior rights to replace any "drinking, domestic or residential water supply
that is contaminated, diminished or interrupted by underground mining activities conducted after
October 24, 1992." 58 FR at 50186. OSM must, therefore, include an appropriate clarification
that this section will not in any way affect property rights under existing state water laws,
consistent with section 717(a).

The water replacement provision of the Energy Policy Act § 2504(a) amends Title VII
of SMCRA, and within that same title is found the broad savings provision for state water law
which provides that:

Nothing in this Act, shall be construed as affecting in any way the
right of a person to enforce or protect, under applicable law, his
interes't in water resources affected by a surface coal mine
operation.

SMCRA § 717(a).

22
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Both the Secretary and a court of appeals have construed this provision so that "whatever

water rights state law affords mine operators are preserved..” National Wildlife Federation v.
Hodel, 839 F. 2d at 757. This savings provision applies equally to the new underground coal
mine water replacement requirements of SMCRA in that new § 720(a)(2) creates an additional
remedy for the designated water users, but does not deprive anyone, including mine operators,

of whatever water rights to the use of water they had previously. cf. NWF v. Hodel, 839 F.

2d at 757.

Congress could have excluded underground coal mine operators from this savings
provision when it amended SMCRA, but chose not to do so. There is no indication that
Congress intended to displace the status quo under SMCRA or its rules that explicitly recognize
existing rights, including those of mine operators, under state water law. The final rules must
reflect the applicability of this savings clause with respect to the remedy provided in proposed
§ 817.41(k) for the replacement of a drinking, domestic or residential water supply.

2. Language of § 817.41(k)

The rule to implement Section 720(a)(2) of SMCRA, § 2504(a)(1) of the Energy Policy
Act, must recognize not only that water loss occurred from "mining" after the effective date of
the Energy Policy Act, but also that the water supply from the wells or springs in existence prior
to the permit application was being used for the drinking, domestic, or residential use at the time
mining occurred which resulted in the loss of the water supply. Also, as we mentioned earlier,
the replacement of a water supply should only pertain to that part of the water supply used for

the purposes covered under Section 720(a)(2).

23
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The federal rule should also recognize that where providing a replacement supply is not
feasible, the permittee can provide the dwelling owner with appropriate compensation for the
loss of the water supply. There is no indication that Congréss intended to place the permittee
in a situation where it may become technically impossible to comply with a requirement, but
instead that it desired that dwelling owners be afforded a remedy where underground coal mining
causes material damage or loss of water. According to Rep. Rahall (D-WYV): "These provisions
say let us mine coal. At the same time, if that coal mining causes damage to someone’s home,
my amendment says that person should be compensated.” 138 Cong. Rec. 11414 (October §,
1992). Moreover, the explicit language of the Energy Policy Act states unequivocally that:
"Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit or interrupt underground coal mining
operations." Accordingly, to satisfy this intent, and to afford homeowners the opportunity for
compensation when providing a replacement source is impractical, the final rule must also set
forth an alternative compensation remedy.

As we discuss later under proposed § 817.121(c)(2), the rule should recognize that
agreements between the permittee and owner constitute per se compliance with these remedial
requirements. The industry’s practice of reaching satisfactory arrangements with landowners
has been successful in resolving most concerns about underground coal mining, and Congress
did not intend to displace these private arrangements, but instead assure that remedies exist
where no arrangements have been made with homeowners.

The term "promptly” should be construed in a flexible manner relative to the

circumstances in each case. Studies on the underground coal mining effects upon hydrology

generally demonstrate that impacts upon water supplies are temporary. Thus, "promptly" should
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not mean that the replacement/compensation measures be completed until the impacts are fully
determined, and appropriate measures considered to address these case-specific circumstances.
The fact that the actual impacts and appropriate measures to address them will vary with the
specific circumstances provides a sound basis for the final rules to explicitly recognize
agreements with landowners as a method for compliance with the rules. It would also fit well
with the nature and intent of the SMCRA amendments which only intended to provide another
remedy for homeowners whose "drinking, domestic, or residential water supply" was lost due
to underground coal mining which occurred after the effective date of the Energy Policy Act.’
Finally, OSM requested comments on the implementation schedules proposed in this rule

for the Energy Policy Act requirements. According to the preamble:

In OSM’s opinion, Congress did not intend enforcement of this

Energy Policy Act provisions to await state program amendments,

a process that may take years.
58 F.R. at 50180.
We submit that OSM has framed and characterized the issue incorrectly. This is not an issue
of enforcement, but one of a remedy available to the homeowner. This is made clear in the
history and language of the amendments which explicitly state that this provision cannot be
applied to prohibit or interrupt underground coal mining. 106 Stat. 3104. To the extent these

remedies were available for damage related to mining which occurs after the effective date of

the statutory amendments, the rules incorporate these dates. Suggestions in the preamble about

7 OSM requested specific comments on whether the regulatory requirements should
include a plan for the "repair of subsidence-related damage to well water supply.” We
submit that no such plan is authorized or necessary under the Energy Policy Act
requirements. However, the rules should recognize the agreements with homeowners as one
method for addressing repair/compensation requirements of that Act.
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enforcement conflict with Congressional intent and other statutory provisions in SMCRA that
prohibit the regulatory authority from adjudicating property disputes. Homeowners who believe
they have not been provided the remedies afforded under the law may proceed with whatever
action is necessary to obtain these remedies witﬁout entangling the federal and state agencies in
these matters.

3. Revised Language

The rules should be revised to more closely reflect the statutory language as follows:
§ 817.41(k) Drinking, Domestic, or Residential Water Supply.

The permittee shall promptly replace, or compensate for, that part
of a water supply used for drinking, domestic, or residential use
that is contaminated, diminished, or interrupted by underground
mining activities conducted after October 24, 1992, if the source
of the affected supply was a well or spring in existence and used
for drinking, domestic or residential purposes as of the date the
regulatory authorities received the permit application for the
activities causing the loss, contamination or interruption. Nothing
in these rules shall be construed as affecting in any way the rights
of any person, including the permittee, to enforce or protect, under
applicable state law, his interest in water resources. Nothing in
these rules shall be construed to prohibit or interrupt underground
coal mining operations.

C. REPAIR OR COMPENSATION FOR SUBSIDENCE DAMAGE TO
OCCUPIED RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS, RELATED STRUCTURES AND
NON-COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - § 817.121(C)(2).

The final rule should recognize that agreements between the owner of the protected

buildings and the mine operator will satisfy this requirement. Pre-subsidence and post-
subsidence agreements between operators and owners have been used for decades to satisfactorily

deal with landowner concerns. These agreements, or good neighbor policies, are a principal

reason why the Department found few problems with subsidence damage during the 1991 notice
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of inquiry. These policies may provide benefits not required under existing state laws and rules,
or the new Energy Policy Act requirements for that matter. State regulatory authorities have
generally accepted these agreements as per se compliance with their State subsidence damage
laws. This approach avoids entangling the regulatory authorities in private disputes, and the
adjudication of property disputes which is unauthorized under SMCRA and State programs. See
e.g. SMCRA §§ 507(b)(9), 510(b)(6).

Moreover, these agreements allow the parties to tailor the compensation, repair, water
replacement to the site-specific circumstances, and property owners’ needs and preferences.
These agreements will sometimes use a combination of compensation, repair, in-kind services
(e.g. construction of a pond or road), or other payments to satisfy the building owner. To retain
this flexibility, the final rule should reflect that such agreements will be recognized and accepted
as satisfaction of the requirements in the rule. To provide otherwise will unduly burden
operators, and deny landowners the ability to contract with respect to their property. Industry’s
experience has proven that it is better to deal with landowners when possible in a flexible
manner, rather than attempting to address each in a pre-determined fashion.  If OSM’s final
rules do not accommodate these agreements, then the rules will set back decades of progress,
and frustrate Congressional intent.

Such recognition should also be accorded to agreements reached by property owners and
operators prior to the enactment of the Energy Policy Act. The purpose of the Energy Policy
Act was to provide owners of certain designated buildings a remedy for material subsidence
damage where none already existed. Nothing in the language or history of the Energy Policy

Act indicates an attempt to "unsettle" matters already mutually agreed to by the parties. Failure
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to recognize existing agreements would render the rules, and the Energy Policy Act,
constitutionally suspect under Article I § 10 of the U.S. Constitutic_m which prohibits the States
from the passage of any "Law Impairing the Obligation of Contracts”; and, this similar
prohibition applies to the federal government under the due process clause of the Fifth
Amendment. The rule should also recognize that where there exists agreements between
landowners and operators, these agreements may also be recognized to allow for the wai;/er of
filing subsidence control plans for those areas, as well as areas where the operator owns the
surface and buildings.

The final rule should also clarify that the term "promptly" must be applied in a relative
and flexible manner relating to the site-specific circumstances, and not construed and applied to
require the remedies provided in the provision to be undertaken until the time when the full
extent of the subsidence effects can be reasonably determined. Operators should not be
compelled to initiate repair/compensation measures prematurely, only to once again conduct
additional measures because the subsidence effects have not abated.

Finally, conspicuously absent from any aspect of the rulemaking is the language added
in the Energy Policy Act that the provisions of § 2504(a) only provide additional remedies to
owners of those buildings and water supplies covered in that section, and are not intended for

purposes of enforcement or prohibition of underground coal mining. That language states clearly

that:
Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit or interrupt
underground coal mine operations.

106 Stat. 3104.
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This language was inserted into the legislation during the Conference Committee in ]
response to concerns that while these provisions were characterized as only remedial in nature, ]
they would be used as a basis for denying coal mine permits, issuance of enforcement orders,
and entangling the federal and state agencies in disputes between operators and Jandowners.
This statutory provision also demonstrates Congressional intent that the obligations set forth in
Section 2504(a) of the Energy Policy Act (§ 720 of SMCRA) were intended to resolve all issues :
over the scope of SMCRA authority to impose any requirements to repair/compensate for '
subsidence damage, and replacement of water supplies. Given Congressional concern that the
provisions of new § 720 do not provide a basis for the prohibition or interruption of underground
mining, it clearly intended that OSM not imply some residual authority for imposing additional
obligations and remedies with respect to underground coal mines.®

Proposed Section 817.121(c) should be revised to insert the following provisions:

"The permittee may satisfy this requirement through an agreement
with the owner or interest.”

* * * * * % * * *

"Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit or interrupt
underground coal mining operations.”

§ Even in the absence of this express language in the Energy Policy Act, a series of cases
have held that remedial provisions in the federal SMCRA and state SMCRAs do not preempt
or render invalid state common law on waivers of subjacent support. See Smerdell v,
Consolidation Coal Company, 806 F. Supp. 1278, 1284 (W.D. W.Va. 1992) Accord. Sendra
v. Consolidation Coal Company., C.A. No. 89-0009-W(s) (N.D. W.Va. March 27. 1991);
Giza v, Consolidation Coal Company, C.A. No. 85-0056-W(s)(N.D. W. Va. Dec. 12,

1991), aff’d., 972 F. 2d 339 (4th Cir. 1992); Russell v, Island Creek Coal Company, 389 8
S.E. 2d 194, 205 (1989). ‘
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additional costs and reallocates property rights, existing mechanisms in place should be evaluated
and utilized. There exists no compelling need to alter the property rights, particularly among
commercial interests, when another mechanism exists, or one could be established to provide
insurance protection to an establishment built over coal areas where the titlé cl‘eaﬂy reserves the
right to subside.

OSM must evaluate existing programs which exist in these states in order to fully analyze
the need for these proposed rules. Even when an insurance program does not cover a potential
circumstance, the agency should evaluate whether establishment or enhancement of such a
program in the states would provide an effective and more equitable option than aspects of this
rulemaking which interfere with existing state property rights. See Qverview of Mine
Subsidence Insurance Programs in the Untied States, BOM Inf. Cir. 9362 (1993).

K. Proposed Enforcement Scheme

It remains unclear from the proposal what OSM means by retroactive enforcement. Nor
is it clear which of these proposed standards OSM would make immediately effective. Only two
performance standards appear related to the Energy Policy Act: § 817.41(k) and § 817.121(c)(2).
According to the preamble, only these two standards would apply in the states upon
promulgation of a final rule. However, the proposed definitions in § 701.5 expand the scope
of these standards beyond what one derives from tﬁeir plain meaning in the Energy Policy Act.
It would be harsh and unjust to take enforcement action against operators in those circumstances
where one could not reasonably anticipate that the statutory provisions would be expanded so
broadly. Operators cannot be held to a standard or interpretation unknown at the time the

incident occurred. Indeed, this would constitute retroactive enforcement, which is generally
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proscribed. See e.g. Georgetown University Hospital v, Brown, 821 F. 2d 750 (D.C. Cir.
1987), aff’d 109 S. Ct. 468 (1988); U.S. V. Shelton Coal Corp., 829 F. 2d 1336 (4th Cir.

1987).

The proposed enforcement scheme does not comport with that under SMCRA which vests
the state with enforcement authority. We submit that OSM should discuss with various states,
approaches to assure ﬁat any necessary remedial work is performed by operators withoﬁt the
need for enforcement or federal intervention. We believe that OSM will find that most operators
will perform any clear obligations imposed under the Energy Policy Act amendments. There
will be cases where legitimate disagreements exist over causation and scope of obligations, but
these are the types of issues that are not amenable to intervention by the regulatory authorities
or OSM.

Unlike OSM, we do not glean from the Energy Policy Act amendments the same intent
or concern about “"enforcement”. Instead, an intent to avoid the regulatory authorities
intercedence into issues over damage, repair and compensation is evident from the statutory
caveat that these provisions not be used to interrupt or prohibit underground coal mining. The
intent was to provide homeowners a remedy where nohc existed, angl_ any clalm thatan operator ~
has not satisfied its obligation under § 720(a) may be pﬁrsuéd by the owﬁef without any
intervention by the state or OSM, with or without federal rules implementing these provisions.
We see no necessity for OSM to supersede state programs. OSM should refrain from this action

since it has not adequately explained how OSM would interact with states and operators in these

circumstances. Would it send ten-day-notices, or would it initiate procedures under Part 733?
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Without any further discussion of these issues, operators cannot adequately comment on this
aspect of the proposal.
Finally, with respect to the remaining aspects of this proposal, these requirements cannot
apply in a state until that state adopts its version of the requirements in its program.

VII. ANALYSIS ON COSTS, REPORTING BURDENS AND OTHER EFFECTS UPON
THE COAL INDUSTRY

The Environmental Assessment and Determination of Effects prepared in support of the
proposed rule discloses the haphazard manner in which the agency decided to add, at the last
moment, many aspects of the proposed regulations and burdens which conflict with the intent
of the Energy Policy Act. In various parts of the Environmental Assessment and Determination
of Effects, significant aspects of the proposal are not even mentioned. In other parts, the
passing mention of these new requirements appear to have been added léter to documents
prepared for supporting rulemaking limited to implementation of § 2504(a) of the Energy Policy
Act. Moreover, the minimal depth of the discussion and analysis in each document further
demonstrates that the agency has not adequately considered the need, basis, and impact of those
aspects of the proposed rule which impose obligations and standards beyond those required under

the Energy Policy Act.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

The Environmental Assessment (EA) ‘states that OSM considered only two alternatives:
(1) no action; and, (2) the proposed rule. E.A. at 6. However, the National Environmental
Protection Act (NEPA) requires the agency to evaluate all reasonable alternatives. In this

matter, there was at least one other reasonable alternative which would be rules implementing
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DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING

355 West North Temple
Governor 3 Triad Cen}er. Suite 350
Ted Stewart Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203
Executive Director 801-538-5340

James W. Carter 801-359-3940 (Fax)
Division Director 8 801-538-5319 (TDD) June 5 ’ 1 995

& State of Utah O ur-jesy

Michael O. Leavitt
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Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation & Enforcement

505 Marquette N.W., Suite 1200
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

Re: UT-028-FOR, Husbandry Practices Additional Information

Dear MQ%_[}S

This letter is in response to your issue letter of May 23, 1995. While you
will find that the information enclosed is not a complete resubmittal of the program
amendment, the appropriate revised documents are included: the draft husbandry
practices rules, Utah Admin. Rule R645-301-357 et seq., and a proposed Appendix
"C" to the existing Vegetation Information Guidelines. To avoid confusion in
identifying the revised documents, | have labelled them Enclosure Nos. 1.and 2,
respectively, and have dated each of the documents with the current date.

The main body of the husbandry practices rules is already adopted as part of
the Utah Administrative Rules, but the enclosed changes at R645-301-357.340
and R645-301-357.350 remain as draft at this time. Likewise, the changes made
to Appendix "C" are draft. Once the new forms of R645-301-357 et seq. and
Appendix "C" are approved by OSM, Utah will begin the rulemaking process.

Please let me know if there are questions on this revised submittal, or if you
require additional information.

mes W. Carter
irector

Enclosures (2) e

cc/enc: P. Baker
L. Braxton
R. Daniels
S. White

H:HUSBAND.LTR




Enclosure No. 2

Proposed for Inclusion as Appendix "C"
to the Existing
Vegetation Information Guidelines
June 5, 1995

Burned Area Revegetation:

USDA Forest Service. 1995. Burned-area emergency rehabilitation handbook. FSH 2509.13.
Chapter 20, p. 1-18.

USDI Bureau of Land Management. 1985. Emergency fire rehabilitation. BLM Manual,
Handbook H-1742-1. p. 1-9.

USDI Bureau of Land Management. 1987. State office emergency fire rehabilitation 1742.
 BLM Manual Utah State Office Release 1-152. Sections .01 through .8, Appendix I.

Pest Control:

Plummer, A. P., D. R. Christensen, and S. B. Monsen. 1968. Restoring big-game range in
Utah. Utah Division of Fish and Game Publication No. 68-3. p. 1-183.

USDA Forest Service. 1988. Fences. Missoula Technology and Development Center,
Richard Karsky (Project Leader). U.S. Government Printing Office: 1988-594-
194/80139. p. 1-210.

Vallentine, J. F. 1977. Range development and improvements. Brigham Young University
Press, Provo, Utah. p. 1-516.

Wildlife Society, The. 1980. Wildlife management techniques manual, fourth edition:
revised. S. D. Schemnitz (ed.). The Wildlife Society, Washington, D.C. p. 1-686.

Rill and Gully Repair:

Israelsen, C. E., J. E. Fletcher, F. W. Haws, and E. K. Israelsen. 1984. Erosion and
sedimentation in Utah: a guide for control. Utah Water Research Laboratory,
Logan, Utah. Hydraulics and Hydrology Series UWRL/H-84/03. p. 1-90.

Transportation Research Board. 1980. Erosion control during highway construction: manual
on principles and practices. National Research Council, Washington, D.C. National
Cooperative Highway Research Program Report 221. p. 1-23.



Enclosure No. 2

Utah State University Agricultural Experiment Station and Cooperative Extension Service.
1989. Interagency forage and conservation planting guide for Utah. Howard Horton
(ed.). Extension Circular EC433. p. 1-67.

Vallentine, J. F. 1977. Range development and improvements. Brigham Young University
Press, Provo, Utah. p. 1-516.

Seeding and Planting:

Bureau of Land Management. 1987. Renewable resource improvement and treatment
guidelines and procedures. Bureau of Land Management Handbook H-1740-1. p. IV-
1 to IV-10.

Ferguson, R. B., and N. C. Frischknecht. 1981. Shrub establishment on reconstructed soils
_in semiarid areas. Proc. Shrub establishment on disturbed arid and semi-arid lands.
Wyoming Game and Fish Dept. p. 1-154.

Plummer, A.P., D.R. Christensen, and S. B. Monsen. 1968. Restoring big-game range in
Utah. Utah Division of Fish and Game Publication No. 68-3. p. 1-183.

Utah State University Agricultural Experiment Station and Cooperative Extension Service.
1989. Interagency forage and conservation planting guide for Utah. Howard Horton
(ed.). Extension Circular EC433. p. 1-67.

Vallentine, J. F. 1977. Range development and improvements. Brigham Young University
Press, Provo, Utah. p. 1-516.

Weed Control:

Bureau of Land Management. 1991. Final environmental impact statement, vegetation
treatment on BLM lands in thirteen western states. U.S. Government Printing Office:

1991-573-071/44014.

Montana State University, Utah State University, and University of Wyoming Cooperative
Extension Services. 1993. 1993-94 Montana - Utah - Wyoming weed control
handbook. Tom D. Whitson, Steven A. Dewey, and Peter K. Fay (editors). p. 1-
210.



DRAFT - June 5, 1995 Enclosure No. 1

357.300. Husbandry Practices - General Information

357.301. The Division may approve certain selective husbandry practices without
lengthening the extended responsibility period. Practices that may be approved are identified
in R645-301-357.310 through R645-301-357.365. The operator may propose to use
additional practices, but they would need to be approved as part of the Utah Program in
accordance with 30 CFR 732.17. Any practices used will first be incorporated into the
mining and reclamation plan and approved in writing by the Division. Approved practices
are normal conservation practices for unmined lands within the region which have land uses
similar to the approved postmining land use of the disturbed area. Approved practices may
continue as part of the postmining land use, but discontinuance of the practices after the end
of the bond liability period will not jeopardize permanent revegetation success. Augmented
seeding, fertilization, or irrigation will not be approved without extending the period of
responsibility for revegetation success and bond liability for the areas affected by said
activities and in accordance with R645-301-820.330.

357.302. The Permittee will demonstrate that husbandry practices proposed for a
reclaimed area are not necessitated by inadequate grading practices, adverse soil conditions,
or poor reclamation procedures.

357.303. The Division will consider the entire area that is bonded within the same
increment, as defined in R645-301-820.110, when calculating the extent of area that may be
treated by husbandry practices.

357.304. If it is necessary to seed or plant in excess of the limits set forth under
R645-301-357.300, the Division may allow a separate extended responsibility period for
these reseeded or replanted areas in accordance with R645-301-820.330.

357.310. Reestablishing trees and shrubs

357.311. Trees or shrubs may be replanted or reseeded at a rate of up to a
cumulative total of 20% of the required stocking rate through 40% of the extended
responsibility period.

357.312. If shrubs are to be established by seed in areas of established vegetation,
small areas will be scalped. The number of shrubs to be counted toward the tree and shrub
density standard for success from each scalped area is limited to one.

357.320. Weed Control and Associated Revegetation. Weed control through
chemical, mechanical, and biological means discussed in R645-301-357.321 through R645-
301-357.323 is allowed through the entire extended responsibility period for noxious weeds
and through the first 20% of the responsibility period for other weeds. Any revegetation
necessitated by the following weed control methods will be performed according to the
seeding and transplanting parameters set forth in R645-301-357.324.

357.321. Chemical Weed Control. Weed control through chemical means, following
the current Weed Control Handbook (published annually or biannually by the Utah State
University Cooperative Extension Service) and herbicide labels, is allowed.

357.322. Mechanical Weed Control. Mechanical practices that may be approved
include hand roguing, grubbing and mowing.

357.323. Biological Weed Control. Selective grazing by domestic livestock is
allowed. Biological control of weeds through disease, insects, or other biological weed
control agents is allowed but will be approved on a case-by-case basis by the Division, and
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other appropriate agency or agencies which have the authority to regulate the introduction
and/or use of biological control agents.

357.324. Where weed control practices damage desirable vegetation, areas treated to
control weeds may be reseeded or replanted according to the following limitations. Up to a
cumulative total of 15% of a reclaimed area may be reseeded or replanted during the first
20% of the extended responsibility period without restarting the responsibility period. After
the first 20% of the responsibility period, no more than 3% of the reclaimed area may be
reseeded in any single year without restarting the responsibility period, and no continuous
reseeded area may be larger than one acre. Furthermore, no seeding is allowed after the
first 60% of the responsibility period or Phase II bond release, whichever comes first. Any
seeding outside these parameters is considered to be "augmentative seeding," and will restart
the extended responsibility period.

357.330. Control of Other Pests.

357.331. Control of big game (deer, elk, moose, antelope) may be used only during
the first 60% of the extended responsibility period or until Phase II bond release, whichever
comes first. Any methods used will first be approved by the Division and, as appropriate,
the land management agency and the Utah Division of Wildlife Resources. Methods that
may be used include fencing and other barriers, repellents, scaring, shooting, and trapping
and relocation. Trapping and special hunts or shooting will be approved by the Division of
Wildlife Resources. Other control techniques may be allowed but will be considered on a
case-by-case basis by the Division and by the Utah Division of Wildlife Resources.
Appendix C of the Division’s "Vegetation Information Guidelines" includes a non-exhaustive
list of publications containing big game control methods.

357.332. Control of small mammals and insects will be approved on a case-by-case
basis by the Utah Division of Wildlife Resources and/or the Utah Department of Agriculture.
The recommendations of these agencies will also be approved by the appropriate land
management agency or agencies. Small mammal control will be allowed only during the first
60% of the extended responsibility period or until Phase II bond release, whichever comes
first. Insect control will be allowed through the entire extended responsibility period if it is
determined, through consultation with the Utah Department of Agriculture or Cooperative
Extension Service, that a specific practice is being performed on adjacent unmined lands.

357.340. Natural Disasters and Illegal Activities Occurring After Phase II Bond
Release. Where necessitated by a natural disaster, excluding climatic variation, or illegal
activities, such as vandalism, not caused by any lack of planning, design, or implementation
of the mining and reclamation plan on the part of the Permittee, the seeding and planting of
the entire area which is significantly affected by the disaster or illegal activities will be
allowed as an accepted husbandry practice and thus will not restart the extended
responsibility period. Appendix C of the Division’s "Vegetation Information Guidelines"
references publications that show methods used to revegetate damaged land. Examples of
natural disasters that may necessitate reseeding which will not restart the extended
responsibility period include wildfires, earthquakes, and mass movement originating outside
the disturbed area.

357.341. The extent of the area where seeding and planting will be allowed will be
determined by the Division in cooperation with the Permittee.
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357.342. All applicable revegetation success standards will be achieved on areas
reseeded following a disaster, including R645-301-356.232 for areas with a designated
postmining land use of forestry or wildlife.

357.343. Seeding and planting after natural disasters or illegal activities will only be
allowed in areas where Phase II bond release has been granted.

357.350. Irrigation. The irrigation of transplanted trees and shrubs, but not of
general areas, 1s allowed through the first 20% of the extended responsibility period.
Irrigation may be by such methods as, but not limited to, drip irrigation, hand watering, or
sprinkling.

357.360. Highly Erodible Area and Rill and Gully Repair. The repair of highly
erodible areas and rills and gullies will not be considered an augmentative practice, and will
thus not restart the extended responsibility period, if the affected area as defined in R645-
301-357.363 comprises no more than 15% of the disturbed area for the first 20% of the
extended responsibility period and if no continuous area to be repaired is larger than one
acre.

357.361. After the first 20% of the extended responsibility period but prior to the
end of the first 60% of the responsibility period or until Phase II bond release, whichever
comes first, highly erodible area and rill and gully repair will be considered augmentative,
and will thus restart the responsibility period, if the area to be repaired is greater than 3% of
the total disturbed area or if a continuous area is larger than one acre.

357.362. The extent of the affected area will be determined by the Division in
cooperation with the Permittee.

357.363. The area affected by the repair of highly erodible areas and rills and gullies
is defined as any area that is reseeded as a result of the repair. Also included in the affected
areas are interspacial areas of thirty feet or less between repaired rills and gullies. Highly
erodible areas are those areas which cannot usually be stabilized by ordinary conservation
treatments and if left untreated can cause severe erosion or sediment damage.

357.364. The repair and/or treatment of rills and gullies which result from a
deficient surface water control or grading plan, as defined by the recurrence of rills and
gullies, will be considered an augmentative practice and will thus restart the extended
responsibility period.

357.365. The Permittee shall demonstrate by specific plans and designs the methods
to be used for the treatment of highly erodible areas and rills and gullies. These will be
based on a combination of treatments recommended in the Soil Conservation Service (Natural
Resources Conservation Service) Critical Area Planting recommendations, literature
recommendations including those found in Appendix C of the Division’s "Vegetation
Information Guidelines", and other successful practices used at other reclamation sites in the
State of Utah. Any treatment practices used will be approved by the Division.
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING
Reclamation and Enforcement
Suite 1200
505 Marquette Avenue N.W.
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

June 5, 1995

Memorandum

To: The Utah Administrative Record

From: Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director %/ W

Albuquerque Field Office
Subject: Consultation with the State of Utah

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 (EPACT) added a section, Section 720, to Surface
Mining Control and Reclamation Act (SMCRA) for which implementing federal
regulations were published March 31, 1995. Included in the new regulations is
Section 843.25 which addresses EPACT enforcement in States with approved
programs. Section 843.25 directs OSM to make a State-by-State determination of
the appropriate regulatory approach for each State in the period before approved
State regulations implementing the provisions of EPACT are in place. Before
making this determination, Section 843.25 requires that OSM consult with each
affected State.

Consultation with the Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining (DOGM) occurred in
conjunction with the public hearing held May 1, 1995, in the DOGM Board Room.
The hearing was requested by the Utah Mining Association in response to the

April 6, 1995, Federal Register Notice soliciting comments on the implementation of
underground subsidence and water replacement provisions of Section 720 of
SMCRA. The State made an oral and written statement in the Hearing, and
discussion with OSM foliowed. The State’s written statement is attached.

When EPACT was passed, DOGM did not have provisions in its Statue to support
regulation of subsidence related material damage and water loss or diminution.

In 1993, DOGM made a submittal to the State Legislation that was intended to
update the Utah Statute to be no less effective than Section 720 of SMCRA.
However, during the legislative process the provision covering water replacement
was removed from the bill in deference to the Utah State Engineer’s authority over
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water rights. Senate Bill 214 passed, effective May 2, 1994, adding 40-10-18 (4)
(a) which states:

Underground coal mining operations conducted after October 24, 1992,
shall be subject to the following requirement: The permittee shall
promptly repair, or compensate for, material damage resulting from
subsidence caused to any occupied residential dwelling and related
structures or non-commercial building due to underground mining
operations. Repair of damage will include rehabilitation, restoration, or
replacement of the damaged occupied residential dwelling and related
structures or noncommercial building. Compensation shall be provided
to the owner of the damaged occupied residential dwelling and related
structures or noncommercial building and will be in the full amount of
the diminution in value resulting from the subsidence. Compensation
may be accomplished by the purchase, prior to mining, of a
noncancellable premium prepaid insurance policy.

There is no approved language regarding water replacement.

In conversation following the public hearing, DOGM stated that it recognizes that
hydrology is the most important issue facing the Utah coal operators and DOGM,
as regulators. DOGM pointed out that it has, in the past, investigated ground
water hydrology and taken action to address concerns both in its permitting
process and because of concerns expressed by citizens and interested parties
under the current hydrologic regulatory language.

DOGM reiterated that, though there is potential for conflicts with State Water Law
regarding replacement for “junior* water allocation, DOGM is committed to
developing further water replacement regulation that would meet the needs of
EPACT without impacting current water rights doctrine. The current timetable
given in DOGM'’s presentation is introducing new legislation in the 1996 session
and rulemaking by the summer of 1996.

DOGM'’s preference for interim enforcement methodology is immediate State
implementation of the terms of EPACT under general provisions in the current
State regulations, and continued implementation under new regulatlons similar to
Federal regulations as rulemaking occurs. :

ANALYSIS

OSM finds that DOGM has implemented provisions contained in its approved
regulatory program concerning hydrologic information and hydrologic balance
replacement and is committed to the investigation and resolution of citizens’
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concerns regarding water sources. OSM also recognizes that the majority of
mines in Utah are subject to the EPACT provisions and that there are both current
concerns, as well as potential for additional complaints, regarding the loss,
contamination or diminution of water sources that serve large populations in the
coal producing counties of Utah. These concerns are documented in the written
record of the hearing in which numerous parties spoke on behalf of the water
districts.

All mines in Utah are underground operations, of which it appears that 21 mines
have conducted mining operations after October 24, 1992. DOGM has the
statutory basis in place corresponding to all of 30 CFR 817.(j), but does not have
language corresponding to 817.121(c)(2). The timetable for promulgating water
replacement statutory and/or regulatory provisions corresponding to 817. 121(c)(2)
is in keeping with usual timeframes for enactment of legislation and revision of
regulations.

It is our initial determination that OSM should defer to State enforcement of
provisions corresponding to subsidence related material damage and state
enforcement of provisions concerning water loss or diminution caused by
underground mining to the extent authorized under the approved Utah regulatory
program. The State will retain its role as primary enforcer to the extent that it has
the authority to do so. In that it is unclear under current Utah regulatory provisions
that the protections corresponding to 817.121(c)(2) can be fully implemented by
Utah in all cases, OSM must retain enforcement authority in cases where it is
determined that Utah lacks authority or where exercise of current authority will not
meet the requirements of 817.121(c)(2).

This approach was discussed with DOGM on May 31, and June 5, 1995, and OSM
and DOGM are in agreement that this selection will fully enforce provisions of the
Energy Policy Act until such time as the State has all appropriate statutory and
regulatory language in place.

cc: Dennis Winterringer



Statement of James W. Carter
Director, Utah Division of Oil Gas and Mining
May 1, 1995

The Division appreciates the opportunity to address the Office of Surface
Mining on implementation of the subsidence and water replacement provisions of
the Energy Policy Act through this public hearing process. As you know, the Utah
coal industry produced in excess of 24 Million tons of coal last year, all by
underground mining methods. The two main areas of regulation under the Act,
subsidence control and the replacement of water supplies affected by underground
mining, are significant features of the Utah coal program and are important to the
underground mining industry and the residents of coal mining areas.

During the 1994 Utah legislative session, the Division of Oil, Gas and Mining
was successful in obtaining amendments to the Utah coal regulatory program
implementing most of the changes to SMCRA brought about by the Energy Policy
Act. However, because of implications for Utah’s long-settled water law, those
portions dealing with subsidence damage and water replacement were not enacted
as proposed. The Division, therefore, has not yet formally adopted subsidence or
water replacement rules as OSM has recently done. The Division has already
committed to introduce new legislation in the 1996 session, if necessary, which
will avoid the earlier water law concerns, and could provide the basis for
rulemaking by this time next year. Notwithstanding the actions of the 1994
legislature, the Division and Board currently have authority under existing
enactments and rules to adequately address subsidence and water replacement

issues as they arise.

Since obtaining primacy in 1981 the Division has been making well-based
and informed decisions on the hydrologic impacts of underground mining through
the use of advanced computer modeling and investigatory techniques, combined
with formal and informal administrative processes. The Division and Board have
been examining water and related subsidence issues for quite some time. n
cooperation with the Utah Division of Water Rights we have been addressing water
supply and water rights issues from the very beginning of the State’s primacy
program. We have also learned a great deal about the western mining subsidence
phenomenon during the past fourteen years of primacy, and we routinely condition
mining permits to avoid subsidence-caused surface damage.

Enactment of new subsidence and water replacement law and regulations
may enhance these on-going activities, but such regulations must be carefully
crafted within existing water rights doctrine. In this area in particular, state
primacy in creating and administering the provisions of the Energy Policy Act is
critical. Without close collaboration with the Division or Water Rights, regulation of
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subsidence damage and water replacement will be a legal morass. The potential
for creating conflicts between the legitimate objectives of the prior appropriation
doctrine and the Energy Policy Act is high, and careful definition of the interplay of

the two is criticatl.

We are now in an interim regulatory period while OSM analyzes the Utah
program and the provisions of our most recent program amendment submittal, and
compares them to its own recntly promulgated rules. During this period it would
make no logical sense for OSM to gear up a seperate federal program to address
only subsidence damage and water replacement issues for three reasons: 1) The
Board and Division have adequate existing authority to implement those provisions;
2) There exist significant legal and administrative impediments to creation of a
successful seperate federal program; 3) At the outside, the Division can have new
regulatory provisions in place, if necessary, by March, 1996. This would be in the
case legislation is required. If only administrative rules are required, these can be

enacted in a matter of weeks.

Given these circumstances, implementation of the terms of the Energy Policy
Act by any other regulatory authority than the State of Utah at this time would be
be an inefficient and wasteful use of our scarce budgetary resources. We
recommend that OSM continue with its review of Utah’s recent program
amendments and that the Division pursue whatever legislative or administrative
modifications are deemed necessary. We would strongly discourage the creation of
a new, temporary and limited-scope regulatory program.

[:statemen.sub :
..
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those countries extitled to reciprocal
privileges and dedignates the extent of
the exemptions aljowed.

In accordance wWith 19 U.S.C. 1309(d),

Dhabi, Bahrain, Oman and Qatar allow
or would allow to gircraft of United
States registry exerhiption privileges, in
connection with international
commerce operatiohs, substantially
reciprocal to those ¢xemption privileges
provided to aircraftjof foreign registry by
sections 309 and 31f7 of the Tariff Act

of 1930, as amended. The effective date
of this finding is June 1, 1994.

This document amends the list in
5§ 10.59(f}, Customs Regulations (19 CFR
10.59(f)) by adding Abu Dhabi, Bahrain,
Oman and Qatar to fthe list of countries
entitled to reciprocgl privileges.

Authority to amepnd this section of the
Customs Regulations has been delegated
to the Chief, Reguldtions Branch.

Inapplicability of
Comment Requirerpents, Delayed
Effective Date Reqgirements, the
Regulatory Flexibility Act, and
Executive Order 12866

Because the subject matter of this
_document does no} constitute a
departure from estpblished policy or
procedures, but me¢rely announces the
granting of an exemption for which
there is a statutory] basis, it has been
determined, pursyant to 5 U.S.C.
553(b){B), that the|notice and public
comment procedures thereon are
unnecessary. Further, for the same
reasons and becayse Abu Dhabi,
Bahrain, Oman arld Qatar have been
found to be presently granting
reciprocal exemption privileges to U.S.-
registered aircraft] it has been
determined, pursjant to 5 U.S.C.
553(d)(1) and (3}, that a delayed
effective date is npt required. Because
this document is not subject to the
notice and public|procedure
requirements of 5{U.S5.C. 553, it is not
subject to the profisions of the
Regulatory Flexdhility Act (5 U.S.C. 601
et seq.). This docfiment does not meet
the criteria for a ‘|significant regulatory
action” as specified in E.O. 12866. -

List of Subjects in 19 CFR Part 10
Aircraft, Custgms duties and

inspection, Expgrts, Imports, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

Amendment to tl'}e Regulations

To reflect the rqciprocal privileges
ranted to aircraff registered in Abu
Dhabi, Bahrain, Qman and Qatar, part
10, Customs Regylations (19 CFR part
10) is amended a$ set forth below:

PART 10—ARTIGLES CONDITIONALLY
FREE, SUBJECT|TO A REDUCED
RATE, ETC.

1. The authorify citation for part 10
continues to read, in part, as follows:

Authority: 19 UJS.C. 66, 1202 (General
Note 20, Harmonited Tariff Schedule of the
United States (HTSUS)), 1321, 1481, 1484,
1498, 1508, 1623,/1624;

* * * * * )
Section 10.59 also issued under 19 U.S.C.

1309, 1317;

k3 *x * * *

§10.59 [Amenged]

2. Section 10.59(f) is amended in the
table by adding to the column headed
“Country”, in gppropriate alphabetical
order, ‘‘Abu Dhjabi”, “Bahrain”,
“Oman”, and “Qatar"” and by adding
“95-45" adjacent to the names of the
above-listed cofintries in the column
headed “Treasyry Decision(s)".

Dated: May 23,11995.
Harold M. Singer]
Chief, Regulation
[FR Doc. 95-1
BILLING CODE

Brgnch.
iled 5-26-95; 8:45 am]

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement

30 CFR Part 944

Utah Reguilatory Program

AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM),
Interior.

ACTION: Final rule; approval of
amendment.

SUMMARY: OSM is approving, with an
exception and additional requirements,
a proposed amendment to the Utah
regulatory program (hereinafter referred
to as the “Utah program™} under the
Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA). Utal:
proposed revisions to and additions of
rules pertaining to retention of
highwalls in the postmining landscape.
Utah submitted the amendment with the
intent of revising its program to be
consistent with the corresponding
Federal regulations, clarifying
ambiguities, and improving operational
efficiency.

EFFECTIVE DATE: May 30, 1995.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director,
Albuquerque Field Office, Telephone:
(505) 766—1486.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: .
L. Background on the Utah Program

On January 21, 1981, the Secretary of
the Interior conditionally approved the
Utah program. General background
information on the Utah program,
including the Secretary’s findings, the
disposition of comments, and the
conditions of approval of the Utah
program can be found in the January 21,
1981, Federal Register (46 FR 5899).
Subsequent actions concerning Utah's
program and program amendments can
be found at 30 CFR 944.15, 944.16, and
944.30.

1I. Proposed Amendment

By letter dated November 12, 1993,
Utah submitted a proposed amendment
to its program pursuant to SMCRA
{administrative record No. UT-8735).
Utah submitted the proposed
amendment at its own initiative and in
response to the required State program
amendments codified at 30 CFR 944.16
(a), ), {c}, and (d). The provisions of
the Utah Administrative Rules (Utah
Admin. R.) that Utah proposed to revise
were: Utah Admin. R. 645-301-~553.200,
spoil and waste; Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.252, refuse piles; Utah Admin.
R. 645-301~553.500, previously mined
areas (PMA’s), continuously mined
areas (CMA’s), and areas subject to the
approximate original contour (AOC)
requirements; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.520, exception from complete
highwall elimination for CMA's; Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.523, stability
criteria for highwall remnants and
retained highwalls; Utah Admin. R.
654~301-553.600 and .620, AOC
variances for incomplete elimination of
highwalls in PMA’s or CMA's; Utah
Admin. R. 654-301-553.631,
mountaintop removal operations; Utah
Admin. R. 654—-301-553.650, required
showing by the operator and required
findings by the regulatory authority
necessary for approval of a retained .
highwall; Utah Admin. R. 645-301-651,
height restrictions for retained
highwalls; Utah Admin. R. 645-301~
553.652, the applicability date of Utah’s
AQC standards at Utah Admin. R. 645~
301.553.651 through .655; Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.653, the restoration of
retained highwalls to cliff-type habitats
required by the flora and fauna existing
prior to mining; and Utah Admin. R.
645--301-553.654, compatibility of
retained highwalls with both the
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approved postmining land use and the
visual attributes of the area.

OSM announced receipt of the
proposed amendment in the December
8, 1993, Federal Register (58 FR 64529),
provided an opportunity for a public
hearing or meeting on its substantive
adequacy, and invited public comment
on its adequacy (administrative record
No. UT-879). Because no one requested
a public hearing or meeting, none was
held. The public comment period ended
on January 7, 1994.

During its review of the amendment,
OSM identified concerns relating to the
provisions of Utah Admin. R. 645.-301—
553.110, backfilling and grading of
disturbed areas; Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.500 and .600, the organization
of Utah’s rules pertaining to retained
highwalls; Utab Admin. R. 645-301—
553.510 and .522, general backfilling
and grading requirements; Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.522, slope stability and
drainage; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.500 and .523, stability criteria for
retained highwalls; Utah Admin. R.
645—-301-553.620, AOC variances; Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.650, AOC and
stability requirements for highwall
retention; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.651, height and length of retained
highwalls; Utah Admin. R. 645-301~
553.652, the applicability date of Utah’s
AOQOC alternative; and various editorial
comments concerning Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.120, .631, .650, and .655.
By letter dated March 31, 1994, OSM
notified Utah of the concerns
(administrative record No. UT-908).

By letter dated April 18, 1994, Utah
requested a meeting between the Utah
Division of Qil, Gas and Mining
(Division} and OSM for the purpose of
addressing the issues set forth by OSM
in the March 31, 1994, letter
(administrative record No. UT-918). On
May 12, 1994, the Division and OSM
held an executive session at the Western
Support Center in Denver, Colorado.
OSM posted a notice of the executive
session in the Western Support Center
{administrative record No. UT-925).
OSM summarized the session and
entered the summary into the
administrative record (administrative
record UT-842).

By letter dated June 29, 1994, Utah
submitted a revised amendment in
response 10 OSM's March 31, 1994,
letter as clarified at the May 12, 1994,
session (administrative record No. UT-
941). In this submittal, Utah, at its own
initiative, also proposed to (1) create a
definition of the term “continuously

“mined areas” and (2) not use the terms
“highwall remnant” and “retained
highwall.”

OSM announced receipt of the
proposed revised amendment in the July
14, 1994, Federal Register (59 FR
35871) and reopened and extended the
public comment period (administrative
record No. UT-951). The public
comment period ended on July 29, 1994.

During its review of the revised
amendment, OSM identified additional
concerns relating to the provisions of
Utah Admin. R. 645-100~200,
definition of the term “continuously
mined areas;” Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553, general provisions on highwalls
and backfilling and grading; Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.110, backfilling
and grading of disturbed areas; Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.120, backfilling
and grading of spoil and waste; Utah

" Admin. R. 645-301-553.130, slope

stability requirements; Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.510, remining operations
on PMA’s, CMA'’s, and areas with
remaining highwalls subject to AOC
provisions; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
§53.550, .551, and .552, AOC
exceptions; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650. highwall management under
the AOC provisions; Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.651, nonmountaintop
removal mining on steep slopes; Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.652, remaining
highwalls under the AOC provisions;
and Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.653,
applicability date. By letter dated
August 24, 1994, OSM notified Utah of
the concerns (administrative record No.
UT-967).

By telephone conversation on August
30, 1994, Utah requested a meeting
between the Division and OSM for the
purpose of addressing the date of
applicabilitggof Utah’s rules that aliow
the replaced@ent of preexisting cliffs cr
similar natural premining features with
retained highwalls (administrative
record No. UT-1010). On September 7.
1994, the Division and OSM held an
executive session at the Western
Support Center in Denver, Colorado.
OSM posted a notice of the executive
session in the Western Support Center
(administrative record No. UT—-869).
OSM summarized the session and
entered the summary into the
administrative record (administrative
record UT-870).

By letter dated November 3, 1994,
Utah submitted a revised amendment in
response to OSM’s August 24. 1994,
letter, as clarified at the September 7,
1994, session (administrative record No.
UT-990).

. OSM announced receipt of the
proposed revised amendment in the
December 2, 1994, Federal Register (59
FR 61855} and reopened and extended
the comment period (administrative
record No. UT—-896). The public

comment period ended on December 19,
1994.

III. Director’s Findings

As discussed below, the Director, in
accordance with SMCRA and 30 CFR
732.15 and 732.17, finds, with an
exception and additional requirements,
that the proposed program amendment
submitted by Utah on November 12,
1993, and as revised by it on June 28
and November 3, 1994, is no less
stringent than SMCRA and no less
effective than the corresponding Federal
regulations. Accordingly, the Director
approves, with one exception, the
proposed amendment and requires Utah
to revise its program.

The Director notes that in a December
13, 1982, final rule Federal Register
notice (47 FR 55672, 55673}, the
Secretary of the Interior approved as
part of the Utah program a provision
that the Director in a subsequent
September 17, 1993, final rule Federal
Register notice {58 FR 48600) referred to
as the Utah “AOC alternative.” OSM
created the term “AOC alternative” and
Utah does not define it in its program.
In this proposed amendment, Utah used
the terminology “areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC
provisions,” which is the Utah
counterpart terminology to what OSM
referred to in the past as the “AOC
alternative.” Accordingly, and
throughout the remainder of this
Federal Register notice, the Director
refers to what was previously called the
“AQOC alternative” in the September 17,
1993, final rule Federal Register notice
as “‘areas with remaining highwalls
subject to the AOC provisions.”

Also, in the September 17, 1993, fins!
rule Federal Register notice (58 FR
48600), the Director placed upon the
Utah program four required State
program amendments at 30 CFR 944.16
(a), (). {c}, and (d) (administrative
record No. UT-872). Specifically, the
Federal Register notice revised 30 CFR
944.16 to read as follows:

Section 944.16 Required Program
Amendments
* * * & *

(a) By November 16, 1993, Utah shall
submit a proposed amendment for highwall
retention and approximate original contour
{AOC) at Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650 to
require that, prior to obtaining Utah's
approval for highwalls to be retained, the
operator must establish and Utah must find
in writing that any proposed highwall wili
comply with the approximate original
contour criteria at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.651 through 655 and the stability
requirement at Utah Admin. R. 645-301~

553.523.

(b} By November 16, 1993, Utah shall
submit a proposed amendment for highwatl
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retention and approximate original contour at
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.651 restricting
the height of retained highwalls to the height
of cliffs or cliff-like escarpments that were
replaced or disturbed by the mining
operations.

(c) By November 16, 1993, Utah shall
submit a proposed amendment stating that its
requirement at Utah Admin. R. 645-301~-
553.652 has an applicability date of
December 13, 1982, and applies to any
highwall retained pursuant to the
approximate original contour alternative. .

{d) By November 16, 1993, Utah shall
submit a proposed amendment for Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.523 (1) eliminating
the inconsistency between the title
“previously mined areas’ at Utah-Admin. R. .
645-301-553.500 and the content of
subsection Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.523,
and clanfymg that the stability criteria of
proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.523
apply to the AOC alternative at Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.850, (2) specifying that a
highwall remnant or retained highwall must
not pose a hazard to the environment, and (3}
deleting the phrase “‘not to exceed either the
angle of repose or such lesser slope as is
necessary to.”

However, in an April 7, 1994, final
rule Federal Register notice (59 FR
16538), OSM inadvertently removed the
above required State program
amendments from 30 CFR 944.16
{administrative record No. UT-913). In
addition, and subsequent to this
inadvertent removal of the required
State program amendments originally
codified at 30 CFR 944.16 (a), (b}, (c),
(d}, OSM published two final rule
Federal Register notices (July 11, 1994,
59 FR 35255; September 27, 1994, 59 FR
49185) and placed new required State
program amendments on the Utah
program at 30 CFR 944.15 (a} and (b}
respectively (administrative record Nos.
UT—947 and UT-977). Throughout this
notice, OSM refers to the required
amendments associated with this
proposed amendment and originally
codified as 30 CFR 944.16 (a), (b), (¢},
and (d) as “the required amendments
previously codified at 30 CFR 944.16
{a), (b), (c), and {d} (September 17, 1993,
58 FR 48600).”

1. Nonsubstantive Revisions to Utah’s
Rules

Utah proposed revisions to the
following previously-approved rules
that are nonsubstantive in nature and
consist of minor editorial, grammatical,
and recodification changes
(corresponding Federal provisions are
listed in parentheses):

Utah Admin. R. 645-301~-553 {30 CFR
816.102 and 817.102},
contemporaneous reclamation for
backfilling and grading;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.130 (30
CFR 816.102(a)(3)}, 1.3 static safety
factor;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.150 {30
CFR 816.102{a)(5) and
817.102(a)(5)}, postmining land use;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.200 (30
CFR 816.102(c) and 817.102(c))
backfilling and grading of spoil and
waste;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.210 (30
CFR 816.71 and 817.71), general
requirements for disposal of excess
spoil;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.220 (30
CFR 816.102(d) and 817.102(d)),
placement of spoil;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.252 {30
CFR 816.83(c)(4) and 817.83(c)(4)),
final grading of refuse piles and
coal mine waste;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.300 (30
CFR 816.102(f) and 817.102(f}},
covering of exposed coal seams;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.510 {30
CFR 816.106(a) and 817.106(a)],
remining operations on PMA's,
CMA'’s, and areas with remaining
highwalls subject to AOC
provisions;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.540,
previously codified as Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.524 (30 CFR
816.106{b)(4) and 817.106(b}(4)),
spoil placement;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.300,
previously codified as Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.653 (30 CFR Parts
816 and 817 concerning backfilling
and grading requirements for both
surface and underground mining
operations and sections 515 (b}{2)
and (b}(3) of SMCRA],
modifications to retained highwalls
restoring cliff-type habitats required
by premining flora and fauna;

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650.400,
previously codified as Utah Admin.
R. $45-301-553.654 {30 CFR 784.15
and sections 515 (b)(2) and (b)(3) of
SMCRA), compatibility of retained
highwalls with the approved
postmining land use and visual
attributes of the area; and

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650.500,
previously codified as Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.655, exemption
from obtaining a variance from AOC
requirements.

Because the proposed revisions to
these previously-approved rules are
nonsubstantive in nature, the Director
finds that these proposed Utah rules are
no less effective than the Federal -
regulations and no less stringent than
SMCRA. The Director approves these
proposed rules.

2. Substantive. Revisions to Utah’s Rules
That Are Substantively Identical to the
Corresponding Provisions of the Federal

Regulations and SMCRA -

Utah proposed revisions to the
following rules that are substantive in
nature and contain language that is
substantively identical to the
requirements of the corresponding
Federal regulations (listed in
parentheses):

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.100 (30
CFR 816.102(a) and 817.102(a)},
section entitled “‘disturbed areas;”
and

Utah Admin. R. 645—-301~553.230 (30
CFR 816.102(j) and 817.102(j)),
general requirements for backfilling
and grading.

Because these proposed Utah rules are
substantively identical to the
corresponding provisions of the Federal
regulations, the Director finds that they
are no less effective than the Federal
regulations. The Director approves these
proposed rule.

3. Utah Admin. R. 645-1006-200,
Definition of “Continuously Mined
Areas”

Utah proposed to define
“continuously mined areas” {CMA’s) at
Utah Admixn. R. 645-100-200 to mean

“land which was mined for coal by
underground mining operations prior to
August 3, 1977, the effective date of the
Federal Act, and where mining
continued after that date.” The “Federal
Act” is SMCRA.

The Federal backfilling and grading
regulations at 30 CFR 817.106(a), (b},
and (b)(1) allow an exception from the
requirement for complete highwall
elimination for underground mining
operations that remine highwalls in
PMA’s, which means land affected by
surface coal mining operations prior to
August 3, 1977, the effective date of
SMCRA, that have not been reclaimed to
the standards of SMCRA (January 8,
1993, 58 FR 3466). These regulations
allow for the incomplete elimination of
such highwalls where the volume of all
reasonably available spoil is insufficient
to completely backfill the reaffected or
enlarged highwall.

As part o%the Utah program, the
Director approved, in a September 17,
1993, final rule Federal Register notice
(58 FR 48600, 48603), a limited
exception to the requirement to
completely eliminate all bighwalls for
CMA’s. Utah's approved CMA rules
differ from the Federal PMA regulations
in that they extend the exception for
incomplete highwall elimination to
underground mining operations where
the highwall was created prior to
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August 3, 1977; but contmued to be
used thereafter.

In approving Utah’s CMA provisions,
the Director reasoned, in part, that they
provide equitable treatment for pre- -
SMCRA mines that have operated
continuously since before the effective
date of SMCRA and afford the same
variance from AOC requirements as is
provided in the PMA regulations at 30
CFR 817.106 for remaining sites where
operation of a pre-SMCRA mine has
been interrupted and mining was begun
again at the sites after the effective date
of SMCRA.

Utah’s proposed definition of
“continuously mined areas” is limited
in accordance with the Director’s
approval in the September 17, 1993,
final rule Federal Register notice. That
is, Utah’s newly-proposed definition at
Utah Admin. R. 645-100-200 limits the
term to underground mining operations.
In the aforementioned final rule Federal
Register notice, OSM approved Utah’s
CMA provisions at Utah Admin. R./
645-301-553.510, .520, and .521
“{i]lnsofar as they apply to underground
mining operations that operated prior to
August 3, 1977, and have continuously

- operated since that time.” Therefore,
Utah's proposed definition of the term

“continuously mined areas" is not

inconsistent with the Federal
regulatmns at 30 CFR 817.106(a)}, (b),
and (b)(1) and is in accordance with
Utah’s previously approved CMA
provisions. On this basis, the Director
approves Utah's proposed rule.

However, with respect to CMA's, the
Director wishes to emphasize that the
exception to the requirement to
completely eliminate all highwalls
should, like the similar Utah exception
for PMA’s, be narrowly construed and
should ensure that the highwall is
removed to the maximum extent
technically practical (September 16,
1983, 48 FR 41720, 41729). Thus, for
example, where an underground mining
operation has been continuously mined
since before the effective date of
SMCRA (August 3, 1977) and contains
both pre- and post-SMCRA face-up or
portal areas, this exception must be
understood as applying only to the pre-
SMCRA face-up areas. Any post-SMCRA
portal areas within the same mining
operation must comply with the
requirement to completely eliminate ail
highwalls. The Director interprets
Utah’s proposed definition of the term
“continuously mined areas” in this
limited fashion.

4. Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.110,

" Exceptions to the Requirement That

Dzsturbed Areas Achzeve AOC

Utah proposed to revise existing Utah
Mdmin. R. 645-301-553.110 to require
that disturbed areas achieve AOC except
as provided for in the reorganized and
recodified provisions at Utah Admin. R.
645—-301-500 through Utah Admin. R.
645—301-540 (PMA’s, CMA's, and areas
subject to the AOC provisions), Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.600 through
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.612
(PMA’s and CMA's), Utah Admin. R.
645-302—270 (nonmountaintop removal
on steep slopes}), Utah Admin. R. 645—
302-220 {mountaintop removal mining),
Utah Admin. R. 645-301—-553.700 (thin
overburden), and Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.800 (thick overburden). In
conjunction with consolidating these
exceptions into one provision, Utah also
proposed to delete provisions that
formerly existed at Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.600 (introductory languagej,
.610 (nonmountaintop removal on steep
slopes), .620 (PMA's), .630
(mountaintop removal mining), .640
(introductory language), .641 (thin
overburden), and .642 (thick
overburden).

The Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(k) provide variances from AOC
for (1) steep-slope mining operations, (2)
PMA’s, (3) mountaintop removal .
operations, (4) thin overburden areas,
and (5) thick overburden areas. The
provisions at 30 CFR 817.102(k) provide
variances from AOC for (1) steep-slope
mining operations and {2) PMA's.

Utah'’s proposed revisions to Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.110, which
create a general AOC provision that -
references all exceptions to the
requirement that disturbed areas must
be backfilled and graded to achieve
AOC, are consistent with the
corresponding Federal regulations at 30
CFR 816.102(k) and 817.103(k)and
clarify and improve the organizational -
nature of Utah’s AOC rules. However,
the cross-referenced provisions contain
citation errors. Specifically, Utah’s
cross-referenced provisions in the
phrase “R645—301-500 through R645—
301-540,” regarding PMA’s, CMA''s, and
areas subject to the AOC provisions,
should read “R645-301-553.500
through R645-301-553.540.” Utah’s
incorrectly cross-referenced citations
create a regulatory inconsistency within
the Utah program.

For the reasons discussed above, the
Director approves Utah'’s proposed
consolidation of all exceptions to the
requirement that disturbed areas must
be backfilled and graded to achieve
AOC into Utah Admin. R. 645-301~

553.110. In addition, the Director -
approves Utah's proposed deletion of : .
existing Utah Admin. R. 645-301-  ~.
553.600 and those provisions identified
above that formerly existed elsewhere in
Utah’s rules prior to the consolidation.
However, the Director further requires
Utah to revise the cross-referenced
provisions in the phrase “R645-301—
500 through-R645-301-540,” regarding
PMA's, CMA’s, and areas subject to the
AQC provisions, to read “R645-301—
553.500 through R645-301-553.540.”

5. Utah Admin. R. 534-301-553.120,
Backfilling and Gmdmg of Spoil and
Waste

Utah proposed to revise existing Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.120 to require
that disturbed areas be backfilled and
graded to “[e]liminate all highwalls,
spoil piles, and depressions, except as
provided in R645-301-552.100 (small
depressions); R645—-301-553.500
through R645-301-540 (PMA’s, CMA’s,
and areas subject to approximate
original contour (AOC) provisions;
R645-301-553.600 through R645-301—
553.612 (PMA's and CMA's); and in
R645-301-553.650 through R645-301~
553.653 (highwall management under
the AOC provisions).”

The Director notes that the exceptions
listed at proposed Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.120 for PMA'’s, CMA’s, and
areas subject to AOC provisions are
exceptions only to the requirement to
completely eliminate all highwalls, and
are not exceptions to the separate
requirements to completely eliminate all
spoil piles and depressions.

The Federal regulations at 30.CFR
816.102(a)(2) and 817.102(a)(2) require
that disturbed areas be backfilled and
graded to eliminate all highwalls, spoil -
piles, and depressions except as '
provided in 30 CFR 816.102(h) (small
depressions) and (k)(3)(iii) (previously
mined highwalls).

Utah’s proposed revisions to Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.120, which
create a general provision that cross-.
references all exceptions to the
requirement that disturbed areas must
be backfilled and graded to eliminate all
highwalls, spoil piles, and depressions,
are consistent with the corresponding
Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(a)(2) and 817.102(a)(2) and
clarify and improve the organizational
nature of Utah’s rules. However, the
cross-referenced provisions contain
citation inconsistencies. Specifically,
Utah'’s cross-referenced provisions in
the phrase “R645-301-553.500 through
R645-301-540,” regarding PMA’s,
CMA’s, and areas subject to the AOC
provisions, should read ‘“R645-301—
553.500 through R645-301~533.540.” In
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‘addition Utah cross-references .
provisions in the phrase “R645-301—
553.650.through R645—301—553 653." -
However, Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.653 Ro-longer exists in Utah's
- reorganized rules and has now been
recodified as Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
" 553.651. Utah’s incorrectly cross-
referenced citations create a regulatory
inconsistency within the Utah program.
For the reasons discussed above, the
Director approves proposed Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.120 but further
requires Utah to (1) revise the cross-
referenced provisions in the phrase
“R645-301-553.500 through R645-301—
540,” regarding PMA’s, CMA’s, and
areas subject to the AOC provisions, to
read “R645-301-553.500 through R645~
301~-553.540" and (2) revise the cross-
referenced provisions in the phrase
“R645-301-553.650 through R645-301—
553.653" to read “R645—-301-553.650
through R645-301-553.651.”

6. Utah Admin. R. 634-301-553.500,
PMA'’s, CMA'’s, and Areas With
Remaining Highwalls Subject to AOC
Provisions

In partial response to the required
amendment previously codified at 30
CFR 994.16(d}(1) (September 17, 1993,
58 FR 48600), Utah proposed to revise
the exdisting title of section Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.500 to make it
consistent with the content of
subsections Utah Admin. R. 645-301~
553.510 through .540. Specifically, Utah
proposed to revise the title of section
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.500 from
“Previously Mined Areas” to
“Previously mined areas (PMA’s),
Continuously Mined Areas (CMA’s},
and Areas with Remaining nghwalls
Subject to the AOC Provisions."’

Utah proposed this change to
eliminate the inconsistency between the
title “Previously Mined Areas” at Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.500 and the
content of recodified subsection Utah
Admin. R. 645~-301-553.530 (previously
codified as .523), which addresses
highwall stability criteria (see finding
No. 9). The proposed title “Previously
mined areas (PMA’s), Continuously
Mined Areas (CMA'’s), and Areas with
Remaining Highwalls Subject to the
AOC Provisions” for Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.500 is consistent with the
term “remaining highwalls,” which
Utah uses at Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.530in place of the terms “retained
highwall” and “highwall remnant.”

The Director finds that Utah’s
proposed revisions to the title of section
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.500 are
not inconsistent with the Federal AOC,
PMA, and CMA provisions at 30 CFR
816.102, 817.102, 816.106, and 817.106.

: analo%l

- The Director also finds that the-
proposed revisions satisfy. the part of the
required’amendment previously
codified‘at 30-CFR 944.16(d)(1) that
applied'te, Utah Admin. R..645-301= -,

553.500..For these reasons; the Du‘ector }

approves Utah's propesed revisions to
the title of section Utah Admin. R. 645—
- 301-553.500.

7. Utah Admin. R. 634-301-553.520,
Backfilling and Grading of Remaining
Highwalls

Utah proposed to revise existing Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.520 to make it
consistent with the requirements for
remaining operations on PMA’s,
operations on CMA's, and operations on
areas with remaining highwalls subject
to the AOC provisions. Specifically,
Utah proposed to consolidate a phrase
from original Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.520 with the text of Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.522 to create new Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.520 which
states that ““[t]he backfill of all -
remaining highwalls will be graded to a
slope that is compatible with the
approved postmining land use and
which provides adequate drainage and
long-term stability.” In conjunction with
this consolidation, Utah deleted the
citation previously codified at Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.522.

The Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.106(b)(2) and 817.106(b)(2) require
that “the backfill [from remaining
operations on PMA’s] shall be graded to
a slope which is compatible with the
approved postmining land use and
which provides adequate drainage and
long-term stability.”” The Federal
regulations at 30 CFR 816.106(b)(2) and
817.106(b}(2) apply only to remaining
operations on PMA’s. Utah’s proposed
rule differs from the Federal regulations
in that Utah proposes to extend its rules
concerning the backfilling and grading
requirements for remaining highwalls to
operations on CMA'’s and operations on
areas with remaining highwalls subject
to the AOC provisions. Although there
are no Federal regulations that directly
correspond to Utah's application of its
rule to operations on CMA’s and
operations on areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC
provisions, the Federal regulations at 30
CFR 816.106(b)(2) and 817.106(b)(2}, as
discussed in the September 17, 1993,
final rule Federal Register notice, are
us to this Utah provision.

Utah’s proposed revisions to Utah .
Admin. R. 645-301-553.520, regardmg
the requirements for remaining
operations on PMA’s, CMA's, and areas
with remaining highwalls subject to the
AOC provisions, are not inconsistent
with the corresponding Federal

regulations at: 30. CFR 816. 106(b)(2) a.nd .
817.106(b)(2). For this reason, the .

" Director approves Utah’s proposed

revision-te Utah Admm R. 645—301——

« 553520, - - - BRPO

8. Utah Admm R. 645—301-553 530
Stability Criteria for Backfilling and
Grading

In partial response to the required
amendment previously codified at 30
CFR 944.16(d) (September 17, 1993, 58
FR 48600), Utah proposed to revise
existing Utah Admin. R. 645301~
553.523, regarding highwall retention
stability criteria. Utah proposed
recodifying the rule as Utah Admin. R.
645—-301~553.530 and relocating it
under the reorganized section of its

" rules at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—

553.500 entitled “PMA’s, CMA’s and
Areas with Remaining Highwalls
Subject to the AOC Provisions,” which
was previously entitled “previously
mined areas” {see finding No. 6). Utah
also proposed to delete the phrase “not
to exceed either the angle of repose or
such lessor slope as is necessary to”
from recodified Utah Admin. R. 645-
301-553.530. Lastly, Utah proposed to
revise the rule to require that (1) any
remaining highwall will be stable and
not pose a hazard to the public health
or safety or to the environment, and (2)
remaining highwalls must achieve a
minimum long-term static safety factor
of 1.3 and prevent slides; or meet an
alternative criterion that the operator
proposes and demonstrates to the
satisfaction of the Division that the
remaining highwall is stable does not
pose a hazard to the public health and
safety or to the environment.

By changing the PMA title of Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.530 to include
CMA's and areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC
provisions, Utah in effect proposed that
remaining highwalls on PMA’s and
CMA's and areas with remaining
highwalls subject of the AOC provisions
comply with the proposed stability
criteria of Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.530.

The Federal general backfilling and
grading regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(a)(3) and 817.102(a)(3) require
that disturbed areas be backfilled and
graded to achieve a postmining slope
that does not exceed either the angle of
repose or such lesser slope asis
necessary to achieve a minimum long-
term static safety factor of 1.3 and to
prevent slides. The Federal regulations
at 30 CFR 816.106(b)(3) and
817.106(b)(3) concerning backfilling and
grading of PMA'’s require that any
highwall remnant be stable and not pose
a hazard to the public health and safety
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or to the environment and that the
operator shall demonstrate, to the
satisfaction of the regulatory authority,
that the highwall remnant is stable. The
Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.106(b)(3) and 817.106(b)(3) apply
only to remaining operations on PMA's.
Utah’s proposed rule differs from the
Federal regulations in that Utah
proposes to extend its rules concerning
the stability criteria for backfilling and
grading of remaining highwalls to
operations on CMA’s and operations on
areas with remaining highwalls subject
to the AOC provisions. Althéugh there
are no Federal regulations that directly
correspond to Utah’s application of its
rule to operations on CMA’s and
operations on areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC :
provisions, the Federal regulations at 30
CFR 816.106(b)(3) and 817.106(b)(3), as
discussed in the September 17, 1993,
final rule Federal Register notice, are
analogous to this Utah provision.

The Director emphasizes that, in all
cases, the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(a)(3) and 817.102(a}(3) require
the backfill material at the base or
against a highwall to have a minimum
long-term static safety factor of 1.3 and
prevent slides. The Director recognizes
that a highwall remnant extending
above the backfill material does not
have to achieve the 1.3 minimum long-
term static safety factor. However, the
Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.106(b)(3) and 817.106(b)(3) and
require (1) that any highwall remnant be
stable and not pose a hazard to the
public health and safety or to the
environment and (2) that an operator
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the
regulatory authority that the highwall
remnant is stable.

Utah's proposed revisions to
recodified Utah Admin. R. 645~301-
553.530 to require that its stability
criteria apply to any remaining highwall
left in accordance with the approved
State program, whether in connection
with a PMA, a CMA or an area with
remaining highwalls subject to Utah’s
AQOC provisions is not inconsistent with
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(a)(3), 817.102(a)(3),
816.106(b)(3) and 817.106(b)(3).

The portion of Utah’s proposed
revisions to recodified Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.530 deleting the phrase
“not to exceed either the angle of repose
or such lesser slope as is necessary to,”
as previously required by 30 CFR
944.16(d), is not inconsistent with the
Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(a)(3) and 817.102(a)(3).

The portion of Utah’s proposed
revisions at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553. 530 that allows an operator to

provide alternative stability criterion to
establish that a highwall remnant or
retained highwall is stable and does not
pose a hazard to the public health and
safety or to the environment is not
inconsistent with the Federal
regulations at 30 CFR 816.106(b)(3) and
817.106(b)(3).

For the reasons discussed above, the
Director approves Utah's proposed rule
revisions to recodified Utah Admin. R.
645~301--553.530. The Director also
finds that the proposed revisions satisfy
the part of the required amendment
previously codified at 30 CFR
944.16{d)(1) that applied to recodified
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.530 and
satisfy in total the required amendments
previously codified at 30 CFR
944.16(d)(2) and (3).

9. Utah Admin. R. 634-301-553.600,
PMA’s and CMA’s

Utah proposed to delete existing Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.650 and create
new Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.600,
which serves as the section title and
introduction to Utah'’s reorganized rule’
requirements at Utah Admin. R. 645~
301-553.610 through .612 for PMA’s
and CMA's (see finding Nos. 11 and 12).

The counterpart Federal regulations at
30 CFR 816.106 and 817.106 pertain to
backfilling and grading requirements for
PMA's. The Federal regulations at 30
CFR 816.106 and 817.106 apply only to
backfilling and grading requirements for
remaining operations PMA’s. Utah’s
proposed rule differs from the Federal
regulations in that Utah proposes to
extend its rules concerning the
backfilling and grading requirements for
remaining highwalls to operations on
CMA'’s. Although there are no Federal
regulations that directly correspond to
Utah'’s application of its rule to CMA’s,
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.106 and 817.106, as discussed in
the September 17, 1993, final rule
Federal Register notice, are analogous
to thig Utah provision.

Newly-created Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.600 is consistent with Utah's
propased rule reorganization and is not
inconsistent with the corresponding
Federal regulations at 30 CFR 816.106
and 817.106. Accordingly, the Director
approves Utah’s proposed rule revision.

10. Utah Admin. R. 634-301-553.610,
Exceptions for PMA’s and CMA’s From
the Requirement for Complete Highwall
Elimination

Utah proposed to revise the text of the
existing provision at Utah Admin. R.
645-~301-553.520 and relocate it at new
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.610 under
the newly-created section of Utah’s
rules at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—

553.600 addressing PMA’s and CMA’s
(see finding No. 10). Specifically,
proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301~
553.610 states that highwalls on PMA’s
or CMA’s must be eliminated to the
maximum extent technically practical,
but are not required to be completely
eliminated where the volume of all
reasonably available spoil is
demonstrated in writing to the Division
to be insufficient to completely backfill
the reaffected or enlarged highwall.
Newly-created Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.610, which allows an
exception for PMA's and CMA's to the
requirement that highwalls be
completely eliminated, is consistent
with the proposed reorganization of
Utah’s rules. In addition, because
operations on both PMA's and CMA's
must eliminate the highway to the
maximum extent technically practical
and make a written demonstration that
all reasonably available spoil was used,
proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.610 is not inconsistent with the

+ Federal regulations at 30 CFR

816.106(b)(2) and 817.106(b)(2). For this
reason, the Director approves newly-
created Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.610.

11. Utah Admin. R. 634-301-553.611
and .612, Backfilling and Grading of
Reasonably Available Spoil -~

Utah proposed to delete existing Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.521 and create
new provisions at Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.611 and .612 respectively,
which consist of the revised text of
former Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.521. Newly-created Utah Admin. R.
645—-301-553.611 requires that all spoils
generated by the remining operation or
CMA and any other reasonably available
spoil will be used to backfill the area.
Newly-created Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.612 requires that reasonably
available spoil in the immediate vicinity
of the remining operation or CMA will
be included within the permit area.

The Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.106(b)(1) and 817.106(b)(1) require
that all spoil generated by the remining
operation on PMA's and any other
reasonably available spoil will be used
to backfill the area, and reasonably
available spoil in the immediate vicinity
of the remining operation shall be
included within the permit area. The
Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.106({b)(1) and 817.106(b)(1) apply
only to backfilling and grading
requirements for remining operations on
PMA’s. Utah’s proposed rules differ
from the Federal regulations in that
Utah proposes to extend its rules
concerning the requirements for

-backfilling and grading of reasonably
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available spoil to operations with
remaining highwalls on CMA’s.
Although there are no Federal
regulations that directly correspond to
Utah'’s application of its rules to CMA’s,
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR '
816.106(b)(1) and 817.106(b)(1), as
discussed in the September 17, 1993,
final rule Federal Register notice, are
analogous to these Utah provisions.

Utah's newly-created provisions at
proposed Utah Admin. R. 645~301-
553.611 and .612 are in accordance with
Utah’s proposed rule reorganization and
are not inconsistent with the Federal
requirements. Accordingly, the Director
approves Utah’s newly-created
provisions at Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.611 and .612.

12. Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650,
Highwall Management Under the AOC
Provisions

In response to the required
amendment previously codified at 30
CFR 944.16(a) (September 17, 1993, 58
FR 48600}, Utah proposed to create new
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650 by
proposing a section entitled “Highwall
Management Under the Approximate
Original Contour Provisions.” Newly-
created Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650 requires that for situations
where a permittee seeks approval for a
remaining highwall under the AOC
provisions, the permittee will establish
and the Division will find in writing
that the remaining highwall will achieve
the stability and AOC-requirements of
certain cited applicable rules.

. While there are no Federal regulations
that directly correspond to newly-
created Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.650, the Federal regulations-at 30
CFR 816.102(k)(3)(ii) and 817.102(k)(1)
explicitly require operators to obtain the
regulatory authority’s approval for
determinations relating to AOC. Because
Utah’s proposed rule at Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.650 does explicitly require
that, prior to the Division approving the
retention of a highwall, the permittee
will establish and the Division will find
in writing that the remaining highwall
will achieve the applicable stability
requirements and will meet the
applicable AOC criteria, it is not
inconsistent with the Federal
regulations at 30 CFR 816.102(k}(3)(ii)
and 817.102¢k)(1). :

Accordingly, the Director approves
newly-created Utah Admin. R. 645~
301-553.650. The Director also finds
that the proposed rule satisfies the
required amendment previously
codified at 30 CFR 944.16(a).

13. Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.650.100, Height and Length of
Remaining Highwalls .

In response to the required
amendment previously codified at 30
CFR 944.16(b)} (September 17, 1993, 58
FR 48600), Utah proposed to revise
existing Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.651 by tecodifying it as Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.650.100 and
revising it to require that a remaining
highwall will not be greater in height or
length than the cliffs and cliff-like
escarpments that were replaced or
disturbed by the mining operations.

Beacuse proposed Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.650.100 restricts the
height and length of remaining
highwalls to those cliffs and cliff-like
escarpments that were replaced or
disturbed by the mining operations, it is
consistent with the replacement
criterion for areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC provisions
at Utah Admin. R. 645-301~
553.650.200, and is no less stringent
than section 515(b}(3) of SMCRA, which
requires mining operations to restore the
land to AOC. In addition, Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.650.100 is in
accordance with Utah's proposed rule
reorganization.

For these reasons, the Director
approves proposed Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.650.100. The Director also
finds that the proposed rule satisfies the
réquired amendment previously
codified at 30 CFR 944.16(b).

14. Utah Admin. R. 645-301~
553.650.200, Replacement of Preexisting
Cliffs or Similar Natural Premining
Features With a Remaining Highwall

Utah proposed to recodify existing
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.652 as.
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553,650.200
and revise it to require that a highwall
may remain only when it replaces a
preexisting cliff or similar natural
premining feature and resembles the
structure, composition, and function of
the natural cliff it replaces.

As discussed in the September 17,
1993, final rule Federal Register notice
(58 FR 48600, 48604-5), the Secretary of
the Interior harmonized the inherent
contradiction that exists when applying
section 515(b)(3) of SMCRA, which
requires operators to restore land to
AOC with all highwalls elimirated, to
specific areas of Utah involving natural
benches and steep topography by
approving a carefully limited exception
in the Utah program to SMCRA’s
requirement for the complete
elimination of all highwalls. Because
proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.650.200 allows highwalls to remain

only when they replace preexisting
cliffs or similar natural premining
features and resemble the structure,
composition, and function of the natural
cliffs they replace, it is in accordance
with the Secretary’s approval of Utah’s
provisions for areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC provisions
and is no less stringent than section
515(b)(3) of SMCRA, which requires
mining operations to restore the land to
AOC. In addition, Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.600.200 is consistent with
Utah'’s proposed rule reorganization.
Accordingly, the Director approves
Utah's proposed rule.

15. Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.651,
Applicability Date

In response to the required
amendment previously codified at 30
CFR 944.16(c) (September 17, 1993, 58
FR 48600), Utah proposed to create new
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.651,
which states the following.

Applicability. Where final backfilling and
grading was completed and the phase one
bond was released prior to June 2, 1992, no
redisturbance of a reclaimed highwall will be
required. Highwalls which were approved
under R645-301-553.652, the rule commonly
referred to as the “AOC alternative,” after
December 13, 1982 are subject to the
retroactive application of current rule R645—
301-552.650, providing the subject highwall
has not been reclaimed and phase one bond
was not released prior to June-2, 1992.

Utah incorporates by reference the
provisions of Utah Admin. R. 645~301—
552.650. No such citation exists in
Utah'’s rules. For the purposes of the
following finding, OSM assumes that
the proposed reference is a
typographical error and that Utah
intended to cite Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.650.200, which is pertinent to
the proposed applicability section at
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.651 and
the required amendment previously
codified at 30 CFR 944.16(c).

At Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.651,
Utah proposes that the requirements of
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650.200
(incorrectly cited by Utah as Utah
Admin. R. 645~301-552.650) do not

retroactively apply to highwalls which

were retained under existing Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.652 and for
which final backfilling and grading was
completed and the phase one bond was
released prior to June 2, 1992.

Existing Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.652 provides in part that a highwall
may be retained if it is similar in
structural composition to the
preexisting cliffs “in the surrounding
area.” As discussed in the September
17, 1993, final rule Federal Register
notice (58 FR 48600, 48605; finding No.
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3), Utah interpreted the quoted phrase
to allow the retention of highwalls when
no similar natural features existed in the
disturbed area prior to mining. By letter
dated January 9, 1991, and sent to Utah
in accordance with 30 CFR 732.17, OSM
notified Utah that this interpretation
was not consistent with SMCRA and the
Secretary’s assumptions in approving
the provisions of the Utah program that
allow for the incomplete elimination of
highwalls for areas with remaining
highwalls subject to the AOC
provisions. .

With respect to the June 2, 1992, date
that Utah uses in proposed Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.651, the Director, as
also discussed in the September 17,
1993, final rule Federal Register notice
(58 FR 48600, 48605-6; finding No.
3{C)(3)(b)), found that an applicability
date of December 13, 1982, rather than
June 2, 1992, is mandated by SMCRA.
In that discussion, the Director made
clear that the replacement criterion,
now codified at Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.650.200, has an applicability
date of December 13, 1982, and must
apply to any highwall retained pursuant
to the AOC provisions of the Utah
program'at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650 regardless of the date that the
highwall was created.

For these reasons, the Director finds
that proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.651 is less stringent than section
515 of SMCRA, not in accordance with
the Secretary’s assumptions in
approving the provisions of the Utah
program that allow for the incomplete
elimination of highwalls for areas with
remaining highwalls subject to the AOC
provisions, and not in accordance with
the Director’s previous finding in the
September 17, 1993, final rule Federal
Register notice (58 FR 48600, 48605-6;
finding No. 3(C)(3)(b)). Therefore, the
Director does not approve Utah'’s
proposed rule at Utah Admin. R. 645-
301-553.651. In addition, the Director
will continue to interpret the
replacement criterion at Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.650.200 as having an
applicability date of December 13, 1982,
and as applying to any highwall
retained pursuant to the AOC provisions
of the Utah program at Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.650. The Director is not
requiring Utah, as was done previously
at 30 CFR 944.16(c), to revise its rules
to require that the replacement criterion
provision at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650.200 has an applicability date of
December 13, 1982, and applies to any
highwall retained pursuant to the AOC
provisions of the Utah program. OSM
has decided that it is not necessary to
require Utah to so revise its rules
because OSM has already made clear, in

the September 17, 1993, final rule
Federal Register notice (58 FR 48600,
48605-6; finding No. 3(C)(3}(b)), and
again in this finding, that the Director
will interpret the Utah replacement
criterion at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650.200 as having an applicability
date of December 13, 1982, and as
applying to any highwall retained
pursuant to the AOC provisions of the
Utah program at Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.650. OSM will utilize this
interpretation of the replacement
criterion at Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650.200 in its oversight of the Utah
program, regardless of whether or not
Utah's program explicitly addresses the
applicability of the replacement
criterion. -

IV. Summary and Disposition of
Comments

Following are summaries of all
substantive written comments on the
proposed amendment that were
received by OSM, and OSM's responses
to them. :

1. Public Comments

OSM invited public comments on the
proposed amendment, but none wére
received.

2. Federal Agency Comments

Pursuant to 732.17(h)(11)(i), OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from various Federal
agencies with an actual or potential
interest in the Utah program.

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
responded on December 15, 1993, and
August 1 and December 9, 1994, that the
changes to the Utah program were
satisfactory (administrative record Nos.
UT-884, UT-958, and UT-998).

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
responded on December 16, 1993, that
it found nothing of significant concern
and on August 9, 1994, that it had no
further comments (administrative record
Nos. UT-885 and UT-961).

The U.S. Forest Service {(USFS)
responded on December 27, 1993, that
“the State of Utah uses a safety factor of
1.3 for long-term stability of highwalls
whereas the Forest Service requires a
safety factor of 1.5 (administrative
record No. UT-886).

Utah‘Admin. R. 645-301-553.130. in
pertinent part, requires that disturbed
areas will be backfilled and graded to
achieve a postmining slope that does
not exceed either the angle of repose or
such lesser slope as is necessary to
achieve a long-term static safety factor
of 1.3 and prevent slides. In addition,
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.530
requires, in pertinent part, that a Utah
operator will demonstrate, to the

satisfaction of the Division, that a
remaining highwall must achieve a
minimum long-term static safety factor
of 1.3 and prevent slides.

As discussed in finding No. 8, the
Federal regulations at 30 CFR
816.102(a)(3) and 817.102(a)(3) require
that disturbed areas shall be backfilled
and graded to achieve a postmining
slope that does not exceed either the
angle of repose or such lesser slope as
is necessary to achieve a long-term static
safety factor of 1.3 and prevent slides.
Therefore, Utah's use of a 1.3 static
safety factor for long-term stability of
highwalls is “in accordance with and no
less effective than’ the Federal
backfilling and grading standards set
forth in title 30 of the Code of Federal
Regulations. Because the Federal
regulations at 30 CFR 730.5(b) only
require that a State’s laws be “in
accordance with” and “no less effective
than” the Federal regulations in meeting
the requirements of SMCRA, the
Director does not have the authority to
require standards in excess of the
Federal regulations that implement
SMCRA. One this basis, the Director
does not require Utah to révise its
program in response to USFS’s
comment. However, if USFS has a 1.5
static safety factor that applies to
highwalls on land under USFS’s
jurisdiction, this does not preclude
USFS from enforcing this standard on
such highwalls.

The Mine Safety and Health
Administration responded on June 20,
1994, and January 12, 1995, that the
proposed amendment did not appear to
conflict with the requirements of 30
CFR, which includes its safety
regulations (administrative record Nos.
UT-940 and UT-1006).

The U.S. Bureau of Mines responded
on July 18 and December 6, 1994, by
telephone conversation, that it had no
comments on the proposed amendment
(administrative record Nos. UT-948 and
UT-995).

3. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) Concurrence and Comments

Pursuant to 30 CFR 732.17(h}(11)(ii),
OSM is required to solicit the written
concurrence of EPA with respect to
those provisions of the proposed
program amendment that relate to air or
water quality standards promulgated
under the authority of the Clean Water
Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) or the Clean
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.).

None of the revisions that Utah
proposed to make in its amendment
pertain to air or water quality standards.
Therefore, OSM did not request EPA’s
concurrence. ’ ’
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Pursuant to 732.17(h)(11)(i), OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from EPA (administrative
record Nos. UT-876, UT-946, and UT-

- 993). It responded on December 9, 1993,
July 19, 1994, and December 22, 1994,
that it had no comments on the
proposed amendment and did not
believe that there would be any impacts
to water quality standards promulgated
under the Clean Water Act
(administrative record Nos. UT-880,
UT-954, and UT-1000).

4. State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO)

Pursuant to 30 CFR 732.17(h)(4), OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from the SHPO
(administrative record Nos. UT-876,
UT-946, and UT-993). the SHPO did
not respond to OSM’s request.

V. Director’s Decision

Based on the above findings, the
Director approves, with an exception
and additional requirements, Utah's
proposed amendment as submitted on
November 12, 1993, and as revised on
June 28 and November 3, 1994.

The Director does not approve, as
discussed in: finding No. 15, Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.651,
concerning the applicability date of
Utah'’s replacement criterion for areas
with remaining highwalls subject to the
AQC provisions at Utah Admin. R. 645-
301-553.650.200.

The Director approves, as discussed
in: finding No. 1, Utah Admin. R. 645~
301553, concerning contemporaneous
reclamation requirements for backfilling
and grading; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.130, concerning the requirements
for a 1.3 static safety factor; Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.150,
concerning the requirements for post
mining land use; Utah Admin. R. 645—
301-553.200, concerning the backfilling
and grading requirements for spoil and
waste; Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
553.210, concerning the general
requirements for disposal of excess

spoil; Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.220,

concerning the requirements for
placement of spoil; Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.252, concerning the
requirements for final grading of refuse
piles and coal mine waste; Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.300, concerning the
requirements for covering of exposed
coal seams; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.510, concerning remaining
operations on PMA'’s, operations on
CMA'’s, and operations on areas with
remaining highwalls subject to AOC
provisions; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.540, concerning the requirements
for spoil placement; Utah Admin. R.

645-301-553.650.300, concerning the

‘requirement for modifications to

retained highwalls restoring cliff-type
habitats required by premining flora and
fauna; Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650.400, concerning the
requirement for compatibility of
retained highwalls with the approved
postmining land use and visual
attributes of the area; and Utah Admin.
R. 645-301-553.650.500, concerning the
exemption from obtaining a variance
from AOC requirements; finding No. 2,
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.100,
concerning the section entitled
“disturbed areas,” and Utah Admin. R.
645-301—553.230, concerning the
general requirements for backfilling and
grading; finding No. 3, Utah Admin. R.
645-100—200, concerning the definition
of “Continuously Mined Areas;” finding
No. 6, Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.500, concerning PMA’s, CMA's, and
areas with remaining highwalls subject
to AOC provisions; finding No. 7, Utah
Admin. R. 634-301-553.520,
concerning backfilling and grading of
remaining highwalls; finding No. 8,
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.530,
concerning stability criteria for
backfilling and grading and resulting in
partial removal of the required
amendment previously codified at 30
CFR 944.16(d)(1) and total removal of
the required amendments previously
codified at 30 CFR 944.16(d) (2} and (3};
finding No. 9, Utah Admin. R. 634-301—
553.600, concerning Utah’s newly-
created section title for its reorganized
rule requirements for PMA'’s and
CMA’s; finding No. 10, Utah Admin. R.
634-301-553.610, concerning
exceptions for PMA's and CMA’s from
the requirement for complete highwall
elimination; finding No. 11, Utah
Admin. R. 634-301-553.611 and .612,
concerning backfilling and grading of
reasonably available spoil; finding No.
12, Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.650,
concerning highwall management under
the AOC provisions and removal of the
required amendment previously
codified at 30 CFR 944.16(a); finding
No. 13, Utah Admin. R. 645-301—
553.650.100, concerning the height and
length of remaining highwalls and
removal of the required amendment
previously codified at 30 CFR 944.16(b};
and finding No. 14, Utah Admin. R.
645-301-553.650.200, concerning the
replacement of preexisting cliffs or
similar natural premining features with
a remaining highwall.

With the requirement that Utah
further revise its rules, the Director
approves, as discussed in: finding No. 4,
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.110,
concerning exceptions to the

requirement that disturbed areas
achieve AOC; and finding No. 5, Utah
Admin. R. 534—-301-553.120,
concerning backfilling and grading of
spoil and waste.

The Director approves, with one
exception, the rules as proposed by
Utah-with the provision that they be
fully promulgated in identical form to
the rules submitted to and reviewed by
OSM and the public.

The Federal regulations at 30 CFR
Part 944, codifying decisions concerning
the Utah program, are being amended to
implement this decision. This final rule
is being made effective immediately to
expedite the State program amendment
process and to encourage States to bring
their programs into conformity with the
Federal standards without undue delay.
Consistency of State and Federal
standards is required by SMCRA.

Effect of Director’s Decision

Section 503 of SMCRA provides that
a State may not exercise jurisdiction
under SMCRA unless the State program
is approved by the Secretary. Similarly,
30 CFR 732.17(a) requires that any’
alteration of an approved State program
be submitted to OSM for review as a
program amendment. Thus, any changes
to the State program are not enforceable
until approved by OSM. The Federal
regulations at 30 CFR 732.17(g) prohibit
any unilateral changes to approved State
programs. In the oversight of the Utah
program, the Director will recognize
only the statutes, regulations and other
materials approved by OSM, together
with any consistent implementing
policies, directives and other materials,
and will require the enforcement by
Utah of only such provisions.

VI. Procedural Determinations

1. Executive Order 12866

This rule is exempted from review by
the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) under Executive Order 12866
(Regulatory Planning and Review).

2. Executive Order 12778

The Department of the Interior has
conducted the reviews required by
section 2 of Executive Order 12778
{Civil Justice Reform) and had
determined that this rule meets the
applicable standards of subsections (a)
and (b) of that section. However, these
standards are not applicable to the
actual language of State regulatory
programs and program amendments
since each such program is drafted and
promulgated by a specific State, not by
OSM. Under sections 503 and 505 of
SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1253 and 1255) and
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
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730.11, 732.15, and 732.17{k)(10),
decisions on proposed State regulatory
programs and program amendments
submitted by the States must be based
solely on a determination of whether the
submittal is consistent with SMCRA and
its implementing Federal regulations
and whether the other requirements of
30 CFR Parts 730, 731, and 732 have
been met.

3. National Environmental Policy Act

No environmental impact statement is
required for this rule since section
702(d) of SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1292(d))
provides that agency decisions on
proposed State regulatory program
provisions do not constitute major
Federal actions within the meaning of
section 102(2)(C) of the National
Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C.
4332(2)(C)).

4. Paperwork Reduction Act

The rule does not contain information
collection requirements that require
approval by OMB under the Paperwork
Reduction Act (44 U.S.C. 3507 et seq.).

5. Regulatory Flexibility Act

The Department of the Interior has
determined that this rule will not have

645-100-200
645-301-553
645-301-553.100 ...
645-301~553.110 ...
645-301-553.120 ...
645-301-553.130 ...
645-301-553.150
645-301-553.200
645-301-553.210 ...
645-301-553.220 ...
645-301-553.230 ...
645-301-553.252 ...
645-301-553.300 ...
645-301-553.500 ...
645-301-553.510

a significant economic impact on a
substantial number of small entities -
under the Regulatory Flexibility Act (5
U.S.C. 601 et seq.). The State submittal
that is the subject of this rule is based
upon counterpart Federal regulations for
which an economic analysis was
prepared with certification made that
such regulations would not have a
significant economic effect upon a
substantial number.of small entities.
Accordingly, this rule will ensure that
existing requirements previously
promulgated by OSM will be
implemented by the State. In making the
determination as to whether this rule
would have a significant economic
impact, the Department relied upon the
data and assumptions for the
counterpart Federal regulations.

VIL List of Subjects in 30 CFR 944

Intergovernmental relations, Surface
mining, Underground mining.

Dated: May 23, 1995.
Richard J. Seibel,
Regional Director, Western Regional
Coordinating Center.

For the reasons set out in the
preamble, Title 30, Chapter VII,
Subchapter T of the Code of Federal

Definition of “Continuously Mined Areas” (CMA’s).
Contemporaneous Reclamation Requirements for Backfilling and Grading.
Section Entitled “Disturbed Areas.”
Exceptions to the Requirement That Disturbéd Areas Achieve Approximate Original Contofir (AOC)
Backfilling and Grading of Spcil and Waste. )
Requirements for a 1.3 Static Safety Factor.

Requirements for Postmining Land Use.

Backfilling and Grading Requirements for Spoil and Waste.
General Requirements for Disposal of Excess Spoil.
Requirements for Placement of Spoil.

.General Requirements for Backfilling and Grading.

Final Grading of Refuse Piles and Coal Mine Waste.
Covering of Exposed Coal Seams.

Previously Mined Area's (PMA’s), CMA's, and Areas With Remaining Highwalls Subject to AOC Provisions.
Remining Operations on PMA’s, Operations on CMA's, and Operations on Areas With Remaining Highwalls

Subject to AOC Provisions.

645-301-553.520
645-301-553.530 ...
645-301-553.540 ...
645-301-553.600 ...
645-301-553.610
645-301-553.611 and 612
645—-301-553.650
645-301-553.650.100
645-301-553.650.200
645-301-553.650.300
645-301-553.650.400

Area.
645-301-553.650.500

3. Section 944.16 is amended by
adding paragraphs (c) and (d) to read as
follows:

§944.16 Required program amendments.
* * * * * -

{c) By July 21, 1995, Utah shall revise
Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553.110, or

Backfilling and Grading of Remaining Highwalls.
Stability Criteria for Backfilling and Grading.
Spoil Placement.

Newly-Created Section Title for Utah’s Reorganized Rule Requirements for PMA's and CMA's.
Exceptions for PMA’s and CMA’s From the Requirement for Complete Highwall Elimination.
Backfilling and Grading of Reasonably Available Spoil.
Highwall Management Under the AOC Provisions.

Height and Length Requirements of Remaining Highwalls.
Replacement of Preexisting Cliffs or Similar Natural Premining Features With a Remaining Highwall.
Modifications to Retained Highwalls Restoring Cliff-Type Habitats Required by Premining Flora and Fauna.
Compatibility of Retained nghwalls With the Approved Postuining Land Use and Visual Attributes of the

Exemption from Obtammg.g Variance From AOC Requirements.

otherwise modify its program, by
correcting the cross-referenced
provisions in the phrase “R645-301—
500 through R645-301-540." regarding
previously mined area’s continuously
mined area’s, and areas subject to the
AOC provisions, to read “R645-301—
553.500 through R645-301-553.540.”

Regulatlons is amended as set forth
below:

PART 944—UTAH

1. The authority citation for Part 944
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 30 U.S.C. 1201 et seq.

2. Section 944.15 is amended by
adding paragraph (ee) to.read as follows:

§944.15 Approval of amendments to the
Utah regulatory program.

* * * * *

(ee) With the exception of Utah
Admin. R. 645-301-553.651,
concerning the applicability date of
Utah's replacement criterion for areas
with remaining highwalls subject to the
AOQOC provisions at Utah Admin. R. 645~
301-553.650.200 (formerly the “AOC
alternative”), the following rules, as
submitted to OSM on November 12,
1993, and as revised on June 28 and
Novernber 3, 1994, are approved
effective May 30, 1995.

(d} By July 31, 1995, Utah shall revise

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-553-120, or
otherw1se modify its program, by
(.orrectmg the cross-referenced
provisions in the phrase “R645-301~-
553.500 through R645-301-540,"
regarding previously mined area's,
continuously mined area’s, and areas

-
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subject to the AOC provisions, to read
“R645-301-553.500 through R645-301~
553.540" and correcting the cross-
referenced provisions in the phrase
“R645~-301-553.650 through R645-301—
553.653" to read “R645-301-553.650
through R645-301-553.651."”

[FR Doc. 95-13156 Filed 5-26—-95; 8:45 am}
BILLING CODE 4310-05-M

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Office of the retary

32 CFR Part 21

Military Recruiting at institutions of
Higher Educatipn

AGENCY: Office pf the Secretary, DoD.
ACTION: Interim| rule.

SUMMARY: The bepartment of Defense
adopts this intérim rule to implement
the “National Defense Authorization
Act for Fiscal Year 1995. It updates
policy, procedures, and responsibilities
for identifyingland taking action against
any institutior] of higher education that
has a policy of denying, or, that
effectively prejents, the Secretary of
Defense from ¢btaining for military
recruiting purposes: Entry to campuses,
access to students on campuses, or
access to studentdirectory information.
No funds avaijable to the Department of
Defense (DoD) may be provided by grant
or contract to any such institution. The
new law allows no basis for waivers.
DATES: This interim rule is effective on
May 30, 1995] Written comments on this
rule must be received by July 31, 1995.
ADDRESSES: Forward coraments to the
Director for Accession Policy, Office of
the Assistant|Secretary of Defense for
Force Management Policy, 4000 Defense
Pentagon, Washington, DC 20301-4000.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Ronald G. Liyeris, (703} 687-9268.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Executive Order 12866

rule is not a “significant
regulatory action,” as defined by
Executive Order 12866. The Department
of Defense believes that it-will not: (1)
Have an annyal effect on the economy
of $100 millidn or more or adversely
affect in a material way the economy, a
sector of the gconomy, productivity,
competition, jpbs, the environment,
public health pr safety, or State, local,
.or tribal goverhments or communities;
(2) create a serjous inconsistency or
otherwise intetfere with an action taken
or planned by another agency; (3)
materially alter\the budgetary impact of

entitlements, grants, yuser fees, or loan
programs or the rights and obligations of
recipients thereof; or {4) raise novel

legal or policy issues arising our of legal
mandates, the President’s priorities, or
the principles set forth in Executive
Order 12866.

Regulatory Flexibility Act of 1980 (5
U.S.C. 605(b))

This interim rule wiill not have a
significant adverse impact on a
substantial number of small entities.

Paperwork Reductiop Act of 1980 (44
U.S.C., Chapter 35)

This interim rule will not impose any
additional reporting ¢r record keeping
requirements under the Paperwork
Reduction Act.

List of Subjects in 32JCFR Part 216

Armed Forces, Colleges and
universities, Recruitifig personnel.

Accordingly, 32 CHR part 216 is

. revised to read as follows:

RECRUITING AT
GHER

PART 216—MILITA
INSTITUTIONS OF H
EDUCATION

Sec.

216.1
216.2
216.3
216.4

Appendix A to part 216—Sample Letter of
Inquiry '
Authority: 10 U.S.C. 503 note.

Purpose.
Applicability.
Definitions.
Responsibility.

§216.1 Purpose.

This part implemehts section 558,
The National Defens¢ Authorization Act
for Fiscal Year 1995,/Pub. L. 103-337
{See 10 U.S.C. sectiop 503 note). It-
updates policy and responsibilities for
identifying and taking action regarding
institutions of higher education that
either have a policy jof denying or
effectively bar military recruiting
personnel from entny to their campuses,
or from access to stydent directory
information.

§216.2 Applicability.

This part applies| to the Office of the
Secretary of Defenge, the Military
Departments, the Ghairman of the Joint
Chiefs of Staff, the {Unified and
Specified Combatapt Commands, the
Uniformed Services University of
Health Sciences (JSUHS), the Defense
Agencies, and Dol Field Activities
{hereafter referred Yo collectively as “the
DoD Components”)). The term “Military
Services,” as used/herein, refers to the
Army, the Navy, the Air Force, and the
Marine Corps.

§216.3 Definitions. .

(a) Directory informition. Referring to
a student means the stydent’s name,
address, telephone listing, date and
place of birth, level of dducation,
degrees received, and the most recent
previous educational ifstitution
enrolled in by student.

(b) Institution of higher education. A
domestic college, univdrsity, or sub-
element of a university|providing post-
secondary school courses of study,
including foreign camppses of such
institutions. This includes junior
colleges, community cdlleges, and
institutions providing gourses leading to
undergraduate and pos{-graduate
degrees. The term “instjtution of higher
education” does not inglude entities
that operate exclusively outside the
United States, its territories, and
possessions. ’

(c) Student. An individual who is 17
years of age or older and enrolled in an
institution of higher education.

§216.4 Policy.
(a) Under section 558 bf the National
Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal
Year 1995, no funds available to the
Department of Defense (DoD) may be
provided by grant or contract to any
institution of higher edudation that
either has a policy of denying or that
effectively prevents the Secretary of
Defense from obtaining, for military
recruiting purposes, entry to campuses
or access to students on campuses or
access to directory informhtion
pertaining to students. This prohibition
on use of DoD funds applies only to sub-
elements of an institution|of higher
education that are determjned to have
such a policy or practice.
(b) An evaluation to determine
whether an institution of higher
education has a policy of denying, or is

_effectively preventing, th¢ Secretary of

Defense from obtaining entry to the
campuses, access to students on
campuses, or access to stpdent directory
information shall be undertaken when:

{1) Military recruiting personnel
cannot obtain permissiofi to recruit on
the premises of the instifution or when
they are refused directoyy information.
Military recruiting persqnnel shall
accommodate an institufion’s
reasonable preferences gs to times and
places for scheduling of}-campus
recruiting, provided that any such
restrictions are not based on the policies
or practices of the Depaftment of
Defense and the Military Services are
provided entry to the cdmpus and
access to students on cdmpus and
directory information; dr

{2) The institution is hnwilling to
declare in writing as a ) erequisite to an
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U. S. Department of Labor Mine Safety and Health Administration
P.O. Box 25367
Denver, Coltorado 80225—-0367
Coal Mine Safety and Health
District 9

MAY |8 1995

Robert H. Hagen, Director

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
Albuguerque Field Office

505 Marquette Avenue, N.W., Suite 1200

Albuquerque, NM 87102

RE: Formal Amendment to
Utah’s Coal Mining Rules (UT-917)
SPAT No. (UT-024-FOR)
General Comments

Dear Mr. Hagen:

This is in response to your letter dated April 29, 1994, requesting
general comments concerning the referenced Utah rules being changed
for surface mining. The information was reviewed by MSHA personnel
for possible conflicts with MSHA regulations. No conflicts between
the proposed changes and current MSHA regulations could be found.

MSHA appreciates the opportunity to comment on matters of such
importance. We apologize for the lateness of this reply, due to a
backlog in our technical support division. If you have any
questions concerning this matter, please contact this office at

(303) 231-5462.

Sincerely,

bistrice MaYy 2 3¢

District Manager

L. MEADORS
i

PSOMARTINEZ
D MARTING?
- . | S.RATHBUN

1Don e TBWN
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May 12, 1995
TELEPHONE CONVERSATION RECORD

I called Ron Daniels today to tell him that I had FAXed a copy
of a draft issue letter to him regarding SPAT UT-028-FOR,
Husbandry Practices. Ron looked at the issue letter and
agreed that Utah preferred to receive a final issue letter
rather than for OSM to procede with publication of a final
rule Federal Register notice.

W/ W 52 TS

Vernon E. Maldonado Program Analyst
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING
Reclamation and Enforcement
Suite 1200
505 Marquerte Avenue N,
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

May 23, 1995

Mr.-James W. Carter, Director
Division of 0il, Gas, & Mining
3 Triad Center, Suite 350

355 West North Temple

Salt Lake City, UT 84180-1203

Dear Mr. Carter:

The Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM)
has completed review of Utah’'s February 6, 1995, formally-
proposed amendment (administrative record No. UT-1025; State
Program Amendment Tracking System {(SPATS) No. UT-028-FOR). The
amendment concerns normal husbandry practices. OSM finds those
provisions of the proposed amendment identified in the enclosure
to this letter to be less effective than the Federal counterpart
regulations and less stringent than the Surface Mining Control
and Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA).

The Regional Director, Western Regional Coordinating Center, is
prepared to delay final rulemaking on the proposed amendment to
allow Utah an opportunity to submit draft proposed rules or other
evidence that the proposed rules are no less effective than the
Federal regulations and no less stringent than SMCRA. Utah must
submit such additional information no later than 30 days from the
date of this letter. Upon submission by Utah of new material to
address the deficiencies, OSM would, as appropriate, reopen the
comment period on the new information for 15 days. After the
close of the reopened comment period, OSM would then publish a
final rule announcing the Regional Director’s decision on the
amendment. The Regional Director’s approval of the rules in
proposed form is contingent upon Utah’s adoption of the rules in
the form in which they were reviewed by OSM and the public.
Should Utah indicate that it does not wish to or is unable to
submit further modifications to address the identified
deficiencies, the Regional Director would not approve those
provisions which contain identified deficiencies.

Please advise me at your earliest convenience whether Utah wishes
to submit materials to address OSM's concerns within the next 30
days. If Utah does not intend to submit additional material, OSM
will proceed directly with the publication in the Federal
Register of the Regional Director’‘s decision.
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Mr. James W. Carter

We are available to meet with you to discuss our review findings
or any matters of concern regarding the proposed rules. Please
call me or Vernon Maldonado, Program Analyst, at 505-766-1486 if
you have any questions.

Sincerely,

/ c e
S L s

/ / 2800 AL
Lptlto—. T2

Arthur W. Abbs, Acting Director
Albugquerque Field Office

Enclosure
cc: DFT, WRCC

Regional Solicitor,
Rocky Mountain Region
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ISSUES IDENTIFIED BY OSM FOR UTAH’S FEBRUARY 6, 1995, NORMAL
HUSBANDRY PRACTICES FORMALLY-PROPOSED AMENDMENT
(SPATS NO. UT-028-FOR)

1. Third-Party Interference Occurring After Phase II Bond
Release.

Utah Admin. R. 645-301-357.340 30 CFR 816.116(c) (4)
30 CFR 817.116(c) (4)

Utah proposes at Utah Admin. R. 645-301-357.340 to allow, among
other things, repair of revegetation damaged as a result of
third-party interference, such as vandalism, which 1s not caused
by any lack of planning, design, or implementation of the mining
and reclamation plan on the part of the permittee.

Because the permittee must meet revegetation success standards on
reclaimed lands, OSM agrees that the repair of vegetation damaged
as a result of vandalism can be approved as a normal husbandry
practice that would not restart the résponsibility period.
However, to be no less effective than the Federal regulations at
30 CFR 816.116(c) (1) and (4) and 817.116(c) (1) and (4), Utah must
further clarify what types of third-party interference, other
than vandalism, would be provided for by proposed Utah Admin. R.

. 645-301-357.340, or revise this aspect of the proposed rule to
apply only to vandalism.

2. Editorial Comments.

OSM recommends that Utah (1) revise proposed Appendix C of its
"Vegetation Information Guidelines" to include the three manuals
it submitted to support its requirement at Utah Admin. R. 645-
301-357.340 addressing reestablishment of vegetation after
wildfires and (2) revise proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301-357.340
to reference these manuals in Appendix C.

Utah proposes at Admin. R. 645-301-357.350 to allow, as a normal
husbandry practice that would not restart the extended
responsibility period, irrigation of transplants. For clarity,
OSM recommends that Utah revise proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-301-
357.350 to specify that it applies to the irrigation of
transplanted trees and shrubs.




MINE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS OF SECTION 720(a) OF SMCRA,

Andalex Resources, Inc., appreciates the opportunity to comment on the implementation

of the Energy Policy Act and the final OSM rule which was found at Section 720(a)(1) and
720(a)(2).

We are knowledgeable and aware of our responsibilities under the Energy Policy Act and
have reviewed the final OSM rule in 30CFR Parts 701, 784, 817 and 843 that were
published in the Federal Register, Friday, March 31, 1995.

There are currently 13 active underground mines in the State of Ulah. Compared to

many other coal mining states, this is a relatively small number.

There are no "non-commercial buildings or occupied residential dwelling or structures
related thereto” that could be damaged as a result of coal mining-caused subsidence at «. -
any of Andalex's coal leases in the Slate of Utah. We are also not aware of any such

structures at any of the other active coal mines located within the State.

Since the enactment of the Energy Policy Act on October 24, 1992, we are not aware of
any complaint dealing with the loss of water; nor has Andalex, in its entire history, been
made aware of a water-loss problem of any kind resulting from mining or any other

Andalex activily.

There are no drinking, domestic or residential springs or wells within the angle of draw

impact area at any location in the State of Utah which is controlled by Andalex.

Based on the facts that: 1) There is a relatively low number of active underground coal

mines in the Slate of Utah; 2) There have been a relatively low number of cilizen



‘\.
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complaints dealing with "non-commercial buildings or occupied residential dwellings or
structures related thereto"” or to drinking, domestic, or residential water supply in the State
of Utah; 3) The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining has promptly taken remedial action
on all citizen complaints received; 4) The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining is keenly
aware of Utah State water law, and 5) The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining has the
qualified personnel to enforce the requirements of the Energy Policy Act, Andalex
recommends that the State of Utah proceed with the promulgation of regulatory provisions
that are counterpart to 30CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(C)(2) and that the State of Utah

take over the immediate enforcement of these regulations.

..
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May 8, 1595

Thomas Ehmett, Acting Director
Federal Office of Surface Mining
505 Marquette Avenue, NW

Suite 1200

Albuquerque, NM 84702

Re: Written Comments Concerning Cocmpliance by State of]

with Respect to Provisions of the Energy Policy Akt of

1992

Dear Mr. Ehmett:

The Castle Valley Special Service District (CVSSD) apprec

the opportunity to appear before you on May 1, 1995, to prpvide
comments on the above-referenced topic. The following shoufld be -

deemed our written comments and we request they become part o

formal record for the purposes of determining how the regulagrions -
promulgated in response to the Energy Policy Act of 1992 willl be -

enforced in the State of Utah.

As we indicated at the hearing, CVSSD represents the lajrgest

water service entity in Emery County, Utah. In that the
majority of the water developed and served by CVSSD emanates
the side of cliffs in the form of springs and those cliffs

contain coal mining operations, the strict enforcement of

Energy Policy Act of 1992 is of critical significance to CVSS
its customers. It is important to remember that due to the
nature of this region, all easily obtainable water sources
previously been developed and appropriated under state law;
the issue of replacement becomes problematic absent the initi
of treatment of surface water or development of new source
tributary to existing sources.

In an ongoing effort to protect its critical water sou
CVSSD and its culinary and irrigation water service partners
been involved in a number of proceedings before the Divisi
0il, Gas and Mining ("DOGM") and the Utah State Engineer conce
the ongoing coal mining operations in the Co-op Mine. Wi
belaboring those particular efforts, the results have
unsatisfactory. In fact, during the courze of the procee
before the Board of 0il, Gas and Mining in 1994, the DOGM too
position that it was unwilling to apply the replacement provi
of the Energy Policy Act of 1992. It also adopted a review po
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which CVSSD believes segmented the analysis and review of the fotal
hydrologic impact o©f the mining operations of the Co-op Mine.

While CVSSD believes some positive changes are occurring at the -

DOGM, it has no desire to be the victim of a hiatus in enforcement.

While the majority of the coal operators whose operations

impact the water supplies of CVSSD have been cooperative,; the
operators of Co-op have not. Unfortunately, this mine is lokated
directly upgradient from and within the recharge area of one gf the

major water sources of CVSSD--the Big Bear Spring. CVSSD|is a
special service district with a rather large service area peopled

by persons of modest economic means. Use of its limited financial

resources should not be required to force compliance from resijstant

coal operators--that should be the mission and purpose of the |[DOGM.

Unfortunately, in the past, CVSSD and its associated entities
have found themselves in the position of seeking expert testimony
to unravel conclusions and factual findings reached by the [DOGM.
Invariably,
objective data collected by the DOGM, but rather upon data and
information provided to it by consultants for Co-op. A tremgndous

amount of - time and effort has been expended by CVSSD an{d ité-
work. -
t the.

associated entities to expose the flaws in the consultants’
Again, while we believe positive progress is being made 3

DOGM, the track record is very poor concerning the enforcement and

protection of water resources adjacent to the c¢oal wining:

operations of the Co-op Mine.

In addition to a resistant coal operator and a recalcitrant

and apparently understaffed regulatory authority, CVSSD |faces

additional problems in protecting its water sources from coal
operations. A significant problem has been created due to the
inability of the Utah State Engineer and the DOGM to ptovide

adequate enforcement to protect these underground water sources..

The current enforcemant scheme has resulted in 1little pr no
protection of the water rights and water sources of my client.

Both the Utah Mining Association (UMA) and the DOGM have
assumed that the State Engineer’s existing authority provides
sufficient remedies for replacement of water sources. As currently
administered, it does not. The code sections cited by the PMA in
their lettexr dated May 1, 1995, (Utah Code Ann. 73-3-1, 73-3-{8, 73-
3-13, and 73-3-23) only operate in the instance where the opgrator
has previously obtained a water right under Utah law ang then
follows through with additional filings of change applichtions
under 73-3-3 for movements of water within the mine. Unt

these findings and conclusions are not based| upon

11 the
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State Engineer requires such compliance with operative law, {there
iz no protection for prior appropriators such as CVSSD and its

associated entities. However, i1f the State Engineer reguires '

compliance with the water code for those underground movemenits of

water and the DOGM forces that compliance prior to ®gvery

underground movement of water, then the scenario proposed by the
UMA and the DCOGM may work.

It must be stressed, however, that this is not the case now

and the State Engineer will not currently enforce its authprity
over these underground mine workings and the movement of watexr -

J

therein. Thus, the "solutions" proposed by the DOGM and the UMA
are ineffective at this time. Likewise, the memorandum of

understanding proposed by the UMA will have no beneficial impact on
this situation until the State Engineer and the DOGM reguire

compliance with the Utah Water Code for underground movemeht of
water within underground workings.

Due to this.lack of coordinated enforcement by the DOGM and

the State Engineer, CVSSD has experienced different return| flow

patterns than it has in the past. For instance, in 1891 Bigj Bear .
Spring experienced an "event" during which anomalous materials sucK"
as grease and oil appeared in the water. CVSSD believes thip was .

the result of dumping of water encountered in the Co-op Minej into

-

a mined axea upgradient from the spring. Recently, flows| have .
dropped approxXimately 30%. Such aberrations seriously threategn the

viability of this water source.

The other aspect of DOGM monitoring that has been lax or
nonexistent 1s the requirement concerning post-permikting

conditions. While these mines will come and go once thej coal

resource is removed, the water sources need to be protected in
perpetuity for the benefit of the population. In ordgr to

accomplish this, there must be a consistent and frequent updating
of the hydrologic models and a frequent comparison of pre-permit
conditions to current conditions. Failure to do so throughout the
permitting process will lead to catastrophic results in thej post

permit period. Source replacement identification and emplacgment

efforts must also survive the post-permit period.

In summary, while the DOGM appears to be moving in the gight
direction, additional resources need to be applied to ensure| that
the requirements of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 are met. Sgrict
enforcement of that statute is absolutely critical to the future of
my client and its customers. On that basis, CVSSD requests,| at a
minimum, joint DOGM/0OSM enforcement and regulation of! the
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provisions of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 until it is cleany that
a workable and effective enforcement scenario is in place.

Very truly yours,

COLLARD, APPEL & WARLAUMONT

W (et

Jeffr . Appel

cc: Darrel Leamaster

JWR/wsn
l-ghmett. 508
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Thomas E. Ehmett

Acting birector

Albuquerque Field Office
Office of Surface Mining

H05 Marquette Avenue, N.W.
Albuguerque, New Mexico 87102

Re: May 1, 1995 Public Hearing - Federal Energy Pelicy Act
Requirements for Water Replacement and Subsidence Control
Utah Coal Regulatory Program

Dear Mr. Chmett:

This letter will supplement the oral comments and written
materials submitted on May 1, 1995 on behalf of the Emery Water
Consarvancy District, Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation Company and
North Emery water Users Association. We appreclate the opportunity
to subnit comments on this issue of critical concern to the
residents of Emery County, Utah.

The above-mentioned water organizations are organized and
function solely to enhance, preserve, and purvey water for
domestic, irrigation and industrial uses 1n Emery County. The
Emery Water Conservancy District is a governmental entity charged
by state law to"provide for the conservation of the water and land
resources" (See Utah Code Ann. § 17A-2-1401). Huntington-Cleveland
Irrigation Company is the helder of thc vast majority of the water
rights in the Huntington Creek drainage and provides water to the
castle valley Special Services District that serves Hunlington City
and Elmo and Cleveland Townz as wecll as irrigation and induetrial
uses. North Emery Wataer Users Association provides drinking water
to unincorporated Northern Emery County.
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These water entities, along with others, have grown
increasingly concerned over the impact of coal mining activities on
both water quality and water quantity. 6Several studies by the
United States Geological Survey have demonstrated that the regional
agquifer that provides water to the BHuntington, Cottonwood and
Ferron drainages, is found in thc samc strata as thce ocoal ccams
that are commercially mined.

During rccent ycars, anomaloue changes in flows of springe and
water quality have been observed near mining activity. In order to
develop a data base to document such water quality and quantity
changes, the Emery Water Conscrvancy District hae expended $250,000
to monitor springs and streams. '

When flows of two springs used for drinking water were
impacted by mining by Co-op Mining Company, Huntington-Claveland
and North Emery Water Users Assoclation along with Castle Valley
Special €crvicce District undertook a formal administrative
proceeding before the Utah Board of Oil, Gas & Mining to challenge
the issuance of a substantive revision to Co-op's permit by the
Division of 0il, Gas & Mining ("Division"). No decision has yet
been issued by the Board.

However, a similar level of concern by the Division over water
resnurce has not been detacted. As recently as October of 1994 . ...
Division legal counsel, Thomas Mitchell, Esq. informed the Board of
0i1l, Cas & Mining that replacement of drinking water reguired by
the Federal Energy Policy Act, 30 U.S:C., § 1309(a), was not part
of the Utah Program. Also, the Division has not heretofore
aggreseively conforced the water protection regulations that it
considaers part of the Utah program.

For ecxample, at the hearings regarding the substantive
revision to Co-op's permit, it came to light that the Division had
failed Lu obtain mandatory baseline flow information for the two
Springs that provided drinking water. Failure to obtain baseline
flow information made determination of impact by mining very
difficult to gauge.

The comments of Mr. James W, Carter, Division Director, at the
May 1, 1995 hearing indicate a positive evolution of the position
of the Division regarding the protection of water. We applaud this
apparent shift in Division policy. However, we are as vyet
unwilling to rely on the Division alone to protect this critical

resource.
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We would ask that Office of Surface Mining oversee and closely
monitor the offorts of the Division to develop regqulatione and
enforce such regulations. 1f the Division is able to accomplish
the following, we will then agree that the Division should
adminigter ground water protection:

1. With involvement of water users and other
interegted parties, develop regqulations that protect all
beneficial uses of water and require replacement of water
lost by mining activity.

2. Build water quantity and water quality triggers
into mining permits that automatically require water
replacement if flows in ldentified springs or wells drop
below certain levels or exhibit a speciflied decrease in
quality.

3. Enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with
the EBtate Engineer which clarifies the roles of the
respactive divisions and shares expertise to assure that
water protection dces not continue to fall between the
cracks.

4. Dedicate sufflclent resource to aggressively
review both applications and existing permits on
hydrolegy issues and annually review permits to compare SN
probable hydrologlc consequences with actual.

5. Demonstrate an engoing commitment to protection
of water resources from the impacts of mining.

If these five steps are accomplished, we will be comfortable
with Division administration. However, until such time, we would
request Office of Surface Mining oversight, and if necessary,
Office of Surface Mining administration of statutes and regulations

which protect water resources.

Thank you for your consideration of our comments. Please
contact me should addltlonal information be needed.

Vary truly yours,

cc: Emery Water Conservancy Diftri

cc: Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation Com
cc: North Emery Water Users Association
cc: James W. Carter, Esqg.
PS>B:\NORTH-EM\EHHETT.LLTR
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e hief, Regulations
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
Internal Reven e Service /r \/

@903

Contributions {o Pension, Prof‘ t-
Sharing, etc., Rlans on Behalf of Seif—
Employed IndiViduals and
Shareholders-Employees; Correction

26 CFR Part 1 |
T.D. 7636]

AGENCY: Internal Revenue Service,
Treasury.

ACTION: Correcting amendment.

SUMMARY: This flocument contains a
correction to thg final regulations (T.D.
7636), which were published in the
Federal Register Friday, August 10, .
1979 {44 FR 47046), relatmg to
contributions tofpension, profit-sharing,
etc., plans on behalf of self-employed .
individuals and hareholder-employees.
EFFECTIVE DATE: May 2, 1995.

FOR FURTHER INFQRMATION CONTACT:

Brant Goldwyn (302) 622—6090, {not a
toll-free call). ri
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background ,
The final reguldtions that are the’
subject of this corfection clarify the
applicability of the $100,000 limitation
of section 401(a)(17) to certain plans
maintained by an hggregated employer
group.
" Need for Correctign

As published, T{D. 7636 contains an
error which may-grove to be misleading
and is in need of dlarification.

List of Subjects inj26 CFR Part 1

. ..Income taxes, R¢porting and
‘recordkeeping regjiirements.
Accordingly, 26{CFR part 1 is
corrected by makipg the following
correcting amendrent:

PART 1—NCOME TAX; TAXABLE
YEARS BEGINNING AFTER
DECEMBER 31, 1953

Paragraph 1. The authority citation
for part 1 continups to read in part as
follows:

- Authority: 26 U.$.C. 7805 * * *

' §1.401(e}6 [Correkted]

entence of

s amended by
foliowing the

“(a) General rules—

. Par. 2. The first
§1.401(e)-5 (a)(1)
removing the “(1)’
paragraph heading
(1) General rule.”
Cynthiz E. Grigsby, ;
d it, Assistant Chief
Counsel (Corporaig).
l4d 5-1-95; 8:45 am)

BILLING CODE 4830-01
£ ‘

} 4

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement

30 CFR Part 944

Utah Regulatory Program

AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM),
Interior.

ACTION: Final rule; approval of
amendment.

SUMMARY: OSM is approving a proposed

amendment to the Utah regulatory
program (hereinafter referred to as the
“Utah program”) under the Surface
Mining Control and Reclamation Act of
1977 (SMCRA). Utah proposed revisions
to its civil penalty rules with the intent
of making them consistent with recently
promulgated revisions to the Utah Coal
Reclamation Act of 1979.

EFFECTIVE DATE: May 2, 1995.

- FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT;
.Thomas E. Ehmett, Telephone (505)

766-1486.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
I. Background on the Utah Program

On January 21, 1981, the Secretary of
the Interior conditionally approved the
Utah program. General background

“information on the Utah program,

including the Secretary’s findings, the
disposition of comments, and the
conditions of approval of the Utah .
program can be found in the January 21,

:. 1981, Federal Register (46 FR 5899).

Subsequent actions concerning Utah’s
program and program amendments can
be found at 30 CFR 944. 15, 944.16, and

© 944.30.

I Sl_lbmxssion of Proposed Amendment

By letter dated February 10, 1995,
Utah at its own initiative submitted a
proposed amendment to its program
(administrative record No. UT-1019)
pursuant to SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1201 et
seq.). Utah proposed to amend the Utah’
Coal Mining Rules at Utah-
Administrative Rules (Utah, Admin. R.)
645—401-120, 410, 430,721, 810, 830,

*and Q.LO (‘oncer'ung c1v11 penalties, and -

Utah Admin. R: 645-402-120, 420, and -
422, concerning individual civil .
penalties. Utah did so with the intent of
making them consistent with recently
promulgated revisions to the Utah Coal
Reclamation Act of 1979 (UCA 40-10 et
seq.).

?)SM announced receipt of the
proposed amendment in the February
27,1995, Federal Register (60 FR 10531;
administrative record No. UT-1029} and
in the same document opened the
public comment period and provided an
opportunity for a public hearing on the
substantive adequacy of the proposed
amendment. The public comment |
period closed on March 28, 1995. The
public hearing, scheduled for March 24,
1995, was not held because no one
requested an opportunity to testify:

III. Director’s Findings .

As discussed below, the Director, in
accordance with SMCRA and 30 CFR
732.15 and 732.17, finds that the
proposed Utah program amendment
‘submitted by Utah on February 10,

1995, is no less effective than the
corresponding Federal regulations.

" Thus, the Director approves the

proposed amendment.

1. Nonsubstantive Hevzszon to Utah’s
Rules _ .

Utah proposed a revision to
previously-approved Utah Admin. R.
645—401-430, concerning assessment of
violations and unabated violations, that
is nonsubstantive in nature and consists
of the addition of the acronym “UCA"
prior to referenced provisions of Utah's
statute. .

Because the proposed revision to this
previously-approved rule is
nonsubstantive in nature, the Director
finds that the proposed revision to Utah
Admin. R. 645-401-430 is no less
effective than the corresponding Federal
regulation at 30 CFR 845.15(b)(2). The
Director approves this proposed
revision. «

2. Substantive Revisions to Utah’s Rules
That Are Substantively Identical to the’
Corresponding Provisions of the Federal
Regulations

Utah proposed revisions to the
following rules that are substantive in
nature and contain language that is
substantively identical to the
requirements of the correspondmg
Federal regulations (listed in
parentheses). The rules include
revisions that transfer power for
assessing civil penalties fromthe Board
of Oil, Gas, and Mining (Board) to the
Division of Oil, Gas, and Mining
(Divisionj. These rule revisions
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implement prekusly approved .
statutory revisions at UCA 40-10-20
(1)(a) and (3)(a) that had the same effect
{see finding No: 4, 59 FR 49185, 49187,
September 27, 1994). ,
Utah Admin. R. 645-401-120 (30 CFR

845.11}, concerning information on

civil penalties;

Utah Admin. R. 645-401—410 (30 CFR -
845.15(a)), concerning assessments of
separate violations for each day;

Utah Admin. R. 645-401-721, 645—401-
723.100, and 645—401-742 (30 CFR
845.18(b)(1), 845.18(b}(3)(i), and.
845.18(d)(2)), concerning procedures
for inforrnal assessment conferences;

Utah Admin. R. 645-401-810 (30.CFR.
845.19(a)), concerning requests for-
formal hearings; and

Utah Admin. R. 645—402—420 and 645—
402—422 (30 CFR 846.17(b) and
846.17(b)(2)), concerning procedures
for assessment of individual civil
penalties.

Because these proposed revisions of
the Utah rules are substantively -
identical to the corresponding
provisions of the Federal regulatxons
the Director finds that they are no less
effective than the Federal regulations.
The Director approves these proposed
rules.

3. Utah Admin. R. 645—401'-830 Formal.

Review of the Violation Fact or the Civil
Penalty

Utah proposed to revise Utah Admin. . -

R. 645-401-830 to specify that formal
review of the violation fact or penalty
will be conducted by the Board under
the provisions of the “procedural rules
of the Board (R641 Rules).” The -
“procedural rules.of the Board (R641
Rules)” are entitled “Rules of Practice
and Procedure of the Utah Board of Qil,
Gas and Mining.”

The corresponding Federal
regulations at 30'CFR 845.19(a) state
that the person charged with the
violation may contest the fact of a
violation or the proposed pendlty for a
violation by submitting, among other-

" things, a petition to the Office of -
Hearings and Appeals. The procedural’
requirements that apply to these appeals
are included in the Federal program at
43 CFR 4.1150 through 4.1171." -

- Utah’s proposed reference tosits

“‘procedural rules-of the Board (R641 -
Rules)” in proposed Utah Admin. R’
645-401-830 corresponds to the general
reference in the Federal regulation at 30
CFR 845.19(4) to the Office of Hearings
and- Appeals OSM previously
approved, in Utah's original program,
Utah’s procedural requirements at Utah
Admin. R. Part 641, the “Rules of
Practice and Procedure of the Utah

Board of Oil, Gas and Mmmg ” (see
finding No. 4(g), 46 FR 5899, 5910,
21, 1981).

Janu . .
. aIth basis, the Director finds that

the proposed revision to Utah Admin. R.
645—401-830 is no less effective than
the Federal regulations at 845.19(a) and
approves it.

4. Utah Admin. R. 645-401-910, Final -
Civil Penalty Assessment and Payment

" of Penalty &

Utah proposed to revise Utah Admm i
R. 645—401-910 to require that, if the
permittee fails to request a hearing as
provided in Utah Admin: R. 645—401~
810, the proposed civil penalty
assessment will become a final order of
the Division, rather than the Board.
Utah also proposed revising Utah
Admin. R. 645—401-910 to require that-
the penalty assessed will become due
and payable upon expiration of the time
allowed to request a hearing and “‘upon.

the Division fulfilling its responsibilities .

under UCA 40-10-20(3)(e)."” Utah
proposed to add the quoted language as.
part-of this amendment. |

The counterpart Federal regulation at
30 CFR 845.20(a) requires that if the.
person to whom a notice of violation or
cessation order is issued fails to request
a hearing as provided for in 30 CFR
845.19, the proposed assessment shall
become a final order of the Secretary
and the penalty assessed shall become
due and payable upon expiration of the
time allowed to request a hearing.

The Federal regulation at 30 CFR
845.20(a) differs from proposed Utah
Admin. R. 645-401-910 only in that (1)
it addresses the:final order of the
Secretary of the Interior and. (2} it does -
not reference section 518(b) of SMCRA
which is substantively identical to the
Utah'’s referenced statutory provision at
UCA 40-10-20(3)(e).

Utah’s referenced statutory provision

- at UCA 40-10-20(3)(e) provides that, if

the person charged with a violation fails
to avail himself of the opportunity for a
public hearing, a civil penalty shall be
assessed by the Division after it has (1)
deterinined that a violation did occur,
(2) determined the amount of the
penalty that is warranted,.and (3) issued
an order requiring that the penalty be
paid. These provisions of Utah’s statute
are implemented in Utah Admin. R.
645-401~730, which states that the
assessment conference officer will.
promptly serve the permittée with a
notice of his or her action (i.e., an
assessment notice) and will include a
worksheet if the penalty has been
lowered or raised from the original
assessment.

Proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-401~
910 therefore requires that, if the

‘permittee fails to request a hearing as .
- provided in Utah Admin. R. 645401~

810, the proposed civil penalty
assessment (i.e., the assessment notice
required in Utah Admin. R. 645—401—"
730) will become a final order of the
Division. o ,

The Director finds that proposed Utal
Admin. R. 645—401-910 is noless:
effective than the Federal regulation at
30 CFR 845.20(a) and approves it.

5. Utah Admin. R. 645—402-120,
Informatxon .on Individual Civil
Penafties - ! :

Utah proposed to revise Utah Admin.
R. 645-402~120 to require that a
Division-appointed, rather than a Board-
appointed, assessment officer will
assess individual civil penalties.

Proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-402—
120 bas no direct counterpart in the
Federal regulations: However, the
generally corresponding Federal
regulation at 30 CFR 846.1 establishes
the scope of OSM'’s individual civil
penalty regulations when it states that
30 CFR Part 846 covers the assessment
of individual civil penalties under

“section 518(f) of SMCRA.

Utah’s statutory provision which

‘corresponds to, and is substantively

identical to, section 518(f} of SMCRA is
UCA 40-10-20(6). As discussed in -
finding No. 2 above, OSM prevzously
approved Utah's statutory provisions at
UCA 40-10-20.that transferred power -
for assessment of civil penalties from
the Board to the Division. It naturally
follows that Utah also has the discretion
to select the same ‘State entity to be.
responsible for assessments of . .
individual civil penalties. : . .

On this basis, the Director finds that
proposed Utah Admin. R: 645—402-120
is consistent with its statute as well as
the Federal regulation at 30 CFR 846.1.

- Therefore, the Director approves.

proposed Utah Admin. R. 645-402-120.

IV. Summary and Disposition of .
Comments

Following are summaries of all
substantive comments on the proposed
amendment that were received by OsM, -
and OSM'’s responses to them

1. Public Comments. _

OSM invited pubhc comments on the
proposed amendment, but none were
received.

2. Federal Agency Comments

Pursuant to 732.17(h})(11)(i), OSM.
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from various Federal -
agencies with an actual or potential
interest in the Utah program.
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The U. S Bureau of Mines responded
on March 3, 1995, by telephone -
conversation, that it had no comments
on the proposed amendment -
{administrative record No. UT-1028).

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
responded on March 14, 1995, that the
changes to the Utah program were
‘satisfactory (administrative record No.
UT--1032). :

The U.S. Mine Safety and Health
Administration {(MSHA) responded on
April 3, 1995, that no conflict could be -
found between the amendment and .
current MSHA regulations
(administrative record No. UT-1040).

3. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) Concurrence and Comments

" Pursuant to 30 CFR 732.17(h){11)(ii),
OSM is required to solicit the written
concurrence of EPA with respect to
those provisions of the proposed
program amendment that relate to air or
water quality standards promulgated
under the authority of the.Clean Water
Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) or the Clean
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.).

None of the revisions that Utah
proposed ta make in its amendment
pertain to air or water quality standards.
Therefore, OSM did not request EPA’s.
concurrence.
~ Pursuant to 732.17(h)(11)(i), OSM
* solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from EPA (administrative
record No. UT-1021). EPA responded
on March 3, 1895, thatithadno -
comments on the proposed amendment
and did not believe that there would be
any impacts to water quality standards
promulgated under the Clean Water Act
{administrative record No. UT-1031).

4. State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO)

Pursuant to 3¢ CFR 732.17(h)(4), OSM
solicited comments on the proposed
amendment from the SHPO
(administrative record No. UT-1021).
The SHPO did not respond to OSM’s
request.

V. Birector’s Decision

Based on the above findings, the
Director approves the proposed
amendment as submitted by Utah on
February 10, 1995.

The Director approves, as discussed
in: finding No. 1, Utah Admin. R. 645~
401—430, concerning a nonsubstantive
editorial revision; finding No. 2, Utah
Admin. R. 645—401-120, Utah Admin.
R. 645401410, Utah Admin. R. 645-
401-721, 723.100, and 742, Utah
Admin. R. 645-401-810, and Utah
Admin. R. 645-402—420 and 422,
concerning substantive revisions that-

o

are substantively idlentical to the
corresponding Federal regulations;
finding No. 3, Utah Admin. R. 645401~
830, concerning the formal review of the
violation fact or the civil penalty;
finding No. 4, Utah Admin. R. 645—401—
910, concerning the final civil penalty
assessment and payment of penalty; and
finding No. 5, Utah Admin. R. 645-402—
120, concerning information on
individual civil penalties.’

The Director approves the rules as
proposed by Utah with the provision
that they be fully promulgated in
identical form to the rules submitted to
and reviewed by OSM and the public.

The Federal regulations at 30 CFR
part 944, codifying decisions concerning
the Utah program, are being amended to
implement this decision. This final rule
is being made effective immediately to
expedite the State program amendment
process and to encourage States to bring
their programs into conformity with the
Federal standards without undue delay.
Consistency of State and Federal
standards is required by SMCRA.

VL Prdcedural Determinations
1. Executive Order 12866
This rule is exempted from review by

‘the Office of Management and Budget

{OMB) under Executive Order 12866
{Regulatory Planning and Review).

2. Executive Order 12778

The Department of the Interior has
conducted the reviews required by
section 2 of Executive Order 12778
(Civil Justice Reform) and has
determined that this rule meets the
applicable standards of subsections (a)
and (b) of that section. However, these
standards are not applicable to the
actual language of State regulatory
programs and program amendments
since each such program is drafted and
promulgated by a specific State, not by
OSM. Under sections 503 and 505 or
SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1253 and 1255) and
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
730.11, 732.15, and 732.17(h)(10),
decisions on proposed State regulatory
programs and program amendments
submitted by the States must be based
solely on a determination of whether the
submittal is consistent with SMCRA and
its implementing Federal regulations
and whether the other requirements of
30 CFR parts 730, 731, and 732 have
been met.

3. National Environmental Policy Act

No environmental impact statement is
required for this rule since section’
702{d) of SMCRA (30 U.S.C. 1292(d)) -
provides that agency decisions on
proposed State regulatory program

provisions do not constitute major
Federal actions within the meaning of
section 102(2)(C) of the National .
Environmental Policy, Act (42 U.S.C.
4332(2)}(C).

4. Paperwork Reduction Act

This rule does not contain
information collection requirements that
require approval by OMB under the
Paperwork Reduction Act (44 U.S.C.
3507 et seq.).

5. Regulatory Flexibility Act

The Department of the Interior has
determined that this rule will not have
a significant economic impact on a
substantial number of small entities
under the Regulatory Flexibility Act (5
U.S.C. 601 et seq.}. The State submittal
that is the subject of this rule is based
upon counterpart Federal regulations for
which an economic analysis was
prepared and certification made that
such regulations would not have a
significant economic effect upon a
substantial number of small entities.
Accordingly, this rule will ensure that
existing requirements prevmusly
promulgated by OSM will be ’
implemented by the State. In making the
determination as to whether this rule
would have a significant économic
impact, the Department relied upon the
data and assumptions for the
counterpart Federal regulations.

List of Subjects in 30 CFR Part 944

Intergovernmental relations, Surface
mining, Underground mining.

Dated: April 25, 1995.
Peter A. Rutledge,

Acting Assistant Director, Westem Support
Center. ;

For the reasons set out in the
preamble, title 30, Chapter VII,
subchapter T of the Code of Federal
Regulations is amended as set forth
below:

PART 244—UTAH

1. The authority citation for part 944
continues to. read as follows

Authority: 30 U.S. C 1201 et seq.

2. Section 944.15 is amended by
adding paragraph (dd) to read as
follows: -

§944.15 Approval of améndments to the
State regulatory program.

* * * * *

(dd) Revisions to the following Utah
Administrative Rules, as submitted to
OSM on February 10, 1995, are
approved effective May 2, 1995.
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645-401-120 .... How Civil Penalty Assess-
. ‘ments Are Made.
645401410 Assessment of Separate
and 430. - ‘Violations for Each Day.
645-401-721,  Procedures for Informal
' 723.100, and Assessment Con-
742.° . ferences. )
645-401-810 Request for Formal Hear-
and 830. ings. .
645-401-910 ... Final Civil Pepalty As-
sessment and Payment .
o of Penalty. ’
645—402-120 ...- Information on Individual
' Civil Penalties.
645-402—420 Procedures for Assess-
and 422. ment of Individual Civil

Penalties.

[FR Doc. 9510777 Filed 5-1-95; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE %310-05-M

DEPARTMENTJOF EDUCATION

34 CFR Part 6
RIN 1840-AB73
Federal Pell Grant Program;

Presidential Agcess Scholarship
Program

. AGENCY: Depar'tineht of Education.

ACTION: Final regulations; correction.

SUMMARY: This § ocument corrects an
error in the finaj regulations published
in the Federal Register on November 1,
1994 for the Federal Pell Grant Program
(59 FR 54718). These regulations
implement statytory changes inthe
Federal Pell Gr4gnt Program authorized
by title IV of thé¢ Higher Education Act
of 1965, as amepded by the Higher
Education Amefndments of 1992, and
the Higher Edugation Technical
Amendments of 1993. :
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Greg
Gerrans, Office pf Student Financial
Assistance Programs, Office of
Postsecondary KEducation, U.S.
Department of Education, 600
Independence Avenue, S.W., Room
3045, Regional Qffice Building 3,
Washington, D.¢. 20202-5447.
Telephone (202] 708-4607. Individuals
who use a telecgmmunications device
for the deaf (TDD) may call the Federal
Information Reldy Service {(FIRS) at 1
800-877-8339 bptween 8 a.m. and 8

Dated: April 24, ,;995
David A. Longanecker,
Assistant Secretary}for Postsecondary

_ Education.
' §690.12 [Correct

1. The following correction is made in
FR Doc. 94-26832, published on
November 1, 1994 (59 FR 54718):

On page 54732 column 1,

§ 690.12(b){2) “Mailing the paper

- Office. ..

application form to-

. corrected to read “Se
application form to tlje Secretary.”

Secretary.” is . '
ding an approved

[FR Doc. 95~10665 Filed 5-1-95; 8:45 am]

BILLING COOE 4000-01-P

DEPARTMENT OF GOMMERCE

Patent and Tradem

37 CFR Parts 1 and
[Docket No. 95040308¢
RIN 0651-AA72

Revisions of Patent
Treaty Provisions

AGENCY: Patent and
Commerce.

ACTION: Final rule.

rk Ofﬁce.
o0 -
-5086-01]

Cooperation

I'rademark Office,

SUMMARY: The Pate
Office (Office) is a

and Trademark
nding the rules of

practice relating to gpplications filed
under the Patent Copperation Treaty
(PCT) in accordance with revised
regulations under the PCT. The changes
will result in a procgdure whereby
international applications improperly

filed with the Unite
Office (RO/US) will
forwarded for proce;
International Bureag

EFFECTIVE DATE: jung

FOR FURTHER INFORM
Charles Pearson at (%

SUPPLEMENTARY INFO!

States Receiving
for a fee, be

:sing to the

as Receiving

1, 1995.
ATION CONTACT:
03) 308-6515.

RMATION: In a

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking.
published in the Federal Register at 59
FR 33707 (June 30, $994} and in the
Patent and Tradematk Office Official
Gazette at 1164 Off. 3az. Pat. Office 77
(July 26, 1994), the Office proposed to
amend several rules pf practice in patent
cases. Recent changgs to the PCT :
Regulations include
new section (PCT Rule 19.4) which
provides for transmiftal of an
international application to the
International Bureau} acting in its
capacity as Receiving Office, in certain
instances. Under thejregulations
currently in.effect, a{least one applicant
is required, on filingjthe international

“application in the Ugited States, to be

a resident or nationa} of the United
States. )
The practice undey the revised PCT

Regulations permits §n international
application filed witl} the United States
Receiving Office to b¢ forwarded to the
International Bureau for processing in
its capacity as a Receiying Office if the
international applicatipn does not name.
an applicant who is indicated as being

a U.S. resident or natiogal, but names an

- International Bureau

applicant who is indidated as a resident

or national of anotherPCT Contracting
State or if the indicatipn of residence or
nationality of the applicant is missing.
The Receiving Office
International Bureau i
international applicatjon to be recaived
as of the date accordefl by the United
States Receiving Offide. This practice
will avoid the loss of p filing date in
those instances wherd the United States
Receiving Office is nqt compétent to'act,
but where the international application’
is filed by an applicagt who is a
national or resident of a PCT
‘Contracting State. Wljere questions arise
regarding residence ahd nationality, e.g.,
where residence and hationality are not
clearly set forth, the gpplication will be

* forwarded to the Inteinational Bureau as

Receiving Office. If alf applicants are .
indicated to be residents and nationals
of non-PCT Contractibg States, PCT

- Rule 19.4 does not apply and the

application is denied fan international

filing date. A
Discussion of Specifiq Rules-

Section 1.412(c){6) Is added to reflect
that the United States{Receiving Office,
where it is not a competent Receiving
Office under PCT Rulg 19.1 or 19.2,
could transmit the intgrnational
application to the Intefnational Bureau
for processing in its cqpacity as a
Receiving Office.

Section 1.421(a) is a
that applications filed by applicants
who are not residents ¢r nationals of the .
United States, but. whq are residents or
nationals of a PCT Corftracting State or
who indicate no residgnce or
nationality, will, uponjtimely payment
of the proper fee, be fofwarded to the
International Bureau fqr processing in
its capacity as a Receiding Office.

Section 1.445(a)(5) i§ added to

ended to clarify

" establish a fee equivalgnt to the

transmittal fee in paragraph (a)(1) of this
section for transmittal of an
international applicatipn to the
International Bureau f$r processing in
its capacity as a Receiying Office.
Section 10.9 is amer}ded to add a new
provision consistent with PCT Rule
90.1, clarifying that anj
having the right to pra

Receiving Office may gepresent the
applicant before the U}S. International
Searching Authority o} the U.S.
International Preliminpry Examining
Authority. An individfal who has the '
right to practice beford the International
Bureau when acting agReceiving Office,
and who is not registefed under § 10.6,

. may not prosecute pat¢nt applications

in the national stage ir§the Office.-
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Utah MiningAssociation
| 136 SOUTH MAIN STREET, SUITE 825
SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH 84101-1672
- (801) 364-1874
FAX: (801) 364-2640

ALEXANDER H. JORDAN

President

Chairman of the Board
DONALD J. McMILLAN
Director of Utah Operations

Brush Weliman, Inc.

Vice President

ROBERT J. RAMSEY

Vice President & General Manager

Mining & Concentrating

Kennecott Utah Copper

Vice President

CLAYTON L. LANDA

May 1 ’ 1995 Vice President & General Manager
Barrick Resources {USA}, Inc.

Vice President
DAN K. BAKER
Vice President
Iinterwest Mining Corp.

Thomas Ehmett, Acting Director

FEDERAL OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING
505 Marquette, N.W., Suite 1200
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

RE: Statement of the Utah Mining Association re Federal Energy Policy Act
Requirements for Water Replacement and Subsidence Control, Utah

Coal Regulatory Program
Dear Acting Director Ehmett: o

On behalf of the Utah Mining Association ("UMA"), we appreciate the
opportunity to present comments concerning the Utah Division of Oil, Gas & Mining’s
("Division’s") options for enforcement of the water replacement provisions of the Energy
Policy Act. As you are aware, the Division has primacy to enforce its coal program in Utah
and should be the entity which enforces the Energy Policy Act in this State. It has been
suggested that the Utah Program must be modified to be no less effective than the Office of
Surface Mining’s ("OSM’s") rules adopted on Friday, March 31, 1995. However, the
protection afforded by OSM’s rules regarding water replacement are currently in place under
the Utah Water Code ("Water Code"). Without further amendment of Utah law,
enforcement of these regulations may be accomplished through a Memorandum of
Understanding ("MOU") between the Division and the Utah State Engineer ("State
Engineer"”).

Section 717(a) of the federal Surface Mining Control & Reclamation Act
requires deference to State water law. Utah’s water law is based on the doctrine of prior
appropriation. The right to use of unappropriated water in Utah is acquired exclusively by
an approved application to appropriate issued by the State Engineer. Utah Code Ann. § 73-
3-1. As a condition of approval of an application to appropriate, the applicant must
demonstrate that the proposed use will not impair existing rights or interfere with a more
beneficial use of the water. Utah Code Ann. § 73-3-8. Applications to appropriate are
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May 1, 1995
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subject to public notice and comment and those affected by a proposed application may file a
protest and request a hearing before the State Engineer. Utah Code Ann. § 73-3-13.

Under the Utah appropriation system, the first in time is the first in right and
the senior appropriator. The Water Code currently addresses conflicts between junior and
senior appropriators which may result in the replacement of water rights. For example,
under Utah Code Ann. § 73-3-23, the right of replacement is granted statutorily for
appropriations of underground water where the junior appropriator may "diminish the
quantity or injuriously affect the quality of appropriated underground water in which the right
to use thereof has been established as provided by law." No replacement may be made by
the junior appropriator until an application has been approved by the State Engineer.
Replacement is made at the sole cost and expense of the applicant and the Water Code allows
the applicant to exercise the right of eminent domain for the purpose of replacement. In
addition, the State Engineer sets conditions for replacement of existing water wells.

The UMA believes that Utah’s appropriation system establishes vested rights
to "drinking, domestic or residential water supplies.” In addition, the office of the State
Engineer has the expertise and training to make determinations as to whether or not mining,
activities "may result in contamination, diminution or interruption” of these water supplies.
The Subcommittee suggests that OSM leave these determinations to the Division and the
State Engineer through the mechanism of an MOU. In addition, if changes to the Utah
program are deemed necessary, the Division must consult the State Engineer to ensure that
the coal program does not conflict with established procedures for appropriation and
replacement of water rights.

We appreciate your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely,
any
’V\/L//]/ / /// &

/ Randy Gamer Chairman
Coal Environmental Committee

RG:DAD:jmc:55826

cc: Robert Morgan, Utah State Engineer
UMA, Coal Environmental Committee
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COASTAL STATES ENERGY

STATEMENT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF UNDERGROUND COAL MINE
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS OF
SECTION 720(a) OF SMCRA, OSM HEARING MAY 1, 1995, SALT LAKE CITY UTAH

My name is Keith Zobell and I work for and am representing Coastal States Energy Company
who owns and operates the Skyline Mines, Convulsion Canyon mine and the Soldier Creek

mine here in the State of Utah.

We are knowledgeable and aware of our responsibilities under the Energy Policy Act and
have reviewed the final OSM rule in 30CFR Parts 701, 784, 817 and 843 that were published
in the Federal Register, Friday, March 31, 1995.

There are currently 13 active underground mines in the State of Utah. Compared to many

other coal mining states, this is a relatively small number.

There are no "non-commercial buildings or occupied residential dwelling or structures related- *
thereto” that could be damaged as a result of coal mining caused subsidence at any of our
Coastal States Energy Co. three mine locations in the State of Utah. We are also not aware

of any such structures ar any of the other active coal mines located within the State.

(U
Since the enaciment of the Energy Policy Act on October 24, 1992, we aware of one citizen
complaint dealing with the loss of water which dealr with livestock water. This complaint
was immediately investigated by the Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining and was brought

to a conclusion in a prompt, orderly manner.

There are no drinking, domestic or residential springs or wells within the angle of draw

impact area at any of our three mines in the State of Utah.

-1-



Based on the facts that: 1) There is a relatively low number of active underground coal
mines in the State of Utah. 2) There have been a relatively low number of citizen complainis
dealing with “non-commercial buildings or occupied residential dwellings or structures
related thereto or to drinking, domestic, or residential water supply in the State of Utah. 3)
The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining has promptly taken remedial action on all citizen
complaints received. 4) The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining is keenly aware of Utah
State water law and 5) The Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining has the qualified
personnel ro enforce the requirements of the Energy Policy Act, Coastal States Energy
recommends that the State of Utah proceed with the promulgation of regulatory provisions
that are counter part to 30CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(C)(2) and that the State of Utah take

over the immediate enforcement of these regulations.

Thank you.

MEMOO427. KZ
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Statement of James W. Carter
Director, Utah Division of Oil Gas and Mining
May 1, 1995

The Division appreciates the opportunity to address the Office of Surface
Mining on implementation of the subsidence and water replacement provisions of
the Energy Policy Act through this public hearing process. As you know, the Utah
coal industry produced in excess of 24 Million tons of coal last year, all by
underground mining methods. The two main areas of regulation under the Act,
subsidence control and the replacement of water supplies affected by underground
mining, are significant features of the Utah coal program and are important to the
underground mining industry and the residents of coal mining areas.

During the 1994 Utah legislative session, the Division of Qil, Gas and Mining
was successful in obtaining amendments to the Utah coal regulatory program
implementing most of the changes to SMCRA brought about by the Energy Policy
Act. However, because of implications for Utah’s long-settled water law, those
portions dealing with subsidence damage and water replacement were not enacted
as proposed. The Division, therefore, has not yet formally adopted subsidence or
water replacement rules as OSM has recently done. The Division has already
committed to introduce new legislation in the 1996 session, if necessary, which
will avoid the earlier water law concerns, and could provide the basis for
rulemaking by this time next year. Notwithstanding the actions of the 1994 s
legislature, the Division and Board currently have authority under existing
enactments and rules to adequately address subsidence and water replacement
issues as they arise. '

Since obtaining primacy in 1981 the Division has been making well-based
and informed decisions on the hydrologic impacts of underground mining through
the use of advanced computer modeling and investigatory techniques, combined
with formal and informal administrative processes. The Division and Board have
been examining water and related subsidence issues for quite some time. In
cooperation with the Utah Division of Water Rights we have been addressing water
supply and water rights issues from the very beginning of the State’s primacy
program. We have also learned a great deal about the western mining subsidence
phenomenon during the past fourteen years of primacy, and we routinely condition
mining permits to avoid subsidence-caused surface damage.

Enactment of new subsidence and water replacement law and regulations
may enhance these on-going activities, but such regulations must be carefully
crafted within existing water rights doctrine. In this area in particular, state
primacy in creating and administering the provisions of the Energy Policy Act is
critical. Without close collaboration with the Division or Water Rights, regulation of



subsidence damage and water replacement will be a legal morass. The potential
for creating conflicts between the legitimate objectives of the prior appropriation
doctrine and the Energy Policy Act is high, and careful definition of the interplay of
the two is critical.

We are now in an interim regulatory period while OSM analyzes the Utah
program and the provisions of our most recent program amendment submittal, and
compares them to its own recntly promulgated rules. During this period it would
make no logical sense for OSM to gear up a seperate federal program to address
only subsidence damage and water replacement issues for three reasons: 1) The
Board and Division have adequate existing authority to implement those provisions;
2) There exist significant legal and administrative impediments to creation of a
successful seperate federal program; 3) At the outside, the Division can have new
regulatory provisions in place, if necessary, by March, 1996. This would be in the
case legislation is required. If only administrative rules are required, these can be
enacted in a matter of weeks.

Given these circumstances, implementation of the terms of the Energy Policy
Act by any other regulatory authority than the State of Utah at this time would be
be an inefficient and wasteful use of our scarce budgetary resources. We
recommend that OSM continue with its review of Utah’s recent program
amendments and that the Division pursue whatever legislative or administrative
modifications are deemed necessary. We would strongly discourage the creation of
a new, temporary and limited-scope regulatory program.

l:statemen.sub
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APR-21-95 13:14 FROM: GENWAL RESUURCES INC

GENWAL - ' < ut-sese

RESOURCES, INC.
’ P.O. Box 1420 « 195 North 100 West « Huntington, Utah 84528
Telephone (801) 637-9813 « Fax (301) 687-9784

FAX TRANSMISSION
APRIL 21, 1995

To:

¥r. Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director
Office of sSurface Mining

Reclamation and Enforcement

505 Martquette N.W., Suite 1200
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

RE: 60 FR 17501, April 6, 1995, Subsidence Control and Wwater
Replacement.

Dear Mr. Ehmett:

As chairman of the Environmental committee for the Utah Coal
Operators, I respectfully ask for an opportunity, for myself or
other designee, to speak at a Public Meeting held in Utah on May 1,
1995 to discuss Subsidence Control and Water Replacement.

Thank you for this opportunity.

Sincerely,

dolph B. Gaiter, P.G.

nvironmental Mapager
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United States Department of the Interior

FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

UTAH FIELD OFFICE
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SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH 84115 e . g ;
In Reply Refer To ﬁDR 2 , 1995 : .

April 18, 1995

MEMORANDUM

TO: Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement, 505 Marquette, NW,
Suite 1200, Albuquerque, NM, 87102 :

FROM: Assistant Field Supervisor, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Salt Lake City,

ACTR
Utah

SUBJECT: Solicitation of Comments on a Formal Amendment to Utah’s Coal Mining
Rules (UT-1019, SPAT No. UT-031-FOR)

This is in response to the subject memorandum concerning a rule change in the State of
Utah’s Coal Mining Rules. The Service has reviewed the change and finds nothing that
would be detrimental to fish and wildlife resources.

OPTIONAL FORM 99 (7-90) W : %
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DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING S
355 Waest North Temple
Governor [ 3 Triad Cen-ter, Suite 350
Ted Stewart Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203
Executive Director | 801-538-5340

James W. Carter | 801-359-3940 (Fax)
Division Director I 801-538-5319 (TDD)

Michael O. Leavitt

April 14, 1995

Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director
Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement

505 Marquette N.W., Suite 1200
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

Re: 60 FR 17501, April 6, 1995, Subsidence Control and Water Replacement

Dear Mr. Ehmett:

These comments are intended to respond to the above-described notice
which was distributed by OSM for the purpose of obtaining public comment on
how to proceed in enforcing the provisions of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 and
" its attendant regulations in the states of New Mexico, Colorado, and Utah. First, |
request a public hearing in Utah on this issue. | am sure you know that Utah is the~. -
leader of the western states in the production of coal from underground mines. By
holding the hearing in Utah on May 1, 1995, you will enable numerous interested
people to express their preference on how OSM should proceed with the regulation
of water replacement and the control of subsidence from mining.

Second, Utah’s particular choice of how OSM should proceed with the
regulation ot these two highly controversial and critically important topics is the
same as our long-standing position on state primacy. That position, of course, is
that the regulatory issues are so specific to each state, the state must be the
primacy authority, even during an interim period while rules are being developed
and approved as a part of the approved state regulatory program. Utah must be
the entity that regulates subsidence and water replacement. | think the
preponderance of comments that are presented at the hearing will bear this out to
you. :

The Utah State Legislature in 1994 revised the Utah Coal Regulatory Statute
" (UCA 40-10-1, et seq.) to, among other things, make it compatible with the Energy
Policy Act of 1992. The enacted changes are now under review by OSM as State
Program Amendment Number UT-024-FOR. In our opinion the changes to the law
have done an excellent job in capturing the provisions of the Energy Policy Act and

g
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Page 2
Thomas E. Ehmett
April 14, 1995

should be acceptable as a program amendment as enacted. The one part of the
Utah version of the code revisions which has been given a region-specific twist is
that which addresses water replacement. This deviation is to account for the
western water rights doctrine which is the law of the land here where there are
limited water resources and numerous demands on these resources.

Therefore, in the Utah Coal Reguiatory Program, there may be differences in
how the issue of water replacement is addressed. | am confident that the end
product or goal of water resource protection, as set out in the Energy Policy Act,
the replacement of water resources that are affected by mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992, can be achieved in no less effective a manner
than if the federal government did the job. | urge you to choose Option Number
Two as listed in the notice and assign the responsibility for water rights and
subsidence control under the Energy Policy Act to the state of Utah.

If you have questions on this position or need any additional information on
the Utah regulatory provisions under the Energy Policy Act, please contact me at
your convenience.

Very truly yours,

lwu‘%@ /3 U*T%: J
Z”\

James W. Carter
Director

jbe
cc: L. Braxton
P:SUBWATER.LTR
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Department of Interior
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
Notice of Scheduled Hearing to Receive Public Comment

On April 6, 1995, an "Announcement of Public Comment Period and
Opportunity for Public Hearing" was published in the Federal
Register (60 FR 17501). That announcement provided for public
input regarding how provisions of the Surface Control and
Reclamation Act of 1977 as amended (SMCRA), implementing Federal
regulations, and/or counterpart State provisions should implement
and enforce the requirements of Energy Policy Act of 1992.
Specifically, the requirements that underground coal mining
operations conducted after October 24, 1992, (1) promptly repair or
compensate for subsidence-caused material damage to occupied
dwellings and related structures and (2) promptly replace drinking,
domestic and residential water supplies that have been adversely
affected.

A timely request for a hearing was received in accordance with the
April 6, 1995 announcement, so a Public Hearing will be held on May
1, 1995, at the Utah Department of Natural Resources, Division of
0il, Gas and Mining, 3 Triad Center, Suite 520, 355 West North
Temple, Salt Lake City, Utah. Oral and written comments will be
accepted into the record between 9:00 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. at that
location. Written comments received by 4:00 p.m., May 8, 1995, at
the address listed in the aforementioned Announcement will also be
accepted. For further information, see the April 6, 1995, Federal
Register notice or contact Mr. Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director,
Albuquergue Field Office, Telephone: (505) 766-1486.
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support of the c mmenter s
recommendatiofs. Comments received
after the time inflicated under DATES or
at locations other than the Tulsa Field
Office will not fecessarily be
considered in QSM'’s final decision or
included in the/Administrative Record.

B. Public Hearihg

Persons wishing to speak at the public
hearing should/contact the person listed
under FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
CONTACT by 4 p.m., c.d.t. on April 21,
1995. The location and time of the
hearing will bz arranged with those -
persons requeétmo the hearing. If no one
requests an op ortunity to testify at the
public hearmé the hearing will not be
held. _ l

Filing of a written statement at the
time of the hegring is requested as it
will greatly asSsist the transcriber.
Submission of written statements in
advance of the hearing will allow OSM
officials to prepare adequate responses
and appropridte questions.

- The public hearing will continue on
the specified date until all persons
scheduled to.$peak have been heard.
Persons in the audience who have not
been scheduled to speak, and who wish
to do so, will be heard following those
who have beep scheduled. The hearing
will end sfteriall persons scheduled to
speak and persons present in the '

-audience wha wish to speak have been

the individual|listed under FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT.

C. Public Meeting

If only a fewjpersons request an
opportunity tolspeak at a hearing, a
public meeting, rather than a public
hearing, may b¢ held. Persons wishing
to meet with OFM representatives to
discuss recommendations on how OSM
and Arkansas, Rouisiana, Oklahoma, -

.and Texas should implement the
. provisions of s

ction 720(a) of SMCRA,
the implementing Federal regulations,.
and/orthe counlerpart State provisions,
may request a meeting by contacting the
person listed unfler FOR FURTHER

INFORMATION CONTACT. All such meetings

meeting will be mjade a part of the
Administrative Rgcord.

, 1995,

Dated:, March 3
Russell F. Price,
Acting Assistant Lirector, Western Support
Center.
[FR Doc. 95846 F'led 4-5-95; 8 45 amj
BILLING CODE 431

- 30 CFR Parts 806, 931, and 544

Colorado, New Mexico, and Utah
Regulatory Programs

AGENCY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM]},
Interior.

ACTION: Annoucement of public
comment period and opportunity for
public hearing.

" SUMMARY: OSM is requesting public

comment that would be considered in

deciding how to implement in Colorado,

New Mexico, and Utah underground
coal mine subsidence control and water
replacement provisions of the Surface
Mining Control and Reclamation Act of
1977 (SMCRA), the implementing
Federal regulations, and/or the
counterpart State provisions. Recent
amendments of SMCRA and the

" implementing Federal regulations

require that underground coal mining
operations conducted after October 24,
1992, promptly repair or compensate for
subsidence-caused material damage to
noncommercial buildings and to
occupied dwellings and related

* structures. These provisions also require

such operations to promptly replace
drinking, domestic, and residential
water supplies that have been adversely
affected by underground coal mining.
OSM must decide if the Colorado,
New Mexico, and Utah regulatory
programs (herein after referred to as the
“State programs"’ currently have
adequate counterpart provisions in
place to promptly implement the recent
amendments to SMCRA and the Federal
regulations. After consultation with
Colorado, New Mexico, and Utah and
consideration of public comments, OSM
will decide whether initial enforcement
in each of these States will be
accomplished through the State program

_ amendment process or by State
. enforcement, by interim direct OSM

enforcement, or by joint State and OSM

.enforcement.

DATES: Written comments must be
received by 4:00 p.m., m.d.t. on May 8,
1995. If requested, OSM will hiold a

' public hearing on May 1, 1995,

concerning how the underground coal
mine subsidence control and water
replacement provisions of SMCRA and
the implementing Federal regulations,
or the.counterpart State provisions,

should be implemented in Colorado,
New Mexico, and Utsh: Requests to
speak at the hearing must be received by
4:00 p.m., m.d:t. on April 21, 1995.

ADDRESSES: Written comments and
-requests to speak at the hearing should
be mailed or hand-delivered to Thomas
E. Ehmett, Acting Director, Albuquerque
Field Office at the address listed below.
Copies of the applicable parts of the
Colorado, New Mexico, and Utah
programs, SMCRA, the implementing
Federal regulations, information.
provided by Colorado, New Mexico, and

- Utah concerning their authority to

implement State counterparts to
SMCRA and the implementing Federal
regulations, a listing of any scheduled
public hearings, and all written’
coinments received in response {o this
document will be available for public
review at the address listed below
during normal business hours, Monday
through Friday, excluding holidays.
Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director,
Albuquerque Field Office, Office of
Surface Mining Reclamation and
Enforcement, 505 Marquette NW., Suite
1200, Telephone: (505) 766—-1486.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATIOR CONTACT:
Thomas E. Ehmett, Acting Director,
Albuquerque Field Office, Telephone:
(505) 766-1486. .

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION‘
L Background

A. The Energy Polrcy Act

Section 2504 of the Energy Pohcy Act
of 1992, Public Law 102486, 106 Stat.
2776 (1992) added new section 720 to
SMCRA. Section 720(a)(1) requires that
all underground coal mining operations
promptly repair or compensate for -
subsidence-caused material damage to
noncommercial buildings and to .
occupied residential dwellings and
related structures. Repair of damage
includes rehabilitation, restoration, or
replacement of the structures identified
i section 720(a)(1), and compensation

- must be provided to the owner in the

full amount of the reduction in value of
the damaged structures as a result of
subsidence. Section 720(a)(2) requires
prompt replacement of certain
identified water supplies if those *
supplies have been adversely affected
by underground coal mining operations.
These provisions requiring prompt

’ repalr or compensation for damage to

structures, and prompt replacement:of
water supplies, went into effect upon
passage of the Energy Policy Act on
October 24, 1992. As.a result, -
underground coal mine peimittees in
States with OSM-approved regulatory
programs are required to comply with



17502

"/

N

Federal Register / Vol. 60, No. 66 / Thursday, April 6, 1995 / Préposed Rules

T

these prOVlSlOﬂS for operations
conducted after October 24, 1992

B The fj‘edeml Regulatzons
Implementing the Energy Policy Act

On March 31, 1995, OSM
promulgated regulations at 30 CFR Part
817 to implement the performance
standards of sections 720(a)(1) and (2)
SMCRA (60 FR 16722-16751).

30 CFR 817:121{c}(2) requires in part
that:

The permittee must promptly repair, or
compensate the owder for, material damage
resulting from subsidence caused to any non-
commercial building or occupied residential
dwelling or structure related thereto that
cxisted at the time of mining. * * * The
requirements of this paragraph apply only to
subsidence-related damage caused by
underground mining activities conducted
after October 24, 1992.

30 CFR 817.41{j) requires in part that:

The permittee must promptly replace any
drinking. domestic or residential water
supply that is contaminated, diminished or
interrupted by underground mining activities
conducted after October 24, 1992, if the
affected well or spring was in existence
before the date the regulatory authority
received the permit application for the
activities causing the loss, contamination or
interruption.

30 CFR 843.25 provides that by July
31, 1995, OSM will decide, in

consultation with each State regulatory 4

authority with an approved program,
how enforcement of the new
requirements will be accomplished. As
discussed below, enforcement fnay be
accomplished through the 30 CFR Part
732 State program amendment process,
or by State, OSM, or joint State and
OSM enforcement of the requirements.
OSM will decide which of the following
enforcement approaches to pursue.

(1) State program amendment
process. If the State's promulgation of
regulatory provisions that are
counterpart to 30 CFR 817.41(j) and
817.121(c)(2) is imminent, the number
and extent of underground mines that
have operated in the State since October
24, 1992, is low, the number of
complaints in the State concerning
section 720 of SMCRA is low, or the
State’s investigation of subsidence-
related complaints has been thorough
and complete so as to assure prompt
remedial action, then OSM could decide
.- not to- directly enforce the Federal

provisions in the State. In this situation,
the State would enforce its State
statutory and regulatory provisions once
it has amended its program to be in
accordance with the revised SMCRA
_and to be consistent with the revised
Federal regulatlons This program
revision process, which is addressed in

the Federal regulations at 30 CFR Part
732, is commonly referred to as the .

{ate program amendment process.

(2) State enforcement. If the, State has
statutory or regulatory‘provisions in
place that correspood to all of the
requirements of the above-described
Federal regulations at 30 CFR 817.41(j)
and 817.121(c)(2) and the State has
authority to implement its statutory and
regulatory provisions for all
underground mining activities
conducted after October 24,1992, then
the State would enforce its provisions
for these operations. '

(3) Interimn direct OSM enforcement. If
the State does not have any statutory or
regulatory provisions in place that
correspond to the requirements of the
Federal regulations at 30 CFR 817.41(j)
and 817.121(c){2), then OSDM would
enforce in their entirety 30 CFR
817.41(}) and 817.121(c)(2) for all
underground mining activities
conducted in the State after October 24,
1992.

{4) State and OSM enforcement. If the
State has statutory or regulatory
provisions in place that correspond to
some but not &@ll of the requirements of
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
817.41(j) and 817.121(c}(2) and the State
has authority to implement its
provisions for all underground mining
activities conducted after October 24,

1992, then the State would enforce its

provisions for these operations. OSM
would then enforce those provisions of
30 CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) that
are not covered by the State provisions
for these operatians. -

If the State has statutory or regulatory
provisions in place that-correspond to
some but not all of the requirements of
the Federal regulations at 30 CFR
817.41(j) and 817.121(c)}(2) and if the
State’s authority to enforce its
provisions applies to operations
conducted on or after some date later
than October 24, 1992, the State would
enforce its provisions for these
operations on and after the provisions’
effective date. OSM would then enforce
30 CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121{(c}(2) to
the extent the State statutory and
regulatory provisions do not include
carresponding prowszons applicable to
all underground mining activities .
conducted after October 24, 1992; and .
OSM would enforce those provisions of
30 CFR 817.41(j) and 817.121(c)(2) that
are included in the State program but
are not enforceable back to October 24,
1992, for the time period from October
24, 1992, until the effective date of the
State’s rules.

As described in itemn nimbers (3) and
(4) above, OSM would directly enforce
in total or in part-its Federal statutory

or regulatory provisions until the State
adopts and OSM approves, under 30
CFR Part 732, the State's counterparts to
the reqmred provisions. However, as
discussed in item number {1} above,
QSM could decide not to initiate direct

- Federal enforcement and rely instead on

the 30 CFR Part 732 State program
amendment process.

In those situations where OSM
determined that direct Federal
enforcement was necessary, the ten-day
notice provisions of 30 CFR 843.12(a)(2)
would not apply. That is, when on the
basis of a Federal inspection OSM
determined that a violation of 30 CFR
817.41(j) or 817.121(c)(2) existed, OSM
would issue a notice of viclation or
cessation order without first sending a
ten-day notice to the State.

Also under direct Federal - )
enforcement. the provisions of 30 CFR
817.121(c)(4) would apply. This
regulation states that if damage to any
noncommercial building or occupied
residential dwelling or structure related
thereto occurs as a result of earth
movement within an area determined by
projecting a specified angle of draw
from the outermost boundary of any
underground mine workings to the’
surface of the land (normally a 30
degree angle of draw), a rebuttable
presumptxon exists that the permittee

caused the damage.

Lastly, under direct Federal

. enforcement, OSM would also enforce

the new definitions at 30 CFR 701.5 of
“drinking, domestic or residential water
supply,” “material damage,” “non-
commercial building,” *“occupied
dwelling and structures related thereto,”
and “replacement of water supply” that
were adopted with the new
underground mining performance
standaids.

OSM would enforce 30 CFR 817.41(j),
817.121(c} (2) and (4}, and 30 CFR 701.5
for operations conducted after Octaber
24,1992,

C. Enforcement in Colorado

By letter to Colorado dated December
14, 1994, OSM requested information
that would help OSM decide which
approach to take in Colorado to
implement the requirements of section
720(a) of SMCRA, the implementing
Federal regulations, and/or the
counterpart Colorado program

. provisions (Administrative Record No.
CO-652). By letter dated February 23,

1995, Colorado resporided to OSM's -
request (Administrative Record No. CO—-
661). -

Colorado stated that pemuts were
issued for 25 underground coal mines
after October 24, 1992, and 11 of those

- L 4
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mines actually mined coal after October.
24, 1992. . ) )
Colorado indicated that prior to June
1, 1992, Colorado had in place surface
owner protection performance standards
at 2 Code of Colorado Regulations 407~

"2, Rules 4.20.3(1) and 4.20.3{2) that

encompassed the requirements of
section 720(a)(1) of SMCRA. Rule

'4.20.3(2), which contained requirements

regarding an operator’s obligation to
repair or compensate for material
damage or reduction in value or
reasonably foreseeable use caused by
subsidence to surface structures,
features, or values, expired on June 1,
1992, under Colorado's “Sunset Law.”
The rule expired because Colorado’s
Office of Legislative Legal Services
found during November 1991 it was not
supported by statute. Colorado
subsequently developed language for a
bill to amend the Colorado Surface Coal
Mining and Reclamation Act (the
Colorado Act) and introduced the bill
during the 1995 legislative session. The
intent of the bill is to amend section 34—
33-121(2)(a) to provide specific
statutory support for Rule 4.20.3(2).
Colorado has not yet formsa!lv submitted
this améndment to OSM for review
under 30 CFR 732.17.

~ Colorado explained that, aithough the
specific language of Rule 4.20.3(2)
expired during June 1992, the Division
of Minerals and Gedlogy has continued
since that time to interpret its rules to
require that mine operators are
responsible for repairing or ‘
‘compensating surface owners for
subsidence-caused material damage to
structures. Colorado based its authority
for doing so on the general provisions of
Rule 4.20.3(1) and the subsidence
contro! plan mitigation requirements of
Rule 2.05.6(6)(iv).

Colorado indicated that there may be

a conflict between the provisions of
section 720(a)(2} of SMCRA, which
requires prompt replacement of
drinking, domestic, or residential water
supplies adversely impacted by
underground mining operations, and

‘Colorado water law. Consequently,

Colorado has requested an opinion from
the Colorado Assistant Attorney General
in this regard. Existing Colorado.Rule . .

Hx x %k

replace the water supply of any owner

.of a vested water right which is

proximately injured as a result of the
mining activities in a manner consistent
with applicable State law” (emphasis

_added).

For underground mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992,
Colorado has received one complaint
alleging subsidence-related structural
damage and two complaints alleging

subsidence-relatéd water supply loss or

contamination. Colorado investigated all.

three complaints. Colorado determined
the complaint alleging subsidence-
caused strictural damage to be without -
basis. One of the complaints alleging
subsidence-related water supply loss or
contamination was withdrawn, and the
second is currently under investigation
by Colorado.

D. Enforcement in New Mexico

By letter to New Mexico dated
December 14, 1994, OSM requested
information that would help OSM
decide which approach to take in New
Mexico to implement the requirements
of section 720{a) of SMCRA, the
implementing Federal regulations, and/
or the counterpart New Mexico program
provisions (Administrative Record No.
NM-725). By letter dated December 22,
1994, New Mexico responded to OSM’s
request (Administrative Record No.
NM-726). )

New Mexico stated that two
underground coal mines were active in
New Mexico after October 24, 1992.
New Mexico stated that, because its
existing provision at Coal Surface
Mining Commission (CSMC) Rule 80-1—
20-124 does not include requirements
no less stringent than section 720 of
SMCRA, it intended to revise this rule
to read as follows:

Each person who conducts underground
mining which results in subsidence shall:

{a) Promptly repair, or compensate for,
material damage resulting subsidence caused
to any occupied residential dwelling and
structures related thereto, or non-commercial
building due to underground coal mining
operations. Repair of damage shall include
rehabilitation, restoration, or replacement of
the damaged structures.

Compensation shall be provided to the
owner and shall be in the full amount of the
diminution in value resulting from the
subsidence. Compensation may be
accomplished by the purchase, priorto .
underground mining which results in
damage of the structures, of a noncancellable
premium-prepaid insurance policy.

.(b) Promptly replace any drinking,
domestic, or residential water supply from a
well or spring in existence prior to the
application for a coal mining and reclamation
permit, which has been affected by - - -

- contamination, dimjnution, or interruption

resulting from underground mining
operations. Nothing in this section shall be
construed to prohibit or interrupt
underground coal mining operations.

New Mexico did not indicate whether
it currently has the authority within its
program to investigate citizen )
complaints of structural damage or -
water supply loss or contamination -
caused by underground mining
operations conducted after October 24,
1992. New Mexico has not received any

citizen complaints alleging subsidence-
related structural damage or water - .
supply loss or contamination as a result
of underground mining operations
conducted after October 24, 1992. New
Mexico indicated that both of'the
underground mines that operated after
October 24, 1992, are located several
miles from structures subject to the
Federal requirements for subsidence-
related material damage.

E. Erforcement in Utah

By letter to Utah dated December 14,
1994, OSM requested information that
would help OSM decide which -
approach to teke in Utah to implement
the requirements of section 720(a) of
SMCRA, the implementing Federal
regulations, and/or the counterpart Utah
program provisions (Administrative
Record No. UT~1001)}. By letter dated
January 20, 1995, Utah responded to
OSM’s request (Administrative Record
No. UT-1015).

Utah stated that the number of
underground coal mines in operation
after October 24, 1992, may be found in
the past and current grant applications
filed annually with OSM. From review ~
of these grant applications, OSM
determined that there are approximately
21 underground mines that operated
after October 24, 1992." ’

As submitted to OSM on April 14,
1994, and subsequently revised on’
December 14, 1994 (Administrative
Record Nos. UT-917 and UT-997), Utah
proposed subsidence material damage
provisions at Utah Code Annotated 40—
10-18(4) that were intended to be
counterparts to the provisions to the
provisions of section 720(a)(1) of -

'SMCRA. OSM has not yet published, in

accordance with 30 CFR Part 732.17, a
final rule Federal Register notice
detailing its decision on the proposed
provisions.

In its January 20, 1995, letter, Utah
indicated that it intends to promulgate
by March 1996 water replacement
statutory provisions that are
counterparts to the provisions of section
720{a){2) of SMCRA. :

Utah did not state whether it has. -
authority to investigate citizen.
complaints of structural damage or
water loss caused by underground
mining operations conducted after.
October 24,.1992. Utah indicated that it .
did receive, investigate, and resolve one
citizen complaint after October 24, -
1992, but it also indicated that the -
complaint was judged not to be one that
the Energy Policy Act of 1992 revisions
to section 720 of SMCRA could remedy
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11 Pubiic Comment Procedures

OSM is requesting public comment to
assist OSM in making its decision on
which approach to use in Colorado,
New Mexico, and Utah to implement
the underground coal mine performance
standards of section 720{a) of SMCRA,
the implementing Federal regulations,
and any counterpart State provisions.

A. Written Commems

Written comments should be specific,
pertain only to the issues addressed in
this notice, and include explanations in
support of the commenter’s
recommendations. Comments received
after the time indicated under DATES or
at locations other than the Albuquerque
Field Office will not necessarily be
considered in OSM’s final decision or
included in the Administrative Record.

B. Public Hearing

Persons wishing to speak at the public
hearing should contact the person listed
under FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
CONTACT by 4 p.m., mst on April 21,”
1995. The location and time of the
hearing will be arranged with those

persons requesting the hearing. If no one’

requests an opportunity to testify at the
public hearing, the hearing will not be
held. .

Filing of a written statement at the
time of the hearing is requested as it
will greatly assist the transcriber.
Submission of written statements in
advance of the hearing will allow OSM
vfficials to prepare adequate responses
and appropriate questions.

The pub ? ic hearing will continue on
the specified date until all persons
scheduled to speak have been heard.
Persons in the audience who have not
been scheduled to speak, and who wish
to do so, will be heard following those
who have been scheduled. The hearing
will end after all persons scheduled to
speak and persons present in the
audience who wish to speak have been"
heard.

Any disabled individual who has
need for a special accommodation to
attend a public hearing should contact
the individual listed under FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT

C. Public Meeting

1f only a few persons request an

- opportunity to speak at a hearing, a
public meeting, rather than a public
hearing, may be held. Persons wishing
to meet with OSM representatives to
discuss recommendations on how OSM
and Colorado, New Mexico, or Utah
should implement the provisions of
section 720(a) of SMCRA, the
implementing Federal regulations, and/
or the counterpart State provisions, may

‘request a meetmg by contacting the -

person listed under FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT, All such meetings
will be open to the public and, if
possible, notices of meetings will be
posted at the locations listed under
ADDRESSES. A written summary of each
meeting will be made a part of the
Administrative Record.

Dated: March 31. 1995.
Russell F. Price,
Acting Assistant Director. Western Support
Center
{FR Doc. 95-8468 Filed 4-5-95: 8:15 am]
EILLING CODE 4310-05-M

30 CFR Parts 915,816, and 925

towa, Kansas, and Missouri Regulatory
Programs

AGENCY: Office of Sjirface Mining
Reclamation and Enfforcement (OSM).
Interior.
ACTION: Announcenient of public
comment period and opportunity for
public hearing.

SUMMARY: OSM is requesting public
comment that would be considered in
deciding how to implement in lowa,

Kansas, and Missoufi underground coal -

mine subsidence coptrol and water
replacement provisipns of the Surface
Mining Control and [Reclamation Act of
1977 (SMCRA), the i
Federal regulations,

- water supplies that have been adversely

affected by undergroynd coal mining.
OSM must decide if Iowa's, Kansas',
and Missouri’s regulatory pregrams
(hereinafter referred tp as the *“Towa,
Kansas, and Missouri|programs™)
currently have adequdte counterpart
provisions in place to|promptly
implement the recentamendments to
SMCRA and the Fedetal regulations.
Alfter consultation with Iowa, Kansas,
and Missouri and consideration of
public comments, OSM will decide
whether, initial enforc ment in Iowa,

enforcement, by interdim direct OSM

_subsidence. Seq

enforcement, or by,
enforcement. . v
DATES: Written cothments must be
received by 4:00 p{m., c.d.t. on May 8,
1995. If requested | OSM will hold a
public hearing onMay 1, 1995,
concerning how the underground coal
mine subsidence g¢ontrol and water
replacement provfsions of SMCRA and
the implementing Federal regulations,
or the counterparf State provisions,

should be implemented in Iowa, Kansas.

and Missouri. Requests to speak at the
hearing must be rgceived by 4:00 p.m..
c.d.t. an April 21,]1995.

ADDRESSES: Writlgn comments and
requests to speak pt the hearing should
be mailed or hang-delivered to Michael

bel ow.

Towa, Kansas, and Missouri concerning
plement State

excludmg holida
Michael C. Wo
Kansas City Field
Surface Mining Re¢lamation and
Enforcement, 934 {yandotte, Room
500, Kansas City,
(816) 374-6405. _
FOR FURTHER INFOHMATION CONTACT:
Michael C. Wolfrgm, Acting Director.
Kansas City Field [Office, Telephone:
(816) 374-6405.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
I. Background

A. The Energy Pdlicy Act

Section 2504 of the Energy Policy Act
of 1992, Public IJaw-102—486. 106 Stat.
2776 (1992) addg¢d new section 720'to
SMCRA. Section 720(a)(1) requires that
all undergroun d/coal mining operations
promptly repairfor compensate for
subsidence-cauged material damage to
noncommercialjbuildings and to
occupied resid¢ntial dwellings and -
related structuges. Repair of damage
includes rehabflitation, restoration, or
replacement ofjthe structures identified
in section 720(3)(1), and compensation
must be providgd to the owner in the
full amount of fhe reduction in value of
the damaged stfuctures as a result of-
ion 720(a0(2) requires

joint State and OSM -

0 64105, Telephone:

Rt mdme A i A et



